2003 Annual Report




JOHN R. ALM LOWRY F. KLINE
President and Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the Board



In 2003, we took another important step toward our objective

of growing value for Coca-Cola Enterprises’ shareowners by

building on our strong performance of 2002 with improved

results in virtually every area of financial measurement. Last

year, we achieved significantly higher earnings per share,

strong free cash flow, an improved return on invested capital,

and lower net debt levels.

Bolstered by a strong emphasis on revenue man-
agement and improved efficiency, our 2003 net
income totaled $674 million, or $1.46 per diluted
common share. Though these reported results
included favorable tax and operating items with a net
14-cent per share benefit, our comparable earnings
per share still increased 28 percent to $1.32. Operat-
ing income grew 9 percent on a comparable basis to
$1.49 billion. Favorable interest rate and currency
trends also positively contributed to our perform-
ance. Our higher level of profitability enabled us to
generate free cash flow* of approximately $700 mil-
lion, up more than $300 million from a year ago,
which we used to reduce our net debt levels.

Our company is built on a more than 100-year
heritage of successfully bottling and selling Coca-Cola
products, and today we continue to see tremendous
opportunities to grow and improve our business.
In fact, we firmly believe our company’s future is as
bright and prosperous as it has ever been.

There are many reasons for our optimism. We
know, for example, that people are not less thirsty
today than they were five or 50 years ago. The need
and demand for a moment of refreshment has never
been greater. We know there are not only more bev-
erage consumers in North America and western
Europe, but also more occasions. We know we are
solidly positioned in a growing market sector with

*Free cash flow is defined as cash from operations less capital expenditures.

the world’s best and most popular beverage brands,
the world’s best bottling system, and a world-class
team of employees and managers.

FOCUS ON VALUE CREATION

Today’s opportunities — and today’s challenges —
are created by the changing demands of today’s
consumers, and the changing dynamics of today’s
marketplace. We are working to seize these oppor-
tunities with the benefit of an unmatched total
beverage brand portfolio and a new strategic direc-
tion in revenue management that fully implements
the principles of sound value creation. We believe
this direction will heighten our ability to benefit from
the strength of our brands and generate long-term,
sustainable profit growth.

This clear focus on revenue management is based
on a strong commitment to improving pricing dis-
cipline throughout our company. Our pricing efforts
in 2003, with net revenue per case up 2 percent in
North America and 2% percent in Europe, marked
our fifth consecutive year of pricing growth.

As we and our customers continue to benefit from
the value captured by revenue management, it is
important for us to remember that simply deciding
to raise prices will not guarantee our success. To
that end, Coca-Cola Enterprises and the manage-
ment of The Coca-Cola Company are united in



our belief that, as a system, we must continue to
shift our focus from volume to value and change
our respective cultures accordingly. In fact, in the
last half of 2003, we jointly embarked on a detailed
effort to identify ideas and methods that will allow
us to work better together in creating a more trans-
parent, efficient system driven by value creation and
sustained profitability. This effort will continue in
2004 as we begin to implement initiatives that will
fuel continued improvement in our performance.
To benefit fully from this renewed commitment to
value, we’ve identified four key areas that are essen-
tial to our long-term success:
* We will create value by strengthening our existing

consumers, and its perceived value enhanced our
ability to generate additional unit profitability at
the retail level. In 2004 we will continue to test fur-
ther package innovations, such as smaller, 390-ml
PET bottles for certain immediate consumption
channels and 12-ounce PET bottle Fridge Packs for
certain future consumption channels. In Europe,
we will continue our initiatives with “slim cans” and
“share size” PET bottles.

We also were able to reignite growth in our lemon-
lime category with the successful introduction of
Sprite Remix last summer, again demonstrating
how brand innovation creates excitement among
consumers and drives incremental growth. We have

brands, by building new brands
with solid marketing efforts and
continued product and package
innovation, and by improving
our outstanding day-to-day exe-
cution in the marketplace;

* We will capture the value we cre-
ate with enhanced revenue man-

We are solidly
positioned in a
growing market sector
with the world’s best
and most popular
beverage brands.

plans for additional soft drink inno-
vation in 2004, such as the full
introduction of a line of Minute
Maid light juice drinks.

Our diet portfolio, which includes
the industry’s most popular diet
brands, contributed significantly to
our performance for the year and

agement principles throughout
our company;

* We will continue to improve our already outstand-
ing customer service, making it even easier for
our customers to do business with us;

We will operate our company at every level in the
most efficient manner possible, exploring every
opportunity within our company and as a system,
thus freeing up system resources to drive growth
by reinvesting against our brands.

BUILDING OUR BRANDS WITH INNOVATION

As we look at our brand portfolio, we must empha-
size the importance of continued package and
product innovation on our growth opportunities
now and in the future. In 2003 for example, we
saw the benefits created by Fridge Pack, which we
rolled out in most North American markets. This
innovative take-home package proved popular with

will, we believe, remain a primary
source of growth. In fact, we moved forward in early
2004 with the addition of diet Coke with lime, which
we believe will be a popular extension of our diet
portfolio. Last year, we achieved growth in our
North American diet portfolio of more than 5 per-
cent, in part due to the excellent performance of
diet Vanilla Coke and diet Cherry Coke, as well as
diet Coke. The success of our diet portfolio, coupled
with continued volume growth of our Dasani water
brand, enabled us to maintain constant volume in
North America while overcoming the extraordi-
nary volume hurdles created by the introduction
of Vanilla Coke in 2002.

Our North American water business continued
to thrive with volume up more than 12 percent in
2003. During the year, we worked to expand our
presence in the high-margin immediate consump-
tion channel, which represents more than 60 percent



of our total water business. We also continued to
build equity in the Dasani brand with significant
package innovations and enhanced marketplace
execution strategies. Enhanced brand equity is essen-
tial in maintaining Dasani’s mid-tier price point as
the water segment continues to be highly competitive.

IMPROVING INTERACTION WITH CUSTOMERS

More than just innovating with new brands, we are
also improving the way we bring our products to
market and the way we interact with our customers.
We’ve made good progress over the past several
years to better meet the needs of our customers, but

Long term, we believe our three-
tier water strategy, featuring Evian
in the premium category, Dasani as
a mid-tier water, and Dannon brands
at the value level, leaves us well-
positioned to meet the challenges
of changing market conditions.

We continued to grow our busi-
ness in Europe in 2003, with volume
up 5% percent for the year. A major-
ity of this growth resulted from
product innovation introduced since
2000, including the 2003 success of
both Vanilla Coke and diet Coke with
lemon. This ongoing innovation
provides momentum for increases
in our core Coca-Cola trademark
brands, and with Fanta and Sprite.
Our volume also was enhanced by
record summer heat throughout
Europe, which helped create the
strongest summer selling season our
system has seen.

Our most important brand inno-
vation in Europe in 2004 will be in

Four Keys to
Our Success:

We will build strong,
prosperous brands with
marketing, innovation,

and outstanding
marketplace execution.

We will capture value
with enhanced
revenue management

philosophies.

We will continue
to improve our
already outstanding
customer service.

We will operate our
company in the most
efficient manner
we possibly can.

much more work remains.

Meeting this objective requires
prompt action to deal with the
changes created by the continued
consolidation in the retail industry.
Already, we’ve very successfully
worked with Coca-Cola North
America to merge our customer
management organizations into a
single unit. This change has been
vital in dealing with the challenges
of consolidation, and enables us to
speak much more clearly as a sys-
tem when we introduce important
new brands, brand extensions, and
packages, and implement our rev-
enue management strategies. We
are simplifying our operating struc-
ture in North America in an effort
to further improve customer service
and efficiency.

We face an emerging challenge
with the public’s heightened con-
cern over health and wellness
issues. Consumers are demanding

the water category, with the intro-
duction of our Dasani brand in both France and
Great Britain. Our strategy, which will also include
relaunching the recently acquired Chaudfontaine
water brand in Belgium, will allow us to improve
our presence efficiently in the highly competitive
European water segment and better serve our cus-
tomers with a more complete beverage portfolio.
We believe this will create positive, long-term bene-
fits for our business.

more beverage choices, and we
must have readily available the products and pack-
ages to accommodate these changing wants and
needs. This is particularly important in the educa-
tion channel, where we have embarked on a “Your
Power to Choose” initiative that enables education
customers to decide which brands and products
best fit their individual needs. With a portfolio that
includes juices and juice drinks, refreshment brands



like Sprite and Coca-Cola classic, and hydration
and energy brands such as Dasani and Powerade,
we are in an excellent position to meet the health
and wellness sensitivities of this channel.

BECOMING MORE EFFICIENT CREATES

NEW RESOURCES

Making certain that we operate, as a company and
as a system, in the most efficient way possible is
essential in meeting our long-term financial objec-
tives. Efficiency gives us additional resources to
invest against our brands, improves our ability to
meet changing or unforeseen market conditions, and
strengthens our bottom line. For example, in 2003
we continued to work with The Coca-Cola Company
and other Coca-Cola bottlers in the development of
the Coca-Cola Bottlers’ Sales & Services organiza-
tion, which streamlines our purchasing activities.
Last year we began to realize the financial benefits
of this organization, as cost of goods trends contin-
ued to be moderate throughout the year.

We also made great progress with Project Pinnacle,
a program to create a world-class information tech-
nology infrastructure that optimizes our interaction
with our customers, our suppliers, and our employ-
ees. Project Pinnacle has been designed to strengthen
our business processes, improve our service levels,
and reduce costs.

In Tampa, Florida, we continued the integration
of multiple, separate administrative functions of
our North American field operations into our
Shared Services Center for all North American
operations. The center creates significant efficien-
cies by managing payroll, accounts payable, and
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other functions previously handled separately by
each of our field divisions.

THE YEAR AHEAD

In summary, our work in 2003 resulted in a very

good financial performance for the year, with excel-

lent progress in several important operational areas.

Looking ahead to 2004, we believe we will continue

this trend of improving results, with solid growth in

operating income and earnings per share. In addi-
tion, we believe we will generate significant free
cash flow, in part by continuing to control capital
expenditures tightly to a level equal to approximately

6 percent of total revenues. We also expect further

improvement in our return on invested capital.
But even with this very solid outlook, we can real-

ize additional gains only if we remain totally open to
change while embracing the same beliefs that have
driven our system for more than 100 years:

* The purpose of our business is to refresh, serve,
and please consumers and customers;

* Everybody involved in the business — including
our customers, our cConsumers, our communities —
deserves genuine value;

* Value depends totally on the integrity and strength
of our brands, and creating exciting, relevant rela-
tionships for the brands with our consumers.
By being mindful of these three important beliefs,

by operating our company with a constant eye for
operational improvement, and by continuing to
improve the way we work together with our business
partners in the Coca-Cola system, we will build on
our solid performance of the last two years and fur-
ther improve the value of our company’s shares.

O SR .~ N

- -

L
JOHN R. ALM

President and Chief Executive Officer



Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Fimancial Highlights
(In millions except per share data) 2003 2002 2001
As Reported

Net Operating Revenue $ 17,330 $ 16,058 $ 14,999
Operating Income $ 1,577 $ 1,364 $ 601
Net Income to Common Shareowners $ 674 $ 491 $ (824
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share® $ 1.46 $ 1.07 $ (0.75)
Comparable Earnings Per Share® $ 1.82 $ 1.03 $ 0.50
Total Market Value® $ 9,967 $ 9,767 $ 8,430
(A) Per share data calculated prior to rounding in millions.
(B) Comparable earnings per share are calculated as follows:
2003 2002 2001
Reported Net Income Applicable to Common Shareowners $ 674 $ 491 $ (324)
Exclude: Gain on Sale of Hot-Fill Facility (5 - -
Exclude: Net Tax Benefit 8) 20 8
Exclude: Net Insurance Proceeds (44) = =
Exclude: Settlement of Pre-Acquisition Contingencies 9) = =
Exclude: Effect of Jumpstart Accounting Change adopted as of January 1, 2001 - - (302)
Exclude: License Intangible Amortization, net of tax - - (249)
Include: Herb Coca-Cola Comparable Net Income - - 6
Comparable Net Income Applicable to Common Shareowners $ 608 $ 471 $ 225
Comparable Shares, Assuming Herb Acquisition as of January 1, 2001 461 458 452
Comparable Earnings Per Share $ 1.32 $ 1.03 $ 0.50

(C) As of December 31, based on common shares issued and outstanding.
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Strategic Initiative ONE

STRENGTHEN
OUR BRANDS

Our brands — already among the strongest,
most recognized in the world — are our greatest asset. By offering
the right products and packages for each consumption occasion,
we will continue to grow the value of our brands for
consumers and our customers.

Pictured at left: Shim Yang (center),
Tacoma, Washington, with customers
Do Kim (left) and Ki Kim.




Strategic Initiative ONE

STRENGTHEN
OUR BRANDS

As today’s consumers demand more choice and value in making beverage
selections, we are responding with a total product portfolio that includes
refreshment brands like Coca-Cola classic and Sprite, and hydration and
energy brands such as Dasani and Powerade.

Our portfolio also includes trademark diet Coke brands, the world’s most popular
diet soft drinks, and an expanding line of juice and juice drinks, including our
Minute Maid and Minute Maid light brand portfolio.

Making these brands even stronger is an essential element of our future success,
both in North America and Europe.

We are building these brands through a combination of innovative packaging,
improved marketing and advertising strategies, and continued product innova-
tion that is timely and meaningful for our consumers.

For example, in 2004 we will bring to selected North American markets package
innovations such as 12-ounce PET bottles in 12-pack Fridge Packs and introduce a
smaller PET bottle in immediate consumption channels. In Europe, we will build

on the success of innovations such as the “slim can” and “share size” PET bottles.

All of our package and brand innovations are designed to meet specific consumer
wants and needs, while enhancing the brand differentiation necessary to drive
profitable growth opportunities.

These actions, coupled with a firm, ongoing commitment to the industry’s best
marketplace execution, will enable us to continue to build equity in our brands and
drive our business forward for the benefit of our customers and our shareowners.

Photos

1. Darin Alexander and Lyle Austin, Seattle, Washington. 2. Don Moberg, Vancouver, British
Columbia. 3. Members of the Racing Club of Lens soccer team, French National Champions League.




BRAND MIX - NORTH AMERICA

Soft Drink Flavors (includes Sprite) 26% Water 5%

]

My Coke* Portfolio 61%

BRAND MIX - EUROPE

I ‘ I | |
Juices/Juice Drinks/Teas 8%

Soft Drink Flavors (includes Fanta) 22%  Water 3%

]

My Coke* Portfolio 67%

*My Coke includes all regular and diet Coca-Cola trademark brands.
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Strategic Initiative TWO

CAPTURE THE
VALUE OF OUR BRANDS

Our goal for revenue management is
clear: deliver the gross profit necessary to absorb
imcreases in our commodity costs and operating

expenses, expand our gross profit margins,
and meet profit targets.




CAPTURE THE
VALUE OF OUR BRANDS

Throughout 2003, Coca-Cola Enterprises maintained a disciplined pricing
strategy that resulted in full-year pricing growth of 2% percent. We also began
to establish a clear, more coordinated approach to revenue management based
on consistent principles at all levels of our company.

This approach is based on two key factors. First, we must further enhance our
ability to create value with our brands, packaging, execution, and product
availability. These elements of our business have always been integral to our
success, but we must execute at an even higher level to distinguish ourselves
and truly please our customers and consumers.

Second, we must capture the value we create with pricing discipline and a clear
understanding of the factors that impact pricing decisions at each level of our
company. Price must relate to the strength of our brands and the value they
deliver to our consumers.

Revenue management is more than just the price we charge for our products.
It is a function of balancing price, package and product mix, and volume mar-
ket by market, channel by channel, and occasion by occasion. However, price
increases, both rate and mix, are essential as we work to expand our profit
margins. The increased revenue generated from our products will remain a
primary focus in our go-to-market strategies.

Photos

1. Steve Johnson and Sheniqua Austin, Atlanta, Georgia. 2. Jarceline Ronelle, Paris, France.
3. Patrick Humphries, London, England (right). 4. Joe Calla, Vancouver, Canada.
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Strategic Initiative THREE

EXCEL AT
CUSTOMER
MANAGEMENT

In an environment of rapid retail consolidation,
we must continue to improve our ability to speak clearly
as a system to our customers, as we expand our package
and product portfolio and implement our
revenue management strategues.

Pictured at left: Doug Souder,
Seattle, Washington.




EXCEL AT
CUSTOMER
MANAGEMENT

As we work to create value through improved revenue management and brand-
building activities, we also must continue to improve and simplify our business
interaction with our customers.

We made excellent progress throughout 2003, successfully working with The
Coca-Cola Company’s North American unit to merge our customer management
organizations, helping us meet new demands of a rapidly consolidating retail
marketplace. Over the past four years, our leadership in customer management
has helped unify the sales efforts of the Coca-Cola system in North America,
helping us move even closer to a seamless system for our customers.

The benefits of this approach are demonstrated by the results of the respected
“Cannondale PowerRanking Survey,” which ranks our company as the leading
beverage industry sales organization and in the top five of all major consumer
goods companies. In Europe, we consistently rank at the top of industry surveys
for customer satisfaction. We will continue to work as a system to identify ways
in which we can become more efficient, including further integrating system
sales management responsibilities and better aligning customer teams at regional
and national levels.

By improving the coordination of our sales efforts, we can improve the marketing
programs and initiatives that we create in conjunction with our customers to better
support our brands. Even at the local level, we have better organized our sales
force to more effectively deal with differing needs of large and small customers.
In each of our divisions, retail account representatives now give supermarket
managers a single point of contact for both sales and merchandising.

As we improve the way we work with our customers, we enhance the value that we
create for them, strengthening relationships and our presence in the marketplace.

Photos

1. Gurmeet Gill (left) and Danielle Wilson (right), London, England, with customer G.S. Deogan.
2. Ronald Crow, Brian Ki Yoova, David Dim, and Dan Budd, Tacoma, Washington.




DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS — NORTH AMERICA
Bottle/Can Cases Other Future Consumption 19%
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Supermarkets 54% Immediate Consumption 27%

DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS — EUROPE

Bottle/Can Cases
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Future Consumption 63% Immediate Consumption 37%







Strategic Initiative FOUR

IMPROVING
SYSTEM EFFICIENCY

Though we are a 100-year-old business that is among
the most successful enterprises in the world, we must constantly
update and renew our processes and procedures and make
certain we are operating with maximum efficiency.

Pictured at left: Nicole Verhille, (top),

Dunkirk, France, production center.




IMPROVING
SYSTEM EFFICIENCY

Our heritage of success for more than a century does not guarantee success in
the future. Each day, we must make certain that our systems, procedures, and
operating philosophy provide us with the most efficient organization possible.

To this end, in 2003 we initiated, in conjunction with The Coca-Cola Company, a
complete review of our business and our systems, examining the very foundation of
the way we operate day to day. This North American initiative will continue in 2004,
and we expect to drive substantial improvements in key aspects of our operations.

This process expands our already substantial efforts to make our company, and the
Coca-Cola system, more efficient. For example, we moved forward in 2003 with the
implementation of the Coca-Cola Bottler Sales & Services organization enabling us,
The Coca-Cola Company, and other Coca-Cola bottlers to become more efficient
and cost-effective in our purchasing. Already, the benefits of this organization have
been evident in the moderate cost of goods trends we realized in 2003.

Other examples include Project Pinnacle, a program to create an improved
information technology infrastructure, which will strengthen our ability to serve
our customers, interact with our suppliers, and support our employees. Also, our
Tampa Shared Services Center is creating significant administrative efficiencies
throughout North America.

Each of these initiatives represents excellent progress. But we believe there is room
for much more progress...if we remain open to change and are willing to make
the commitment to implement meaningful and beneficial system improvements.

We have that commitment, and believe there are significant opportunities for
even greater efficiency in the year ahead.

Photos

1. (left to right) Helen Green, Paul Grace, Carl Carlson, Marie Sloan, London, England.
2. (left to right) Zoe Nettle, Robert Dawkins, Anna Henry, Poyle, England.
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GEOGRAPHIC CASE DISTRIBUTION
[+
43 billion bottles and cans (2.0 billion physical bottle and can cases) E“mpT 24%
|
| T
United States 70% Canada 6%

EUROPEAN CASE DISTRIBUTION
0, (<)
10 billion bottles and cans (495 million physical bottle and can cases) FranCT 25% The Netherands 9%
l |
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Geographic data is based on physical case volume.



GREAT

BRITAIN
Germany
" ——THE NETHERLANDS
Ssels* e gium
— LUXEMBOURG
......... Coca-Cola Enterprises Operations B E
North Switzerland . Austria
ort FRANCE
American | European TOTAL

Group Group | Company Italy

POPULATION 260 M 145 M 405 M

PHYSICAL CASES 158 495 M 20B

EMPLOYEES 63,000 11,000 74,000
FACILITIES® 409 31 440
PER CAPITA

CONSUMPTION® 306 184 262

W Facilities include 18 production, 345 sales/distribution,
and 46 combination in North America, and 4 production,
16 sales/distribution, and 11 combination in Europe.

@ Number of 8-ounce servings consumed per person per year.

PACKAGE DISTRIBUTION — NORTH AMERICA
20-Ounce PET 14% Other 11%

Cans 62% 2-Liter PET 13%

PACKAGE DISTRIBUTION - EUROPE

Large PET (1-liter or greater) 35% 500-ml PET 13%

Cans 37% Other 15%
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Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.

Board of Directors

Coca-Cola Enterprises is committed to upholding the highest standards of
corporate governance. Full information about our governance objectives
and policies, as well as our board of directors, committee charters, and
other data, is available on our website, www.cokecce.com.

Front row, left to right: John E. Jacob, Paula G. Rosput, John R. Alm, John L. Clendenin, Howard G. Buffett, and
Deval L. Patrick. Standing, left to right: Lowry F. Kline, Jean-Claude Killy, Summerfield K. Johnston, Jr., L. Phillip Humann,
Steven J. Heyer, Calvin Darden, J. Trevor Eyton, Marvin J. Herb, James E. Copeland, Jr., and Gary P. Fayard.

John R. Alm*

President and Chief Executive Officer
COCA-COLA ENTERPRISES INC.

Howard G. Buffett* >’

President
BIOIMAGES

John L. Clendenin »*®

Chairman Emeritus
BELLSOUTH CORPORATION

James E. Copeland, Jr."*
Former Chief Executive Officer
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DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU
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Senior Vice President, U.S. Operations
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. (UPS)

J. Trevor Eyton*?
Director
BRASCAN CORPORATION
Senator
THE SENATE OF CANADA
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Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

THE COCA-COLA COMPANY
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President and Chief Operating Officer
THE COCA-COLA COMPANY
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SUNTRUST BANKS, INC.
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Global Communications
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COCA-COLA ENTERPRISES INC.

24

Jean-Claude Killy®

Former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
THE COMPANY OF THE TOUR DE FRANCE

Lowry F. Kline®*°
Chairman of the Board
COCA-COLA ENTERPRISES INC.

Deval L. Patrick®

Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary

THE COCA-COLA COMPANY

Paula G. Rosput®’
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
AGL RESOURCES INC.
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2. Audit Committee
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4. Executive Committee
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7. Retirement Plan Review Committee
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Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.

Overview

2003 OVERVIEW

Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.’s (CCE) strong financial per-
formance continued in 2003. Our net income applicable to
common shareowners increased to $674 million, or $1.46
per diluted common share in 2003, compared to net
income applicable to common shareowners of $491 million,
or $1.07 per diluted common share in 2002. We achieved
this improved performance through our strong commit-
ment to value creation, including enhanced brand building
activities and a clear, company-wide strategy for revenue
management. We also benefited from favorable currency
exchange rates and lower interest rates.

Revenue Growth

Our commitment to improved revenue management
resulted in North American pricing growth of 2 percent
and European pricing growth of approximately 2% percent
for the year. Continued innovations in brand extensions
and new packaging resulted in consolidated volume
growth of 1% percent with North American volume flat
and European volume up 5% percent.

In North America, growth in diet soft drink brands,
strong sales of Dasani, and lemon-lime category growth
from the introduction of Sprite Remix were offset by
slower sales of regular soft drinks and our inability to
match the strong 2002 volume levels attributable to the
introduction of Vanilla Coke. The North American rein-
troduction of diet Cherry Coke and the introduction
of diet Vanilla Coke in 2002 re-energized our diet cola
portfolio in 2003. The introduction of Sprite Remix
was responsible for a 6 percent increase in volume in
the lemon-lime category for the year. We believe we
have continued to build strong brand equity and are
positioned for volume growth in 2004.

We continued the roll-out of Fridge Pack, a new
packaging design, in our North American territories.
Consumers buy more Fridge Packs at higher prices com-
pared to our traditional 12-pack packaging because of
the added value and functionality of the package. This
added value is helping our efforts to achieve both volume
and pricing growth over the long term.

European volume grew 5% percent, primarily due to
record-setting temperatures during the summer months
and new brand introductions. The European introductions
of diet Coke with lemon in 2002 and diet Vanilla Coke
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in 2003 contributed to a 12 percent volume increase in
Europe’s diet cola portfolio. The introduction of Vanilla
Coke in Europe was responsible for a 3 percent increase
in volume in Europe’s sugar cola category.

Our European group grew volume in our take-home
channel with a 7 percent increase in 2-liter PET volume.
Our European higher margin immediate consumption
business continued to grow with a 4 percent increase in
330-ml can volume and a 16 percent increase in 500-ml
PET volume.

Expense Management

We continued our commitment to closely manage our
costs and moderate operating expense growth. Our con-
tinued commitment to new processes that will ultimately
improve our profitability include our ongoing Project
Pinnacle and shared services initiatives.

Project Pinnacle, our multi-year effort to redesign
business processes and implement the SAP software plat-
form, is progressing favorably in achieving our objective
of enhancing shareowner value by (i) developing standard
global processes, (ii) increasing information capabilities,
and (iii) providing system flexibility. The project covers all
functional areas of our business and is staffed with repre-
sentatives from both Europe and North America. Our first
stage of financial systems and processes implementation
was completed for Canada, along with our supply chain
system and processes for one of our manufacturing facilities
in France in fourth quarter 2003. Complete roll-out
of financial systems and processes in North America is
projected to occur in the third quarter of 2004. Financial
systems and processes implementation in certain European
territories will commence in the fourth quarter of 2004.
We anticipate our implementation of the initial phase will
be executed over multiple years. Including the costs of
our internal resources assigned to the project, we incurred
approximately $113 million in implementation costs during
2003, $75 million of which were capital costs. The estimated
capital costs of this project total approximately $215 million
and we have incurred approximately $115 million of
that through 2003.

We expect to recover our investment in this project by
sustaining lower administrative costs, reducing the com-
plexity of our core transaction systems, improving the
speed at which new or enhanced systems are delivered,
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increasing our information capabilities for customers and
suppliers, and providing flexibility for changes from the
business environment with minimal disruptions to our
existing business.

We continued migration of certain administrative,
financial, and accounting functions for all of our North
American divisions into a single shared services center
located in Tampa, Florida. This consolidation has
resulted in improved efficiencies, enhanced consistency
of practices, and improved information delivery from
€OMMON Processes.

Licensee of The Coca-Cola Company

Our relationship with The Coca-Cola Company (TCCC)
has a great impact on our success. We recently participated
in a strategic planning project with TCCC to more closely
align our businesses. Under this project, we evaluated all
aspects of our operations, including all elements of our
supply chain as well as our information services and sales
organizations, to ensure we are effective and efficient in
achieving our profitability targets. As a result of the pro-
ject, we are pursuing various initiatives going forward to
simplify our relationship with TCCC, make transactions
more transparent, and better align our economic interests
to enhance our focus on building brand equity.

2004 OUTLOOK

Our plans for 2004 are categorized into four key areas of

emphasis we have identified as essential to improve our

business performance.

* First, we are working to strengthen our brands. We must
constantly focus on building brand equity and creating
demand for our brands.

Secondly, we will improve revenue management, a func-
tion of price, brand equity, innovation, and the value we
create. We have named a chief revenue officer for North
America to lead our commitment to this initiative.

Thirdly, we will improve our customer management capa-
bilities. We will strive to become an even better partner to
our customers, both in terms of service and profitability,
and help them grow their businesses as we grow ours.

Finally, we will become even more efficient and cost
effective. The creation of Coca-Cola Bottlers’ Sales and
Services Company (CCBSS), our goals under Project
Pinnacle, and the creation of our shared services center
have all contributed to this initiative in 2003. We will
continue to identify ways to become more efficient and
cost effective as we plan for the future.

Overview

We are projecting we will achieve operating income for
2004 in a range of $1.56 billion to $1.58 billion as compared
to 2003 comparable operating income of $1.49 billion. This
expectation includes the impact of a significant increase
in pension expense and difficult growth comparisons in
our European territory which will negatively impact 2004
growth. We project cash flows from operations will be
slightly lower in 2004 than 2003, primarily as a result of
higher cash taxes as well as the increased pension contri-
butions expected to be paid in 2004.

Earnings per diluted common share are expected to
grow to a range of $1.42 to $1.46 as compared to 2003
comparable earnings per diluted common share of $1.32,
excluding the impact of various items. Our overall capital
spending will continue to be managed to approximately
6 percent of net operating revenues, for a total of approxi-
mately $1.15 billion. Net income is expected to be in the
range of $653 million to $672 million.

For North America, our goal is to achieve volume
growth of approximately 1) percent and net price per
case growth of approximately 2)4 percent from our con-
tinued emphasis on revenue management. We expect
our North American cost of goods per case to increase
approximately 2 percent including the impact of package
mix shifts and a 2 percent increase in our concentrate
price from TCCC.

For Europe, our goals are volume growth of approxi-
mately 1% percent and 2 percent currency neutral net
price per case growth. We expect our European cost of
goods per case to increase approximately 2 pecent on a
currency neutral basis including the impact of a 2/ per-
cent increase in our concentrate price from TCCC.

Immediately following, the audited financial statements
and related footnotes are presented in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States for your analysis. Following these is Management'’s
Financial Review of 2003 and 2002 presenting manage-
ment’s discussion and analysis in accordance with the
financial reporting guidelines and requirements of the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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. . Audited
Financial Statements

Report of Management

Management has prepared the accompanying consolidated
financial statements appearing in this Annual Report and
is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. The con-
solidated financial statements, including amounts that are
based on management’s best estimates and judgment,
have been prepared in conformity with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the United States and are free
of material misstatement. Management also prepared
other information in this Annual Report and is responsi-
ble for its accuracy and consistency with the consolidated
financial statements.

Management maintains a system of internal accounting
controls and procedures over financial reporting designed
to provide reasonable assurance, at an appropriate cost/
benefit relationship, that assets are safeguarded and that
transactions are authorized, recorded, and reported prop-
erly. The internal accounting control system is augmented
by a program of internal audits and reviews by manage-
ment, written policies and guidelines, careful selection
and training of qualified personnel, and a written Code
of Business Conduct adopted by the Board of Directors
applicable to all employees of CCE and our subsidiaries.
Management believes that our internal accounting controls
provide reasonable assurance (i) that assets are safeguarded
against material loss from unauthorized use or disposition

Patrick J. Mannelly
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

John R. Alm

President and Chief Executive Officer

Atlanta, Georgia
February 6, 2004
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and (ii) that the financial records are reliable for preparing
consolidated financial statements and other data and
maintaining accountability for assets.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, com-
posed solely of directors who are not officers of CCE or
The Coca-Cola Company, meets periodically with the
independent auditors, management, and the CCE officer
directing internal audit to discuss internal accounting
control, auditing, and financial reporting matters. The
Committee reviews with the independent auditors the
scope and results of the audit effort. The Committee also
meets with the independent auditors and our Vice President
of Internal Audit, without management present, to ensure
that the independent auditors and our Vice President of
Internal Audit have free access to the Committee.

The independent auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, are hired
by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and
ratified by our shareowners. Ernst & Young LLP is engaged
to audit the consolidated financial statements of Coca-Cola
Enterprises Inc. and subsidiaries and conduct such tests and
related procedures as Ernst & Young LLP deems necessary
in conformity with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States. The opinion of the independent
auditors, based upon their audit of the consolidated
financial statements, is contained in this Annual Report.

Rick L. Engum

Vice President, Controller and
Principal Accounting Officer
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Board of Directors, Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc. as of December 31,
2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements
of income, shareowners’ equity, and cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2003. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presen-
tation. We believe our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

Report of Ernst & Young LLE, Independent Auditors

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Coca-Cola Enterprises
Inc. at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, effective January 1, 2001, the Company
changed its method of accounting for certain licensor
support payments. Also, as discussed in Note 18, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” effective January 1, 2002.

St +

Atlanta, Georgia
February 6, 2004

LLP
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""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" Consolidated Statements of Income

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 2003 2002 2001
Net operating revenues $17,330 $16,058 $14,999
Cost of sales 10,165 9,458 9,015
Gross profit 7,165 6,600 5,984
Selling, delivery, and administrative expenses 5,588 5,236 5,383
Operating income 1,577 1,364 601
Interest expense, net 607 662 753
Other nonoperating income, net 2 3 2
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change 972 705 (150)
Income tax expense (benefit) 296 211 (131)
Net income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change 676 494 (19)
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of taxes - - (302)
Net income (loss) 676 494 (321)
Preferred stock dividends 2 3 3
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners $ 674 $ 491 $ (324)
Basic net income (loss) per share applicable to common shareowners 1.48 $ 1.09 $ (0.75)
Diluted net income (loss) per share applicable to common shareowners 1.46 $ 1.07 $ (0.75)
Income (expense) amounts from transactions with The Coca-Cola Company — Note 16:

Net operating revenues $ 466 $ 528 $ 450

Cost of sales (4,453) (4,178) (3,862)

Selling, delivery, and administrative expenses 23 4 (44)
Pro forma net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners after applying the licensor

support payments accounting change to periods prior to 2002 - Note 2 $ 674 $ 491 $ (22

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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----------------------------------------------------------- Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(IN MILLIONS) 2003 2002 2001
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income (loss) $ 676 $ 494 $ (321)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash derived from operating activities:
Depreciation 1,022 965 901
Amortization 75 59 432
Deferred cash payments from The Coca-Cola Company (TCCC) (72) (74) 93
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 237 138 (242)
Retirement plan contributions in excess of pension expense (107) (27) (54)
Cumulative effect of accounting change - = 302
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisition amounts:
Trade accounts and other receivables (75) (121) (88)
Inventories (6) (29) (42)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (141) (13) 43
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 292 45 188
Other (96) (51) (126)
Net cash derived from operating activities 1,805 1,386 1,086
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Capital asset investments (1,099) (1,029) (972)
Capital asset disposal proceeds, $58 million from TCCC in 2003 95 23 5
Investments in bottling operations, net of cash acquired (13) (30) (1,011)
Other investing activities - (3) 4)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,017) (1,039) (1,982)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
(Decrease) increase in commercial paper, net (817) (288) 325
Issuance of long-term debt 913 1,739 1,297
Payments on long-term debt (857) (1,971) (676)
Common stock purchases for treasury - - 8)
Dividend payments on common and preferred stock (74) (75) (72)
Exercise of employee stock options 30 32 20
Interest rate swap settlement 29 - -
Net cash (used in) derived from financing activities (776) (563) 886
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Investments 12 (216) (10)
Cash and cash investments at beginning of year 68 284 294
Cash and Cash Investments at End of Year $ 80 $ 68 $ 284
Supplemental Noncash Investing and Financing Activities
Investments in bottling operations:
Fair values of assets acquired $ 27 $ 30 $1,719
Debt issued and assumed (3) - (15)
Other liabilities assumed (11) - (289)
Equity issued - - (404)
Cash paid, net of cash acquired $ 13 $ 30 $1,011
Interest paid $ 620 $ 662 $ 740
Income taxes (refunded) paid, net (1) 33 15

The accompanying Noles to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" Consolidated Balance Sheets

DECEMBER 31,

(IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 2003 2002
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash investments, at cost approximating market $ 80 $ 68
Trade accounts receivable, less allowance reserves of $52 and $60, respectively 1,735 1,661
Amounts receivable from The Coca-Cola Company, net 37 20
Inventories:
Finished goods 475 464
Raw materials and supplies 250 255
725 719
Current deferred income tax assets 42 51
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 381 325
Total Current Assets 3,000 2,844
Property, Plant, and Equipment
Land 445 424
Buildings and improvements 2,064 1,869
Machinery and equipment 10,743 9,552
13,252 11,845
Less allowances for depreciation 6,729 5,638
6,523 6,207
Construction in progress 271 186
Net Property, Plant, and Equipment 6,794 6,393
Goodwill 578 578
License Intangible Assets, Net 14,171 13,450
Customer Distribution Rights and Other Noncurrent Assets, Net 1,157 1,110
$25,700 $24,375
LIABILITIES AND SHAREOWNERS' EQUITY
Current
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 2,760 $ 2,588
Deferred cash payments from The Coca-Cola Company 87 80
Current portion of long-term debt 1,094 787
Total Current Liabilities 3,941 3,455
Long-Term Debt, Less Current Maturities 10,552 11,236
Retirement and Insurance Programs and Other Long-Term Obligations 1,522 1,372
Deferred Cash Payments from The Coca-Cola Company, Less Current 355 426
Long-Term Deferred Income Tax Liabilities 4,965 4,539
Shareowners’ Equity
Preferred stock - 37
Common stock, $1 par value — Authorized - 1,000,000,000 shares;

Issued — 462,084,668 and 458,215,369 shares, respectively 462 458
Additional paid-in capital 2,611 2,581
Reinvested earnings 1,241 639
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 133 (236)
Common stock in treasury, at cost — 6,330,513 and 8,515,072 shares, respectively (82) (132)

Total Shareowners’ Equity 4,365 3,347
$25,700 $24,375

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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----------------------------------------------- Consolidated Statements of Shareowners’ Equity

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 2003 2002 2001

Preferred Stock

Balance at beginning of year $ 37 $ 37 $ 44
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock (37) — (7)

Balance at end of year - 37 37

Common Stock

Balance at beginning of year 458 453 450
Exercise of employee stock options 3 4 3
Issuance of management stock performance awards 1 1 -

Balance at end of year 462 458 453

Additional Paid-in Capital

Balance at beginning of year 2,581 2,527 2,673
Issuance of management stock performance awards 29 17 6
Unamortized cost of management stock performance awards (30 (18) (6)
Issuance of stock under deferred compensation plans (6) = 2
Expense amortization of management stock performance awards 11 7 7
Exercise of employee stock options 25 28 17
Realized tax benefit on management stock performance awards 9 16 11
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock (9) - 2
Conversion of executive deferred compensation to equity 1 2 5
Issuance of shares to effect acquisitions - - (190)
Other changes - 2 -

Balance at end of year 2,611 2,581 2,527

Reinvested Earnings

Balance at beginning of year 639 220 613
Dividends on common stock (per share — $0.16 in 2003, 2002, and 2001) (72) (72) (69)
Dividends on preferred stock (2) (3) (3)
Net income (loss) 676 494 (321)

Balance at end of year 1,241 639 220

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Balance at beginning of year (236) (292) (230)
Currency translations 572 219 40
Hedges of net investments (86) (77) (24)
Gains/losses on cash flow hedges 4 5 -
Minimum pension liability adjustments (106) (105) (78)
Gains/losses on securities (7) 14 -

Net other comprehensive income adjustments, net of taxes 369 56 (62)

Balance at end of year 133 (236) (292)

Treasury Stock

Balance at beginning of year (132) (125) (716)
Issuance of stock under deferred compensation plans 4 - -
Purchase of common stock for treasury - - (8)
Issuance and (refund) of shares to effect acquisitions, net - (7) 594
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock 46 - 5

Balance at end of year (82) (132) (125)

Total Shareowners’ Equity $4,365 $3,347 $2,820

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Net income (loss) $ 676 $ 494 $ (321)
Net other comprehensive income adjustments 369 56 (62)
Total comprehensive income (loss) $1,045 $ 550 $ (383)

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ave an integral part of these statements.
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Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company’s Business: Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc. (“CCE,”
“we,” “our,” “us,” or “the Company”) is the world’s
largest marketer, distributor, and producer of bottle and
can nonalcoholic beverages. We distribute our bottle and
can products to customers and consumers in the United
States and Canada through license territories in 46 states
in the United States, the District of Columbia, and the
10 provinces of Canada. We are also the sole licensed
bottler for products of The Coca-Cola Company (TCCC)
in Belgium, continental France, Great Britain, Luxembourg,
Monaco, and the Netherlands.

Basis of Presentation: The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of CCE and our majority-owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions are eliminated in consolidation. Our fiscal
year ends on December 31. For interim quarterly report-
ing convenience, we report on the Friday closest to the
end of the quarterly calendar period. The financial state-
ments and accompanying notes prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States (GAAP) include estimates and assumptions made
by management that affect reported amounts. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications: Classifications in the 2002 and 2001
Consolidated Statements of Income have been conformed
to classifications used in the current year under Emerging
Issues Task Force (EITF) No. 02-16, “Accounting by a
Customer (Including a Reseller) for Cash Consideration
Received from a Vendor.” Upon adoption of EITF 02-16
in 2003, we classified the following amounts in the 2002
and 2001 income statements as reductions in cost of
sales: approximately $882 million and $651 million of
direct marketing support from TCCC and other licensors
previously included in net operating revenues, and
approximately $77 million and $74 million of cold drink
equipment placement funding from TCCC previously
included as a reduction in selling, delivery, and adminis-
trative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively. We also classified in net operating
revenues $51 million and $45 million of net payments
for dispensing equipment repair services received from

34

TCCC, previously included in selling, delivery, and
administrative expenses for the years ended December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

Classifications in the 2001 Consolidated Statement of
Income were also conformed to classifications used in
2003 and 2002 under EITF No. 01-09, “Accounting for
Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer or Reseller
of the Vendor’s Products.” EITF 01-09 requires certain
payments made to customers by us, previously classified
as selling expenses, to be classified as deductions from
revenue. For 2001, we classified as deductions in net
operating revenues approximately $95 million of pay-
ments made to customers, previously classified as selling,
delivery, and administrative expenses.

Classifications in the 2002 and 2001 Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows have been conformed to classi-
fications used in the current year for payments and
amortization expense associated with contracts for pouring
or vending rights in specific athletic venues, specific school
districts, or other locations. Refer to the “Marketing
Programs and Sales Incentives” discussion in Note 1,
Significant Accounting Policies, for additional informa-
tion on these classifications. In addition, classifications in
the 2002 and 2001 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
have been conformed to classifications used in the current
year for the presentation of retirement plan contributions
in excess of pension expense.

Revenue Recognition: We recognize net revenues from the
sale of our products when legal title transfers to the cus-
tomer and in the case of full service vending, when we
collect cash from vending machines. We earn service
revenues for equipment maintenance and production
when services are performed.

Cash Investments: Cash investments include all highly liquid
investments purchased with original maturity dates less
than three months. The fair value of cash and cash
investments approximates the amounts shown in the
financial statements.

Credit Risk and Sale of Accounts Receivable: We sell our products
to chain stores and other customers and extend credit,
generally without requiring collateral, based on an evalua-
tion of the customer’s financial condition. Potential losses
on receivables are dependent on each individual customer’s
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financial condition and sales adjustments granted after the
balance sheet date. We monitor our exposure to losses
on receivables and maintain allowances for potential losses
or adjustments. Our accounts receivable are typically col-
lected within approximately 40 days.

We have an agreement in Canada whereby designated
revolving pools of accounts receivable may be sold with
recourse at a discount to a Canadian special purpose
trust. At any given time, the maximum capacity available
under this agreement is $75 million Canadian dollars
(approximately $58 million and $48 million U.S. dollars,
at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively). At
December 31, 2003 and 2002, we had sold the maximum
capacity of receivables available under this agreement,
and this amount is excluded from the accompanying
balance sheets in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 140 (FAS 140), “Accounting
for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishment of Liabilities.” We retain collection and
administrative responsibilities for the accounts receivable
sold. We believe the benefits of the arrangement more
than offset the cost of retaining servicing responsibilities
and receiving a discounted payment for the accounts
receivable. Our liability to service the receivables sold is
indistinguishable from other collection responsibilities
and is not separately recorded as a liability. Our recourse
liability is limited to the requirement to repurchase any
balance that ceases to be a part of the designated pool.

Inventories: We value our inventories at the lower of cost or
market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
(FIFO) method.

Property, Plant, and Equipment: Property, plant, and equipment
are stated at cost. Depreciation expense is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of 20 to 40 years for buildings and improvements and
three to 20 years for machinery and equipment. Leasehold
improvements are amortized over the shorter of the asset’s
life or the remaining contractual lease term.

Income Taxes: We provide for income taxes under Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109 (FAS 109),
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” FAS 109 requires the
recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets for the
expected future tax consequences of temporary differ-
ences between the financial statement carrying amounts
and the tax bases of assets and liabilities.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

License Intangible Assets, Net: License intangible agreements
contain performance requirements and convey to the
licensee the rights to distribute and sell products of the
licensor within specified territories. The majority of our
license intangible agreements are perpetual, reflecting a
long and ongoing relationship with TCCC. Our agree-
ments covering our European and Canadian operations
are not perpetual because TCCC does not grant perpetual
license intangible rights outside the United States. We
believe these agreements will continue to be renewed at
each expiration date with minimal cost and, therefore,
are essentially perpetual.

Before 2002, license intangible assets were amortized on
a straight-line basis over 40 years, the maximum period
allowed under GAAP. As of January 1, 2002, under the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142 (FAS 142), “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,”
we no longer amortize our license intangible and goodwill
assets. The assets are evaluated for impairment annually,
or more frequently if facts and circumstances indicate
they may be impaired. For license intangible assets, the
impairment evaluation involves comparing the estimated
fair values, as determined using estimated future discounted
cash flows associated with the asset, to the asset’s carrying
amount to determine if a write-down to fair value is
required. The goodwill asset impairment evaluation involves
comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its car-
rying value, including goodwill. Accumulated license
intangible amortization amounted to $3,183 million and
$3,078 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively,
with the difference between years resulting from the
effects of foreign currency translations.

Insurance Programs: In general, we are self-insured for costs of
workers’ compensation, casualty, and health and welfare
claims. We use commercial insurance on casualty and
workers’ compensation claims for risk reduction to minimize
catastrophic losses. Workers’ compensation and casualty
losses are estimated using actuarial procedures of the
insurance industry and industry assumptions adjusted for
CCE-specific expectations based on historical facts.

Management Stock-Based Compensation Plans: We account for
stock-based compensation plans under Accounting
Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25 and related
Interpretations, as permitted by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123 (FAS 123), “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation.” As part of our overall
management compensation program, we issue stock
compensation awards to key executives and employees.
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Foreign Currency Translations: Assets and liabilities of interna-
tional operations are translated from local currencies into
U.S. dollars at the approximate rate of currency exchange
at the end of the fiscal period. Gains and losses from trans-
lations of foreign entities are included in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) as a component of share-
owners’ equity. Revenues and expenses are translated at
average monthly exchange rates. Transaction gains and
losses arising from exchange rate fluctuations on trans-
actions denominated in a currency other than the local
functional currency are included in results of operations.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments and Derivatives: The fair values
of financial instruments and derivatives are estimated based
on market rates. The fair values of long-term debt are
calculated based on debt with the same maturities and
credit quality and current market interest rates. The esti-
mated fair values of derivative instruments are calculated
based on market rates. These values represent the estimated
amounts we would receive or pay to terminate agreements,
taking into consideration current market rates. Market
conditions and counterparty creditworthiness might also
factor into the values received or paid should there be
an actual unwinding of any of these positions.

Derivative Financial Instruments: We use interest rate swap agree-
ments and other risk management instruments to manage
the fluctuation of interest rates on our fixed/floating debt
portfolio. We also use currency swap agreements, forward
agreements, options, and other risk management instru-
ments to minimize the impact of exchange rate changes
on our nonfunctional currency cash flows and to protect
the value of our net investments in foreign operations.
On January 1, 2001, we adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 133 (FAS 133), “Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as
amended. Upon adoption of this statement, all derivative
financial instruments in the consolidated financial state-
ments are recognized at fair value. We recognized a charge,
net of tax, of approximately $26 million in accumulated
other comprehensive income during the first quarter of
2001 from the adoption of FAS 133.

Hedges entered into by us can be categorized as fair
value, cash flow, or net investment hedges. We enter into
fair value hedges to mitigate exposure to changes in the
fair value of fixed rate debt resulting from fluctuations in
interest rates. Effective changes in the fair values of des-
ignated and qualifying fair value hedges are recognized
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in earnings as offsets to changes in the fair value of the
related hedged liabilities.

We enter into cash flow hedges to mitigate exposures to
changes in the cash flows attributable to certain forecasted
transactions such as international raw material purchases
and payments on certain foreign currency debt obligations.
Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments
are recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
income. Amounts recognized in accumulated other com-
prehensive income are then subsequently reversed to
earnings in the same periods the forecasted purchases
or payments affect earnings. Changes in fair value from
ineffectiveness of cash flow hedges are recognized in
other nonoperating income, net in the Consolidated
Statements of Income.

We enter into certain nonfunctional currency borrowings
as net investment hedges of international subsidiaries. We do
not hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes.

Marketing Programs and Sales Incentives: We participate in various
programs and arrangements with customers to increase
the sale of our products by these customers. Among the
programs negotiated with customers are arrangements
under which allowances can be earned by the customer
for attaining agreed-upon sales levels and/or for partici-
pating in specific marketing programs. Coupon programs
and under-the-cap promotions are also developed on a
territory-specific basis with the intent of increasing sales
by all customers. The cost of all of these various programs,
included as deductions in net operating revenues, totaled
approximately $1,729 million, $1,484 million, and
$1,314 million in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
The increase in the cost of these programs is primarily
due to volume increases, the impact of foreign currency
translation, and our increased focus on improved revenue
management in 2003.

Beginning in 2002, all costs associated with customer
cooperative trade marketing programs (CTM), excluding
certain identified customers, shifted to us, and all costs
for local media programs in North America shifted to
TCCC. Net operating revenues, which include allowances
for CTM, and selling, delivery, and administrative expenses,
which included local media expense in 2001, in each case
would have been approximately $46 million lower had
this arrangement been in place in 2001. The shift of CTM
and local media costs impacts income statement compar-
isons between 2003, 2002, and 2001. The impact of this
shift on 2003, 2002, and future operating income is
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dependent upon the levels of our CTM spending. We
believe our participation in these programs is essential
to ensuring continued volume and revenue growth in
the competitive marketplace.

We also participate in contractual arrangements for
pouring or vending rights in specific athletic venues, specific
school districts, or other locations. The net unamortized
balance of these arrangements at December 31, 2003,
included in other noncurrent assets, totaled approximately
$536 million (consisting of gross amounts of approximately
$922 million net of $386 million in accumulated amorti-
zation). Amortization expense on these assets, included as
deductions in net operating revenues, totaled approximately
$143 million, $128 million, and $89 million in 2003, 2002,
and 2001, respectively. Estimated amortization expense for
assets existing at December 31, 2003 for the next five fiscal
years is as follows (in millions): 2004 — $127; 2005 — $115;
2006 — $104; 2007 — $92; and 2008 — $79.

At December 31, 2003, the liability associated with these
arrangements totaled approximately $435 million, $99 mil-
lion of which is included in accounts payable and accrued
expenses and $336 million of which is included in other
long-term obligations. Cash payments on these obligations
totaled approximately $82 million, $79 million, and $59 mil-
lion in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. Over the next
five years and thereafter, future payments required under
these contractual arrangements are as follows (in millions):
2004 — $99; 2005 — $89; 2006 — $78; 2007 — $105; 2008 —
$55; and thereafter — $9. For presentation purposes, amor-
tization expense included in the Consolidated Statements
of Cash Flows is reduced by the amount of cash payments
made under these arrangements.

Marketing Costs and Support Arrangements: We participate in various
programs supported by TCCC or other licensors. Under
these programs, certain costs incurred by us are reimbursed
by the applicable licensor.

Payments from TCCC and other licensors for marketing
programs and other similar arrangements to promote the
sale of products are classified as a reduction of cost of sales.
Payments for marketing programs to promote the sale of
licensed products are recognized in cost of sales either in
the period payments are specified for or on a per unit basis
over the year as product is sold. Payments for annual
marketing programs are recognized as product is sold;
periodic programs are recognized in the periods for which
they are specified. Support payments from licensors
received in connection with market or infrastructure
development are classified as a reduction of cost of sales.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Prior to January 1, 2001, payments from TCCC under
the Jumpstart programs were recognized as an offset to
incremental expenses of the programs in the periods the
support payments were specified for. Effective January 1,
2001, with implementation of the change in accounting
method, infrastructure cost payments from TCCC are recog-
nized as cold drink equipment is placed, and over the period
we have the potential requirement to move equipment.

Note 2
CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING METHOD

As of January 1, 2001, we changed our method of account-
ing for infrastructure development payments received from
TCCC under our cold-drink Jumpstart programs, market
development programs that began in 1994 designed to
accelerate placements of cold drink equipment.

Under these programs, we received payments from
TCCC for infrastructure development. The Jumpstart
agreements specified the periods payments were designated
for and the amounts of such payments. The agreements
did not specify which infrastructure costs we were to incur
or when the costs were to be incurred, and incurring those
costs did not give us rights to reimbursement. Prior to this
change, these payments were recognized as an offset to
operating expenses as incurred in the period for which the
payments were designated. We now recognize the payments
received under these programs as we meet the requirements
of the programs. These requirements principally consist
of equipment placements in our license territories as well
as potential requirements to move equipment to ensure
sufficient sales volumes are achieved during the life of
the equipment. We changed to this preferred method of
accounting because it defers recognition of cash payments
received to give accounting recognition to the equipment
placement requirements and the potential requirement
to move equipment under the programs.

The contracts under the programs were amended on
occasion over the period since inception of the programs
in 1994, primarily to add additional and acquired license
territories. The current agreements require us to place
approximately 814,000 pieces of cold drink equipment
over the period from 2004 to 2008. There are no addi-
tional funding amounts due under the programs.

Under the programs, we agree to: (1) purchase and
place specified numbers of venders/coolers or cold drink
equipment each year through 2008; (2) maintain the equip-
ment in service, with certain exceptions, for a period of
at least 12 years after placement; (3) maintain and stock
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the equipment in accordance with specified standards
for marketing TCCC products; and (4) report to TCCC
during the period the equipment is in service whether,
on average the equipment purchased under the programs
has generated a stated minimum sales volume of TCCC
products. Our principal obligation under the programs
is to purchase and place equipment. Requirements to
maintain equipment in service for a minimum number
of years, to maintain certain flavor set standards, and to
report volumes are operating standards of CCE per-
formed in the normal course of business.

We also agree to relocate equipment if it is not generat-
ing sufficient volume to meet the minimum requirements.
Movement of the equipment is required only if it is
determined that, on average, sufficient volume is not being
generated and it would help to ensure our performance
under the programs. It was not necessary to move equip-
ment solely to meet this volume requirement through 2003.

Under the agreements, should we fail to meet the
cumulative purchase requirements of the programs for
any calendar year, the parties agree to mutually develop
a reasonable solution/alternative. Should no mutually
agreeable solution be developed, or in the event that we
otherwise breach any material obligation under the con-
tracts and such breach is not remedied within a stated
period, then we might be required to repay portions of
the support funding as determined by formulas. CCE and
TCCC have, from time to time, amended the requirements
of the programs after evaluating progress in the market-
place and no refunds have ever been paid. The Coca-Cola
Company has agreed we are in compliance with the pro-
grams through 2003 and we believe we would in all cases
resolve any matters that might arise regarding these
programs. We believe that the probability of a partial refund
of amounts previously paid under the program is remote.

Under the current accounting method, the support
payments are allocated to equipment units based on per
unit funding amounts. The amount allocated to the require-
ment to place equipment is the balance remaining after
determining the potential cost of moving the equipment
after placement. The amount allocated to the requirement
to place equipment is recognized as the equipment is
placed. The amount allocated to the potential cost of
moving placed equipment will be recognized on a straight-
line basis over the 12-year in-service requirement under
the agreements beginning after the equipment is placed.
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The amount allocated to the potential cost of moving
placed equipment was determined based on an estimate
of the units of equipment that could potentially be moved
after 2003 and an estimate of the cost of movement. The
estimate of potential move costs is based on potential
moves of vending equipment serviced by us which does
not include vending equipment used by third parties and
cooler equipment because movement of this equipment
by us is not probable. Significant assumptions and judg-
ments made in making the computations included: (1) the
population of equipment that could potentially be moved;
(2) the costs of moving equipment; (3) requirements of the
programs that are outside our routine operations and could
potentially be considered material obligations; and (4) the
probability of the assertion of refund rights by TCCC.

We believe the accounting method as outlined above
is consistent with our rights and performance obligations
under the programs as it reflects the primary obligation
for equipment placements, the parties’ business relation-
ship, and our operating practices.

The change in accounting, as of January 1, 2001, resulted
in a noncash cumulative effect adjustment of $(302) mil-
lion, net of $185 million in taxes, or $(0.70) per common
share. The accounting change also decreased income
before the cumulative effect in 2001 by approximately
$(56) million or $(0.13) per common share. The noncash
cumulative effect of the accounting change was determined
based on: (i) a per-unit funding amount for the total equip-
ment placement requirements under the programs, and
(i) applying that amount to the remaining units to be
placed under the contracts as of January 1, 2001. The
cumulative effect adjustment is the after-tax difference
between the amount of retained earnings at the beginning
of 2001 and the amount of retained earnings that would
have been reported by us at the beginning of 2001 if the
new accounting method had been applied in years 1994
through 2000 under the programs.

At December 31, 2003, $435 million in cash payments are
deferred under the programs. Of this amount, $404 mil-
lion will be recognized during the period 2004 through
2008 as equipment is placed, and $31 million will be rec-
ognized over 12 years after the equipment is placed to
give accounting recognition to the potential requirement
to move equipment during its useful life.

Pro forma amounts, representing the amounts that
would have been reported had the current accounting
principle been applied retroactively to 2001 without
adjustment for any changes in the business that might
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have occurred had this method been employed, are pre-
sented below (in millions, except per share data; per share
data is calculated prior to rounding to millions):

PRO FORMA YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Net loss applicable to common shareowners $ (22
Basic net loss per share applicable to

common shareowners $(0.05)
Diluted net loss per share applicable to
common shareowners $(0.05)

Refer to Note 16, Related Party Transactions, for further
information on transactions with TCCC.

Note 3
ACQUISITIONS

When acquiring bottling operations with Coca-Cola licenses,
we purchase the right to market, distribute, and produce
beverage products of TCCC in specified territories. When

acquisitions of other licensor product rights occur, similar
rights are also obtained. The purchase method of account-
ing has been used for all acquisitions and, accordingly, the
results of operations of acquired companies are included
in the income statements beginning at acquisition. In addi-
tion, the assets and liabilities of companies acquired are

included in our consolidated balance sheet at their estimated
fair values on the dates of acquisition. Following are sum-

maries of our acquisition activities for 2003, 2002, and 2001.

2003

In 2003, we completed the acquisition of Chaudfontaine,
a water bottling and distribution company in Belgium,
for a cash purchase price of approximately $13 million.

2002
In 2002, we completed the following acquisitions in the
United States and Canada for an aggregate cash purchase
price of approximately $30 million:
* Austin Coca-Cola Bottling Company, operating

in Minnesota;
* Dr Pepper license intangible for territory located

in Arizona;
* Moak Bottling Company, Inc., operating in Mississippi;
* Brown’s Beverages Ltd., operating in Canada; and
* Dawson Creek Beverages Ltd., operating in Canada.

2001

On July 10, 2001, we completed the acquisition of 100 per-
cent of the outstanding common and preferred shares of
Hondo Incorporated and Herbco Enterprises, Inc., col-
lectively known as Herb Coca-Cola. Herb Coca-Cola was

previously the third largest bottler of products of TCCC
in the United States. The following table summarizes the
fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisition (in millions):

Current assets $ 168
Property, plant, and equipment 316
License intangible 618
Goodwill 567

Total assets acquired 1,669
Current liabilities 191
Deferred tax liabilities 84
Long-term liabilities 9

Total liabilities assumed 284

Net assets acquired $1,385

The license intangible assets are intangible assets not
subject to amortization. $924 million of the total license
intangible and goodwill assets are expected to be deductible
in the determination of income taxes.

The total transaction value approximated $1.4 billion,
including cash of $1 billion and common stock valued at
approximately $400 million. The value of the shares issued
was determined based on the average closing price of our
common shares over the two-day period prior to and after
the terms of the acquisition were finalized and agreed.

The following table summarizes unaudited pro forma
financial information for 2001 as if the acquisition of Herb
Coca-Cola was completed January 1, 2001. The unaudited
pro forma financial information reflects adjustments for
the estimated financing costs of the acquisition, elimina-
tion of goodwill/license intangible amortization for Herb
Coca-Cola, the difference in income tax rates between
CCE and Herb Coca-Cola, and the number of shares
outstanding. Adjustments to eliminate previously exist-
ing goodwill and license intangible amortization have
been made to present pro forma financial information
under FAS 142. Under the provisions of FAS 142, good-
will and intangible assets with an indefinite life acquired
in a business combination after June 30, 2001 are not
amortized (in millions except per share data):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Net operating revenues $15,453
Net loss before cumulative effect of

accounting change (34)
Net loss (336)
Basic net loss per share applicable to

common shareowners $ (0.76)
Diluted net loss per share applicable to

common shareowners $ (0.76)
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Our results for 2001 include the impact of the change
in accounting we adopted as of January 1, 2001, of approx-
imately $56 million after taxes, the cumulative effect of the
change in accounting of $302 million, and the following
significant items: (i) $78 million in restructuring and
other charges, discussed in Note 4, and (ii) income tax
benefits of $56 million due to rate changes in Canada and
certain European territories, discussed in Note 11. The
impact of the adoption of EITF 02-16 and EITF 01-09,
as discussed in Note 1, is also reflected in net operating
revenues presented above.

We also acquired the following bottlers in 2001 for an
aggregate transaction value, a combination of cash, assumed
debt, and shares of our common stock from treasury, of
approximately $43 million:

e Tarpon Springs Coca-Cola Bottling Company, operating
on the Gulf Coast of Florida; and

* Southwest Dr Pepper Bottling Company, operating in
Monett, Missouri.

Note 4
RESTRUCTURING COSTS

During the second half of 2001, we recorded restructuring
and other charges totaling $78 million. The restructuring
charge, included in selling, delivery, and administrative
expenses in 2001, was for a series of steps designed to
improve our cost structure, including the elimination of
unnecessary support functions following the consolidation
of North America into one operating unit and streamlining
management of North American operations.

Of approximately 2,000 positions impacted, the majority
of personnel affected were no longer employees of CCE as of
December 31, 2001. Employees impacted by the restructur-
ing were provided both financial and nonfinancial severance
benefits. Restructuring costs include costs associated with
involuntary terminations and other direct costs associated
with implementation of the restructuring. Pay benefits are
being paid over the benefit period. Other direct costs,
which are expensed as incurred, include relocation costs and
costs of development, communication, and administration.
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Included in the $78 million in restructuring and other
charges in 2001 was an impairment charge of $20 million
related to an analysis of certain technology initiatives and
capital projects.

In 2002, we provided an additional $5 million for
restructuring in Great Britain for the conversion of refill-
able bottles to non-refillable bottles in production and
the resulting elimination of approximately 100 positions.

The table below summarizes accrued restructuring
costs and amounts charged against the accrual from
inception through December 31, 2003 (in millions):

Severance Other

Pay and  Direct
Restructuring Costs Accrual Benefits  Costs Total
Provisions During 2001 $ 51 $ 7 $ 58
Payments (11) (6) 17)
Balance, December 31, 2001 40 1 41
Provisions 5 - 5
Payments (24) (1) (25)
Estimate Adjustments (4) - (4)
Balance, December 31, 2002 17 = 17
Payments (13) - (13)
Estimate Adjustments (1) - (1)
Balance, December 31, 2003 $ 3 $ - $ 3

The balance of $3 million at December 31, 2003 rep-
resents severance benefits remaining to be paid under
the 2001 restructuring.

Note 5

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES

At December 31, accounts payable and accrued expenses
consist of the following (in millions):

2003 2002

Trade accounts payable $ 925 § 873
Accrued marketing costs 610 492
Accrued compensation and benefits 277 255
Accrued interest costs 192 217
Accrued taxes 285 298
Other accrued expenses 471 453
$2,760 $2,588
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Note 6
LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The table below summarizes our long-term debt at December 31, adjusting for the effects of interest rate and currency

swap agreements (in millions):

U.S. commercial paper

Euro commercial paper

Canadian dollar commercial paper

U.S. dollar notes due 2004-2037®

Euro and pound sterling notes due 2004-2021
Canadian dollar notes due 2004-2009®

U.S. dollar debentures due 2012-2098

U.S. dollar zero coupon notes due 2020
Various foreign currency debt

Additional debt

Long-term debt, including effect of net asset positions of currency swap agreements

2003 2002
Interest Interest
Balance Rates®  Balance Rates®
$ 655 11% $ 1415 1.4%
208 2.1 242 3.0
148 2.8 87 2.8
4,510 3.5 4,059 3.5
1,560 5.9 1,498 6.5
432 5.4 536 4.7
3,783 74 3,783 7.4
164 8.4 151 8.4
129 - 172 -
57 - 80 —
$11,646 $12,023

(A) Weighted average intervest rates on balances outstanding.

(B) On September 29, 2003, we issued $500 million in fixed rate notes under our registration statements with the Securities and Exchange Commission. This debt issuance
was comprised of $250 million of 2.5 percent notes due 2006 and $250 million of 4.25 percent notes due 2010. Proceeds were used to pay down commercial paper.

(C) In May 2003, a 6.5 percent British pound sterling note of approximately $276 million matured and approximately $276 million of 4.125 percent British pound sterling
borrowings were issued. In February 2003, approximately $160 million in 5 percent Eurobonds matured. In_January 2003, approximately $27 million of 5 percent

French franc notes matured.

(D) In March 2003, approximately $65 million of 5.3 percent Canadian dollar notes matured. In July 2003, approximately $129 million of 6.7 percent Canadian dollar

notes matwred.

(E) Net of unamontized discount of $465 million in 2003 and $478 million in 2002.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, approximately
$1.3 billion and $2.3 billion, respectively, of borrowings
due in the next 12 months, including commercial paper
balances outstanding, were classified as maturing after one
year because of our intent and ability through our credit
facilities to refinance these borrowings on a long-term basis.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, we had $3.3 billion
and $3.2 billion, respectively, of amounts available under
domestic and international credit facilities. These facilities
serve as back-up to our domestic and international com-
mercial paper programs and support working capital needs.
At December 31, 2003 and 2002, we had $45 million and
$53 million, respectively, of short-term borrowings out-
standing under these credit facilities.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, we had approximately
$6.8 billion and $3.4 billion, respectively, of amounts avail-
able under our public debt facilities which could be used
for long-term financing, refinancing of debt maturities, and
refinancing of commercial paper. Of these amounts, we had
available for issuance at December 31, 2003 and 2002
approximately $3.2 billion and $0.2 billion, respectively, in
registered debt securities under a shelf registration state-
ment with the Securities and Exchange Commission. At
December 31, 2003 and 2002, we had available for issuance
approximately $2.1 billion and $2.0 billion, respectively, in

debt securities under a Euro Medium Term Note Program.
In addition, at December 31, 2003 and 2002, we had
approximately $1.5 billion ($2.0 billion Canadian) and
$1.2 billion ($1.9 billion Canadian), respectively, available
for issuance under a Canadian Medium Term Note
Program. The registration statement filed with the SEC to
increase the amounts of registered debt securities available
for issuance by $3.5 billion became effective in August 2003.

On March 31, 2003, we terminated a fixed-to-floating
interest rate swap with a notional amount of $150 million
and received a payment of $29 million equal to the fair
value of the hedge on the termination date. The swap
was previously designated as a fair value hedge of a fixed
rate debt instrument due September 30, 2009. The fair
value settlement will be amortized over the remaining term
of the debt using the effective interest method thereby
decreasing the interest expense on that previously hedged
debt over the remaining term.

The credit facilities and outstanding notes and deben-
tures contain various provisions that, among other things,
require us to maintain a defined leverage ratio and limit
the incurrence of certain liens or encumbrances in excess
of defined amounts. These requirements currently are
not, and it is not anticipated they will become, restrictive
to our liquidity or capital resources.
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Note 7
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

We use interest rate swap agreements and other risk man-
agement instruments to manage the changes in interest
rates on our debt portfolio. We also use currency swap
agreements, forward agreements, options, and other risk
management instruments to minimize the impact of
exchange rate changes on our nonfunctional currency
cash flows and to protect the value of our net investments
in foreign operations.

The hedges we enter into can be categorized as fair
value, cash flow, or net investment hedges. We enter into
fair value hedges to mitigate exposure to changes in the
fair value of fixed rate debt resulting from fluctuations
in interest rates. Changes in the fair values of designated
and qualifying fair value hedges are recognized in earn-
ings as offsets to changes in the fair value of the related
hedged liabilities. During 2003, 2002, and 2001, there
has been no ineffectiveness related to fair value hedges.

We enter into cash flow hedges to mitigate exposure
to changes in cash flows attributable to certain forecasted
transactions such as international raw material purchases
and payments on certain foreign currency debt obligations.
Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments
are recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income.
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
income are then subsequently reversed to earnings in the
same periods the forecasted purchases or payments affect
earnings. Changes in fair value from ineffectiveness of cash
flow hedges are recognized in income currently. During
2003 no gain or loss was recognized from ineffectiveness
related to cash flow hedges of international raw material
purchases. However, a gain of approximately $2 million

Note §
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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and a loss of approximately $1 million were recognized in
2002 and 2001, respectively. These amounts are recorded
in other nonoperating income in the statements of income.

We recognized a charge, net of tax, of approximately
$26 million in accumulated other comprehensive income
during the first quarter of 2001 from the adoption of
FAS 133. At December 31, 2003, a net of tax gain of approxi-
mately $1 million related to cash flow hedges of forecasted
international raw materials purchases was included in
accumulated other comprehensive income. We expect
these adjustments to be reclassified into income within
the next 12 months. At December 31, 2002, net of tax gains
of approximately $1 million and $4 million related to
cash flow hedges of forecasted international raw materials
purchases and payments on certain foreign currency debt
obligations, respectively, were included in accumulated
other comprehensive income.

We enter into certain nonfunctional currency borrow-
ings as net investment hedges of international subsidiaries.
During 2003, 2002, and 2001, the net amount recorded
in accumulated other comprehensive income related to
these borrowings was a loss of approximately $86 million,
$77 million, and $24 million, respectively. There was no
ineffectiveness recognized for these net investment hedges
in 2003, 2002, or 2001.

During 2003, we entered into currency option contracts,
not designated as hedging instruments under FAS 133,
used to offset the earnings impact related to the variability
in currency exchange rates on certain purchases of raw
materials denominated in non-functional currencies.
Changes in the fair value of these contracts totaling a
loss of $1 million was recognized in other nonoperating
income as incurred.

The carrying amounts and fair values of our financial instruments at December 31, are summarized as follows (in millions;

(liability)/asset):
2003 2002
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Values Amount Values
Debt related financial instruments:
Long-term debt $ (11,646) $ (12,693) $(12,021) $(12,953)
Currency swap agreements in liability positions - - (2) (2)
Interest rate swap agreements 139 139 220 220
Currency forward agreements 1 1 1 1
Currency option agreements 1 1 - -

42



Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.

Note 9

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

We have elected to apply APB Opinion No. 25 and related
Interpretations in accounting for our stock-based compensa-
tion plans, instead of applying the optional cost recognition
requirements of FAS 123. FAS 123, if fully adopted, would
change the method for cost recognition on our stock-based
compensation plans. Pro forma disclosures, as if we had
adopted the FAS 123 cost recognition requirements, follow.
Our stock option plans provide for the granting of non-
qualified stock options to certain key employees. Generally,
options outstanding under our stock option plans are
granted at prices that equal or exceed the market value
of the stock on the date of grant. Our unvested options

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

vest over a period up to nine years and expire 10 years
from the date of the grant. Certain option grants contain
provisions that allow for accelerated vesting should various
stock performance criteria be met.

In 2003 and 2002, we did not incur any compensation
cost associated with performance-based stock options.

Compensation cost for performance-based stock option

plans in 2001 was a reduction in costs of $1 million. The

reduction in compensation cost for performance-based

stock option plans in 2001 was due to a reversal of expense
made for granted awards for which it was probable that
the required performance targets would not be met.

A summary of stock options, weighted average exercise

prices, and changes during the years then ended, is pre-

sented below (shares in thousands):

2003 2002 2001
Shares  Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 59,942 $22.70 57,876 $22.63 46,007 $22.47

Granted at prices equaling grant date prices 7,893 21.88 7,925 16.14 12,297 18.63

Granted at prices greater than grant date prices = = - - 3,983 23.77

Exercised (2,552) 11.11 (4,219) 8.03 (2,997) 6.48

Forfeited (1,452) 25.25 (1,640) 26.12 (1,414) 20.23
Outstanding at end of year 63,831 23.01 59,942 22.70 57,876 22.63
Options exercisable at end of year 42,510 24.04 36,432 22.30 32,257 22.32
Options available for future grant 12,939 21,911 28,196

The table below details the fair value of options granted during 2003, 2002, and 2001. The fair value of each option
grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions
for 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively: (i) dividend yields of 0.4 percent for all years; (ii) expected volatility of 43 percent,
43 percent; and 40 percent; (iii) risk-free interest rates of 3.46 percent, 4.78 percent, and 4.95 percent; and (iv) expected

life of six years for all years.

2003 2002 2001
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year $9.65 $7.51 $8.08
At prices equaling grant date prices $9.65 $7.51 $8.41
At prices greater than grant date prices $ - $ $7.05

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003 (shares in thousands):

Range of Number of Weighted Average Number of
Exercise Options Outstanding Remaining Weighted Average Options Exercisable ~ Weighted Average
Prices at 12/31/2003 Contractual Life ExercisePrice at 12/31/2003 Exercise Price

$ 4 to 12 6,244 1.49 years $ 8.03 6,244 $ 8.03

12 to 20 27,921 6.57 17.49 17,894 17.58

20 to 30 18,334 7.43 22.90 8,784 23.67

30 to 40 5,365 5.16 33.93 3,621 33.37

over 40 5,967 4.50 55.04 5,967 55.04

63,831 6.01 23.01 42,510 24.04
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Our restricted stock award plans provide for awards to
officers and certain key employees of CCE. Awards granted
in 2003, 2002, and 2001 generally vest upon continued
employment for a period of at least four years. In 2003,
we granted 1,242,000 restricted stock shares and 77,000
restricted stock units with a combined weighted average
grant date fair value of $21.65. In 2002, we granted 974,000
restricted stock shares and 116,000 restricted stock units
with a combined weighted average grant date fair value of
$16.14. In 2001, we granted 336,000 restricted stock shares
with a weighted average grant date fair value of $18.17.

All awards of restricted stock shares entitle the partic-
ipant to full dividend and voting rights. Unvested shares
are restricted as to disposition and subject to forfeiture
under certain circumstances. Upon issuance of restricted

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

shares and restricted stock units, unearned compensation
is charged to shareowners’ equity for the cost of restricted
shares and stock units and is recognized as amortization
expense ratably over the vesting periods, as applicable. The
amount recognized as expense for restricted stock awards
was $11 million, $7 million, and $8 million for 2003,
2002, and 2001, respectively.

The following table illustrates the effect of stock-based
employee compensation costs on reported net income appli-
cable to common shareowners in 2003, 2002, and 2001 and
also illustrates the effect on reported net income applicable
to common shareowners and earnings per share if compen-
sation cost for our grants under stock-based compensation
plans had been determined under FAS 123 for the year
ended December 31, (in millions, except per share data):

2003 2002 2001

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners before effects of stock-based

employee compensation costs included in net income, net of tax $ 682 $ 496 $(319)
Less stock-based employee compensation costs, net of taxes,

included in net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners (8) 5) (5)
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners, as reported 674 491 (324)
Deduct incremental stock-based employee compensation costs determined

under fair value based method for all awards, net of taxes (61) (47) (46)
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners, pro forma $ 613 $ 444 $(370)
Net income (loss) per share applicable to common shareowners:

Basic — as reported $1.48 $1.09 $(0.75)

Basic — pro forma $1.35 $0.99 $(0.86)

Diluted — as reported $1.46 $1.07 $(0.75)

Diluted — pro forma $1.33 $0.97 $(0.86)

FAS 123, if fully adopted, would change the method of cost recognition for our stock-based compensation plans. FAS 123

does not apply to awards prior to 1995 and additional awards in future years are possible; therefore, the effects of

applying FAS 123 in this pro forma disclosure may not be indicative of future results.
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Note 10

PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT
BENEFIT PLANS

Pension Plans: We sponsor a number of defined benefit pen-
sion plans covering substantially all of our employees in
North America and Europe. Pension plans representing
97 percent of benefit obligations at December 31, 2003 are
measured, as provided in Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 87 (FAS 87), “Employers’ Accounting for
Pensions,” at our selected alternative measurement date
of September 30th, with all other plans measured on
December 31st.

Other Postretirement Plans: We sponsor unfunded defined
benefit postretirement plans providing healthcare and
life insurance benefits to substantially all U.S. and Canadian
employees who retire or terminate after qualifying for such
benefits. Retirees of our European Group are covered
primarily by government-sponsored programs, and the
specific cost to us for those programs and other postre-
tirement healthcare is not significant. The primary U.S.
postretirement benefit plan is a defined dollar benefit plan
limiting the effects of medical inflation by establishing
dollar limits for determining our contribution. Effective
January 1, 2004, our dollar limit has been frozen at fixed
rates and will no longer be subject to increases at the lesser
of 4.0 percent or the assumed Consumer Price Index (CPI).
The assumed CPI rate used to determine the liability for
other postretirement plans was 3.0 percent at December 31,
2002 and 2001. Because the plan has established dollar
limits for determining our contributions, the effect of a

1 percent increase in the assumed healthcare cost trend rate
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is not significant. The Canadian plan also contains provi-
sions that limit the effects of inflation on our future costs.

On December 8, 2003, President Bush signed the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003 (“the Act”) into law. The Act
expanded Medicare to include, for the first time, cover-
age for prescription drugs. We expect that this legislation
may reduce our costs for some of these programs. At this
point, our investigation into our response to the legisla-
tion is preliminary as we await guidance from various
governmental and regulatory agencies concerning the
requirements that must be met to obtain these cost reduc-
tions as well as the manner in which such savings should
be measured. Based on this preliminary analysis, it appears
that some of our retiree medical plans will need to be
changed to qualify for beneficial treatment under the
Act, while other plans may continue unchanged.

Because of various uncertainties related to our response
to this legislation and the appropriate accounting method-
ology to be applied for this event, we have elected to defer
financial recognition of this legislation until the Financial
Accounting Standards Board issues final accounting guid-
ance. When issued, that final guidance could require us
to change previously reported information. However,
since we have already taken steps to limit our postretire-
ment medical benefits, any reductions in postretirement
benefit costs resulting from the Act are not expected to
be material. This deferral election is permitted under
Financial Accounting Standards Board Staft Position
No. FAS 106-1, “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement
and Modernization Act of 2003.”
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Summarized information on our pension and other postretirement benefit plans follows (in millions):

Pension Plans Other Postretirement Plans
2003 2002 2003 2002
Reconciliation of benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $1,680 $1,478 $ 344 $ 327
Service cost 82 71 11 9
Interest cost 114 101 24 22
Plan participants’ contributions 8 7 3 3
Amendments 3 7 (55) 1
Actuarial loss 304 50 53 7
Acquisitions 9 (2) - -
Benefit payments (70) (62) (23) (25)
Currency translation adjustments 99 30 3 =
Benefit obligation at end of year $2,229 $1,680 $ 360 $ 344
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $1,051 $1,117 $ - $ -
Actual gain (loss) on plan assets 156 (107) - -
Employer contributions 197 76 20 22
Plan participants’ contributions 8 7 3 3
Acquisitions 3 (2) - -
Benefit payments (70) (62) (23) (25)
Currency translation adjustments 77 22 = =
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $1,422 $1,051 $ - [ S
Funded status
Funded status at end of year $ (807) $ (629) $(360) $(344)
Unrecognized prior service cost (asset) 29 26 (110) (63)
Unrecognized net loss 913 625 91 39
Fourth quarter contributions 5 5 = =
Net amounts recognized $ 140 $ 27 $(379) $(368)
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of:
Prepaid benefits cost $ 164 $ 128 $ - $ -
Accrued benefits liability (539) (448) (379) (368)
Intangible assets 32 32 = -
Other comprehensive income adjustments 483 315 = =
Net amounts recognized $ 140 $ 27 $(379) $(368)
Accumulated Benefit Obligation $1,895 $1,432 n/a n/a
Weighted average assumptions to determine:
Benefit obligations at December 31,
Discount rate 6.0% 6.8% 6.1% 7.0%
Rate of compensation increase 4.6 4.6 - -
Net periodic pension cost for years ended December 31,
Discount Rate 6.8 6.9 7.0 7.0
Expected Return on Assets 8.3 9.2 -
Rate of compensation increase 4.6 4.7 -

For the defined benefit pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets, the projected
benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and fair value of plan assets were $1,626 million, $1,426 million, and
$912 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2003, and $1,268 million, $1,117 million, and $690 million, respectively,
as of December 31, 2002.
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Pension assets of the North American and Great Britain plans represent approximately 95 percent of pension plan
assets. Below is a summary of pension plan asset allocations of those assets along with expected long-term rates of

return as of December 31, 2003 by asset category.

Weighted Average Allocation Weighted Average

Target Actual Expected Long-Term
Asset Category 2003 2003 2002 Rate of Return
Equity Securities 65% 68% 61% 8.7%
Fixed Income Securities 20 24 31 5.7
Real Estate 5 3 4 9.6
Other 10 5 4 10.4
Total 100% 100% 100% 8.3

We have established formal investment policies for the
assets associated with these plans. Policy objectives include
maximizing long-term return at acceptable risk levels,
diversifying among asset classes, if appropriate, and among
investment managers, as well as establishing relevant risk
parameters within each asset class. Specific asset class targets
are based on the results of periodic asset liability studies.
The investment policies permit variances from the targets
within certain parameters. The weighted average expected
long-term rate of return is based on a fourth quarter 2003
review of such rates.

Our Fixed Income Securities portfolio is invested pri-
marily in commingled funds and managed for overall
return expectations rather than matching duration against
plan liabilities; therefore, debt maturities are not significant
to the plan performance.

We fund the U.S. pension plans at a level to maintain,
within established guidelines, the IRS-defined 90 Percent

Current Liability Funded status. At January 1, 2003, the
date of the most recent calculation, all U.S. funded defined
benefit pension plans reflected Current Liability Funded
status equal to or greater than 90 percent. In order to main-
tain a 90 Percent Current Liability Funded status, which
is not required but has been selected by us, we currently
estimate that pension contributions to U.S. plans in 2004
will approximate $225 million. This estimate, however,
may be significantly affected by pending legislation that is
expected to be finalized by the end of the first quarter of
2004. Our primary Canadian plan does not require con-
tributions at this time. Contributions to the primary Great
Britain plan are based on a percentage of employees’ pay.
Contributions to other postretirement benefit plans were
$20 million in 2003 and are expected to be approximately
$22 million in 2004.

Net periodic benefit costs for the years ended
December 31, consisted of the following (in millions):

Other
Pension Plans Postretirement Plans
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Components of net periodic benefit costs

Service cost 82 $ 71 $ 61 $11 $9 $ 7
Interest cost 114 101 95 24 22 20
Expected return on plan assets (116) (124) (116) - - -
Amortization of transition asset - - (1) - - -
Amortization of prior service cost - - - 9) (8) 9)
Recognized actuarial (gain) loss 10 - (1) - - -
Net periodic benefit cost 90 48 38 26 23 18
Other - 1 1 - - -
Special termination benefits - - 3 - - 2
Total costs in earnings 90 $ 49 $ 42 $26 $23 $20
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We participate in various multi-employer pension plans
worldwide. Total pension expense for multi-employer plans
was $31 million, $31 million, and $27 million in 2003, 2002,
and 2001, respectively. We also sponsor qualified defined
contribution plans covering substantially all employees in
the U.S., Great Britain, and Canada. Under our primary
plan, CCE matched 75 percent in 2003 and 50 percent in
2002 and 2001 of participants’ voluntary contributions up
to a maximum of 7 percent of the participants’ compen-
sation. Our contributions to these plans were $57 million,
$38 million, and $34 million in 2003, 2002, and 2001,
respectively. For 2004, the match will be 25 percent of
participants’ voluntary contribution up to a maximum of
7 percent of participants’ compensation.

Note 11
INCOME TAXES

The current income tax provision represents the amount
of income taxes paid or payable for the year. The deferred
income tax provision represents the change in deferred
tax liabilities and assets and, for business combinations,
the change in such tax liabilities and assets since the date
of acquisition. Significant components of the provision
for income taxes are as follows (in millions):

2003 2002 2001

Current:
Domestic
Federal $ (15) $ 1) $ 46
State and local 5 6 3
European and Canadian 69 68 62
Total current provision 59 73 111
Deferred:
Domestic
Federal 164 154 (152)
State and local 10 11 5)
European and Canadian 40 (11) (29)
Rate changes 23 (16) (56)
Total deferred expense (benefit) 237 138 (242)
Total provision (benefit) for
income taxes $296 $211 $(131)
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A reconciliation of the expected income tax expense
at the statutory U.S. federal rate to our actual income
tax provision follows (in millions):

2003 2002 2001

U.S. federal statutory

expense (benefit) $340 $247 $ (53)
State expense (benefit), net of

federal expense/benefit 17 12 (10)
Taxation of European and

Canadian operations, net (68) (44) (26)
Rate change expense (benefit) 23 (16) (56)
Valuation allowance

provision (benefit) 1 5 (1)
Nondeductible items 14 11 8
Revaluation of income

tax obligations (25) 4)
Other, net (6) - 1
Total provision (benefit) for

income taxes $ 296 $211 $(131)

The income tax provision (benefit) for all years presented
includes period specific reductions in income tax expense.
For 2003, the provision for income taxes is reduced by
approximately $25 million from the revaluations of income
tax obligations and $6 million from other tax adjustments,
offset by expense from provincial rate changes in Canada
totaling approximately $23 million. For 2003, our effective
tax rate including these items was approximately 30 per-
cent and approximately 31 percent without these items.
For 2002, the provision for income taxes is reduced by
approximately $20 million from rate changes in Belgium
and certain provinces in Canada and a revaluation of
income tax obligations. For 2001, the provision for income
taxes is reduced by approximately $56 million from rate
changes in several territories in Europe and Canada. Our
effective tax rate would have been approximately 33 percent
in 2002 and 50 percent in 2001 excluding these reductions.

Income before income taxes from international opera-
tions used in computing our tax provision for 2003, 2002,
and 2001 was approximately $514 million, $280 million,
and $157 million, respectively. These amounts are before
interest and other corporate cost allocations that are not
deductible in international tax computations.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, our foreign subsidiaries
had approximately $536 million and $390 million in
distributable earnings, respectively. These earnings are
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exclusive of amounts that would result in little or no tax
under current laws if remitted in the future. Our earnings
from foreign subsidiaries are considered to be indefinitely
reinvested and, therefore, no provision for U.S. federal
and state income taxes has been made for these earnings.
Determination of the amount of any unrecognized deferred
income tax liability on these undistributed earnings is not
practicable. Upon distribution of foreign subsidiary earn-
ings in the form of dividends or otherwise, we would be
subject to both U.S. income taxes, subject to an adjustment
for foreign tax credits, and withholding taxes payable to
the various foreign countries.

Deferred income taxes are recognized for tax conse-
quences of temporary differences between the financial
and tax bases of existing assets and liabilities by applying
enacted statutory tax rates to such differences. Significant
components of our deferred tax liabilities and assets as of
December 31, are as follows (in millions):

2003 2002

Deferred tax liabilities:

License intangible assets $ 4,974 $4,640

Property, plant, and equipment 982 869

Other, net 24 42
Total deferred tax liabilities 5,980 5,651
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards (541) (500)

Employee and retiree benefit accruals  (423) (376)

Alternative minimum tax credits (53) (124)

Deferred revenue (165) (195)
Total deferred tax assets (1,182) (1,195)

Valuation allowances on

deferred tax assets 125 132

Net deferred tax liabilities 4,923 4,488

Current deferred tax assets 42 51
Total net deferred tax liabilities $ 4,965 $4,539

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the tax benefit
of deducting timing differences and foreign, federal, and
state net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.
Valuation allowances are recognized on these assets if it
is believed some or all of the deferred tax assets will not
be realized. Management believes the majority of deferred
tax assets will be realized because of the reversal of cer-
tain significant timing differences and anticipated future
taxable income from operations.
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Valuation allowances of $125 million and $132 million
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, were
established for certain deferred tax assets. Included in the
valuation allowances as of December 31, 2003 and 2002
were $14 million and $18 million, respectively, for net
operating loss carryforwards of acquired companies.
Previously established valuation allowances for net oper-
ating losses of acquired companies were reduced in 2003
and 2002 by $4 million and $1 million, respectively. These
reductions were based on a reassessment of the utilization
of net operating loss carryforwards and are recognized
as a reduction to license intangible assets or goodwill.

Federal tax operating loss carryforwards total $1 billion.
The majority of these carryforwards were acquired through
the purchase of various bottling companies. These carry-
forwards are available in varying amounts to offset future
federal taxable income through their expiration in years
2004 through 2023. International operating loss carry-
forwards total $130 million. These carryforwards are
available in varying amounts to offset future taxable
income through their expiration in years 2004 through
2010. State operating loss carryforwards total $2.9 billion
and expire at varying dates from 2004 through 2023.

The tax benefit associated with management stock
performance awards reduced current and future taxes
payable by $9 million, $16 million, and $11 million for
2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. These benefits are
recognized as increases to additional paid-in capital. We
had foreign-denominated loans with exchange rate changes
that decreased federal taxes payable by $48 million, $27 mil-
lion, and $13 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The effect of these loans is reflected as a component of
currency items and hedges of net investments included
in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Taxes
associated with unrealized securities gains increased taxes
payable by approximately $3 million in 2003. The tax cost
is reflected as a component of unrealized gains (losses)
on securities included in accumulated other comprehen-
sive income (loss).
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Note 12
EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table presents information concerning basic and diluted earnings per share (in millions except per share
data; per share data is calculated prior to rounding to millions):

2003 2002 2001
Net income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 676 $494 $ (19
Cumulative effect of accounting change - - (302)
Net income (loss) 676 494 (321)
Preferred stock dividends 2 3 3
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners $ 674 $491 $ (324)
Basic average common shares outstanding 454 449 432
Effect of dilutive securities, stock compensation awards®® 7 9 -
Diluted average common shares outstanding 461 458 432

Basic earnings per share:

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners before cumulative
effect of accounting change $1.48 $1.09 $(0.05)
Cumulative effect of accounting change - - (0.70)

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners $1.48 $1.09 $(0.75)

Diluted earnings per share:

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners before cumulative
effect of accounting change $1.46 $1.07 $(0.05)
Cumulative effect of accounting change - (0.70)

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners $1.46 $1.07 $(0.75)

(A) See Note 14 for a discussion of the impact of our preferved shares on diluted earnings per share.

(B) As detailed in Note 9, options to purchase 63.8 million, 59.9 million, and 57.9 million common shares were outstanding at the end of 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Of these amounts, options to purchase 29.3 million shaves in 2003, 22.7 million shares in 2002 and 57.9 million shares in 2001 are not included
in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the effect of including the options in the computation would be antidilutive. The dilutive impact of the
remaining options outstanding in each year is included in the stock compensation awards line above.

Our Board of Directors approved our current regular quarterly dividend of $0.04 per common share in 1998.
Dividends are declared at the discretion of our Board of Directors.
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Note 13
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The following table presents a summary of our accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) items and related tax
effects. Comprehensive income (loss) is comprised of net income and other adjustments that may include changes in
the fair value of certain derivative financial instruments which qualify as foreign currency translation adjustments,
hedges of net investments in international subsidiaries, cash flow hedges, minimum pension liability adjustments, and
realized and unrealized gains and losses on certain investments in debt and equity securities. Except for the currency
translation impact of our intercompany debt of a long-term nature, we do not provide income taxes on currency trans-
lation adjustments, as earnings from international subsidiaries are considered to be indefinitely reinvested (in millions):

Hedges Gains/ Losses

Currency of Net On Cash Flow Pension Gains/ Losses
Translations  Investments Hedges Adjustments  On Securities Total
Balance, December 31, 2000 $ (452) $ 244 $ - $ (12) $(10) $(230)
Cumulative effect of adopting FAS 133, net of
tax effect of $11 million - - (26) - - (26)
2001 Pre-tax activity 41 (38) 21 (125) - (101)
2001 Tax effects (1) 14 (6) 47 - 54
Realized net losses on cash flow hedges, net
of tax effect of $5 million = = 11 — — 11
Balance, December 31, 2001 (412) 220 - (90) (10) (292)
2002 Pre-tax activity 237 (122) (34) (170) 22 (67)
2002 Tax effects (18) 45 8 65 (8) 92
Realized net losses on cash flow hedges,
net of tax effect of $9 million = = 31 — — 31
Balance, December 31, 2002 (193) 143 5 (195) 4 (236)
2003 Pre-tax activity 572 (129) 9 (168) (8) 276
2003 Tax effects - 43 3) 62 3 105
Realized net gains on cash flow hedges, net
of tax effect of $4 million - - (10) - - (10)
Realized net gains on securities included in
income, net of tax effect of $1 million - - - - (2) (2)
Balance, December 31, 2003 $ 379 $ 57 $ 1 $ (301) $ (3) $ 133

The aggregate gross unrealized loss on our investment in certain equity securities is approximately $4.4 million at
December 31, 2003. This investment has been in an unrealized loss position for less than 12 months. The aggregate
related fair value of the investment at December 31, 2003 is approximately $37 million. We have concluded that the
unrealized loss is not other-than-temporary and we have the ability and intent to continue to hold this investment.

Note 14
PREFERRED STOCK

In connection with the 1998 acquisition of Great Plains Bottlers and Canners, Inc., we issued 401,528 shares of $1 par
value voting convertible preferred stock (Great Plains series). The mandatory conversion date for the Great Plains
series was August 7, 2003. As of December 31, 2002, 35,000 shares of the Great Plains series had been converted into
154,778 shares of common stock. During the third quarter of 2003, the remaining 366,528 outstanding preferred
shares were converted into 2,119,518 shares of common stock from treasury stock. The Great Plains series shares are
not included in our computation of diluted earnings per share, detailed in Note 12, in 2003, 2002, and 2001 because
the effect of their inclusion would be antidilutive.
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Note 15
SHARE REPURCHASES

Under the April 1996 share repurchase program authorizing the repurchase of up to 30 million shares, CCE can
repurchase shares in the open market and in privately negotiated transactions. In 2003 and 2002, there were no
share repurchases. In 2001, we repurchased and settled approximately 0.4 million shares of common stock for an
aggregate cost of approximately $8 million.

We consider market conditions and alternative uses of cash and/or debt, balance sheet ratios, and shareowner returns
when evaluating share repurchases. Repurchased shares are added to treasury stock and are available for general cor-
porate purposes, including acquisition financing and the funding of various employee benefit and compensation plans.

CCE has repurchased a total of 26.7 million shares under the April 1996 program. In 2000, our Board of Directors
authorized the repurchase of up to an additional 30 million shares upon completion of the current program. We have
no current plans for additional share repurchases and expect to use the majority of excess operating cash flow for
debt reduction.

Note 16
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

We are a marketer, producer, and distributor principally of Coca-Cola products with approximately 93 percent of our sales
volume representing sales of TCCC products. Our license arrangements with TCCC are governed by licensing territory
agreements with varying terms. TCCC owned approximately 37 percent of our outstanding shares as of December 31, 2003
with an additional 18 percent owned by employee benefit plans and members of our Board of Directors. From time to
time, the terms and conditions of programs with TCCC are modified upon mutual agreement of both parties. Our
strategic planning project with TCCC may impact certain of these programs. We are in the process of reviewing our
agreements with TCCC and intend to take steps to simplify these arrangements and reduce or change these agreements
which may impact our accounting for these programs.

The following table presents transactions with TCCC that directly affect our income statement for the periods pre-
sented (in millions):

2003 2002 2001
Amounts affecting net operating revenues:
Fountain syrup and packaged product sales $ 403 $ 461 $ 395
Dispensing equipment repair services 53 51 45
Other transactions 10 16 10

$ 466 $ 528 $ 450

Amounts affecting cost of sales:

Purchases of syrup and concentrate $ (4,451) $(4,269) $(3,806)
Purchases of sweetener (311) (325) (295)
Purchases of finished products (633) (498) (441)
Marketing support funding earned 862 837 606
Operating expense support payments 72 77 74
Cost recovery from sale of hot-fill production facility 8 — —

$ (4,453) $(4,178) $(3,862)

Amounts affecting selling, delivery, and administrative expenses:

Cooperative advertising programs $ = $ - $ (52
Marketing program payments (2) (16) -
Operating expense cost reimbursements:
To TCCC (18) (18) (17)
From TCCC 43 38 25

$ 23 $ 4 $ 44




Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.

Upon adoption of EITF 02-16, marketing support
previously included in net operating revenues and cold
drink equipment placement funding previously included
in selling, delivery, and administrative expenses have
been classified in cost of sales. In addition, dispensing
equipment repair services previously included in selling,
delivery, and administrative expenses have been classi-
fied in net operating revenues.

Marketing Support and Other Arrangements: CCE and TCCC engage
in a variety of marketing programs, local media advertis-
ing, and other similar arrangements to promote the sale
of products of TCCC in territories in which we operate.
The amounts to be paid under the programs are deter-
mined annually and as the programs progress during the
year. Payments made under the programs, except for
amounts paid under the Jumpstart programs, are received
or made within the year they are due or shortly thereafter.
TCCC is under no obligation to participate in the programs
or continue past levels of funding into the future. The
amounts paid and terms of similar programs may differ
with other licensees. Marketing support programs funded
to us provide financial support principally based on product
sales to offset a portion of the costs to us of the programs.
TCCC also administers certain other marketing programs
directly with our customers. In 2003, 2002, and 2001,
total direct-marketing support paid or payable to us, or
to customers in our territories by TCCGC, totaled approx-
imately $1,076 million, $1,041 million, and $888 million,
respectively. Of these amounts, we recognized $862 million,
$837 million, and $606 million as a reduction of cost

of sales in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. The totals
also include amounts paid directly to our customers by
TCCC of approximately $212 million, $201 million, and
$279 million for 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively, as
well as $2 million, $3 million, and $3 million paid in 2003,
2002, and 2001, respectively, for TCCC’s participation in
long-term agreements.

We have a multi-year Sales Growth Initiative (SGI) agree-
ment with TCCC to promote and support the profitable
growth of TCCC brands in our territories. Amounts recog-
nized under the SGI agreement are included in the table
above in “Marketing support funding earned.” In each year
of the agreement, $30 million of funding is recognized as
sales are realized. The remaining funding available to us

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

under the agreement (volume growth funding) is earned by
attaining mutually established sales volume growth rates.

Sales volume growth is determined through a formula with
adjustments for brand conversions, brand acquisitions, and
new brand introductions. Growth that exceeds the target in
North America offsets any shortfalls in Europe and vice versa.

Volume growth funding under the SGI agreement is
advanced to us equally over the four quarters of the pro-
gram year within thirty days after the beginning of each
quarter. We recognize quarterly volume growth funding
as a reduction of cost of sales as volume growth is attained.
The agreement provides for refunds of volume growth
funding advances of $1 per equivalent case should we not
attain the specified minimum sales volume growth targets.

For 2002, we recognized the entire $120 million of
volume growth funding that was available to us under
the agreement. For 2003, we recognized $131 million of
the $170 million that was available to us under the SGI
program after adjustment for penalty charges of $39 mil-
lion because of a shortage of 39 million equivalent cases
below our sales volume growth targets for 2003. Under
the agreement, $165 million of volume growth funding
is available to us for 2004.

We participate in programs with TCCC designed to
promote the placement of cold drink equipment (Jumpstart
programs). Under the Jumpstart programs, we agree to:
(1) purchase and place specified numbers of venders/coolers
or cold drink equipment each year through 2008; (2) main-
tain the equipment in service, with certain exceptions, for
a period of at least 12 years after placement; (3) maintain
and stock the equipment in accordance with specified
standards for marketing TCCC products; and (4) report
to TCCC during the period the equipment is in service
whether, on average, the equipment purchased under the
programs has generated a stated minimum sales volume
of TCCC products.

Should we not satisfy these or other provisions of the
programs, the agreement provides for the parties to meet
to work out mutually agreeable solutions. Should the parties
be unable to agree on alternative solutions, TCCC would
be able to seek a partial refund of amounts previously paid.
No refunds have ever been paid under the programs and
we believe the probability of a partial refund of amounts
previously paid under the programs is remote. We believe
we, in all cases, will be able to resolve any matters that
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might arise regarding these programs. In 2003, we did
not meet certain requirements for the allocation of pur-
chases between venders and coolers and minimum
purchase requirements in certain countries because of
changes in the business environment. However, in total
we did purchase and place the required minimums in
both North America and Europe and TCCC has agreed
we are in compliance under the Jumpstart programs
through 2003.

TCCC’s support payments under the Jumpstart pro-
grams were paid in the early years of the agreements. We
received approximately $1.2 billion in payments during the
period 1994 through 2001. No additional amounts are
payable under the Jumpstart programs. We recognize
Jumpstart funding as we place cold drink equipment.
We recognized $72 million, $77 million, and $71 million
in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. These amounts
are included in “Operating expense support payments”
as a reduction of cost of sales.

We have an agreement with TCCC under which TCCC
provides support payments in “Marketing support fund-
ing earned” for the marketing of certain brands of TCCC
in the Herb territories acquired in 2001. Under the terms
of this agreement, we received $14 million in 2003 and will
receive $14 million annually through 2008 and $11 million
in 2009. Payments received under this agreement are not
refundable to TCCC.

We participate in cooperative advertising and brand and
trade arrangements with TCCC. Prior to 2002, we paid
TCCC a portion of the costs for participation in these pro-
grams. Beginning in 2002, all costs in our North American
territories under the customer trade marketing (CTM)
programs, excluding costs for certain specific customers
administered by TCCG, shifted to us and all costs for local
media programs in our North American territories shifted
to TCCC. However, we continue to pay TCCC and TCCC
pays our customers as a representative for the North
American bottling system. Amounts paid under CTM
programs to TCCC, included as reductions in net oper-
ating revenues for payment to customers on our behalf,
totaled $219 million for 2003, $248 million for 2002, and
$200 million for 2001. Amounts paid under cooperative
advertising and brand programs to TCCC, included in
selling, delivery, and administrative expenses, in 2001
totaled $52 million.
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Participation in Marketing Programs with TCCC: On occasion, we
participate in marketing programs outside the scope of
recurring arrangements with TCCC. In 2003 and 2002,
we paid TCCC approximately $2 million and $16 million,
respectively, for participation in marketing programs.

Syrup, Concentrate, Sweetener, and Finished Products: We purchase
syrup and concentrate requirements from TCCC to man-
ufacture, package, distribute, and sell TCCC products
under licensing agreements. These licensing agreements
give TCCC complete discretion to set prices of the syrups
and concentrates. We also purchase finished products
and fountain syrup from TCCC for sale within our terri-
tories and have an agreement with TCCC to purchase
substantially all our requirements for sweetener in the
United States.

Fountain Syrup and Packaged Product Sales: We sell fountain syrup
to TCCC in certain territories and deliver this syrup to
certain major fountain accounts of TCCC. We will, on
behalf of TCCC, invoice and collect amounts receivable
for these fountain sales. We also sell bottle and can prod-
uct to TCCC at prices that are generally similar to the
prices charged by us to our major customers.

Customer Marketing Group and Media Staff Cost Reimbursements: We
reached an agreement with TCCC in 2000 to transfer
certain responsibilities and the associated staffing for
customer marketing group (CMG) efforts in North
America to us from TCCC and for local media activities
from us to TCCC. Under the agreement, TCCC reim-
burses us for the CMG staffing costs transferred to us
and we reimburse TCCC for the local media staffing
costs transferred to TCCC. Amounts reimbursed to us
by TCCC for CMG staffing expenses were $43 million,
$38 million, and $25 million for 2003, 2002, and 2001,
respectively. These costs and cost reimbursements, as
applicable, are included in selling, delivery, and adminis-
trative expenses. Amounts reimbursed to TCCC for local
media staffing expenses were $18 million, $18 million,
and $17 million for 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
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Other Transactions: Other transactions with TCCC include
management fees, office space leases, and purchases of
point-of-sale and other advertising items.

In 2003, we sold a hot-fill plant in Truesdale, Missouri
to TCCC for approximately $58 million realizing cost
recoveries for operating, depreciation, and carrying costs
of $8 million as a reduction of cost of sales.

In 2003, we acquired the production and distribution
facilities of Chaudfontaine, a Belgian water brand. At the
same time, TCCC acquired the Chaudfontaine water source
and brand. The total acquisition cost for both TCCC and
CCE was $31 million in cash and assumed debt. Our por-
tion of the acquisition cost was $16 million in cash and
assumed debt. We also entered into an agreement with
TCCC to equally share the profits or losses from the sale
of Chaudfontaine products.

Note 17
GEOGRAPHIC OPERATING INFORMATION

CCE operates in one industry: the marketing, distribution,
and production of bottle and can nonalcoholic beverages.
We operate in 46 states in the United States, the District of
Columbia, and in the 10 provinces of Canada (collectively
referred to as the North American territories), and in
Belgium, continental France, Great Britain, Luxembourg,
Monaco, and the Netherlands (collectively referred to as
the European territories). We have no material amounts
of sales or transfers between our North American and
European territories and no significant United States
export sales.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The following presents long-lived assets as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002 and net operating revenues
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001
by geographic territory (in millions):

Long-Lived Assets

2003 2002
North American $17,180 $16,918
European®” 5,520 4,613
Consolidated $22,700 $21,531

Net Operating Revenues

2003 2002® 2001®©
North American $12,590 $12,269 $11,549
European® 4,740 3,789 3,450
Consolidated $17,330 $16,0568 $14,999

(A) At December 31, 2003 and 2002, Great Britain represented approximately
63 percent and 65 percent, respectively, of European long-lived assets. Great
Britain contributed approximately 48 percent, 51 percent, and 49 percent of
European net operating revenues for 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

(B) 1o conform to the current year presentation, afier the adoption of EITF 02-16
in the first quarter 2003, 2002 net operating revenues have been classified as
follows: approximately $707 million and $175 million of marketing support in
North America and Europe, respectively, previously included in net operating
revenues have been classified as reductions of cost of sales and $51 million of
payments for dispensing equipment repair services in North America previously
included in selling, delivery, and administrative expenses have been classified
as net operating revenues. In addition, 2001 net operating revenues have been
classified as follows: approximately $459 million and $192 million of market-
ing support in North America and Europe, respectively, previously included in
net operating revenues have been classified as reductions of cost of sales and
$45 million of payments for dispensing equipment repair services in North
America previously included in selling, delivery, and administrative expenses
have been classified as net operating revenues.

(C) Balances reflect the adoption of EITF No. 01-09 effective as of January 1,
2002. The adoption of this pronouncement resulled in the reclassification to
deductions from net operating revenues of approximately $95 million in 2001
previously classified as selling expenses.
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Note 18

FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARD (FAS) 142,
“GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS”

As of January 1, 2002, we no longer amortize goodwill and
license intangible assets with an indefinite life under FAS 142
but instead evaluate these assets for impairment annually.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The 2001 financial statements do not reflect the adoption of
FAS 142. Had we adopted FAS 142 on January 1, 2001, net
income (loss) and basic and diluted net income (loss) per
common share would have been as follows (in millions
except per share data; per share data calculated prior to
rounding to millions):

Add: License
Intangible Income Tax Adjusted
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001: As Reported Amortization Impact for FAS 142
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners $ (324) $ 391 $(142) $ (75)
Net income (loss) applicable to common
shareowners per basic and diluted common share $(0.75) $0.91 $(0.33) $(0.17)

We acquire license territories to expand our market.
Prior to the adoption of Financial Accounting Standard
No. 141 (FAS 141), “Business Combinations,” we assigned
all costs of acquisitions in excess of the value of tangible
net assets acquired to license intangible assets with no
amounts assigned to goodwill. FAS 141 specifically defines
goodwill and provides criteria to apply when recognizing
other intangible assets. Under FAS 141, beginning with
the Herb acquisition in July 2001, we assigned specific
values to assets, liabilities and license and customer rela-
tionship intangibles. The residual value represents
goodwill which primarily results from the synergistic values
of the acquisition and the establishment of deferred tax
liabilities on license intangible assets not deductible for
income taxes.

License agreements contain performance requirements
and convey to the licensee the rights to distribute and sell
products of the licensor within specified territories. Our
domestic cola license agreements with TCCC do not expire,
reflecting a long and ongoing relationship. Our agree-
ments with TCCC covering our United States non-cola
and European and Canadian operations are periodically
renewable. TCCC does not grant perpetual license intangible
rights outside the United States, however, these agreements
can be renewed with minimal cost for additional terms at
our request. We believe and expect these and other renew-
able licensor agreements will be renewed at each expiration
date. After evaluation of the renewal provisions and our
mutually beneficial relationship with The Coca-Cola
Company, all license intangible assets have been assigned
an indefinite life for accounting under FAS 142.

Under FAS 142, we perform our impairment testing
of goodwill at the North American and European Group
levels, our reporting units. Under the provisions of EITF
Issue No. 02-7, “Unit of Accounting for Testing Impairment

of Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets,” we also perform our
impairment testing of license intangible assets at the North
American and European group levels.

The fair values of the reporting units and their respec-
tive license intangibles are determined using discounted
cash flow models similar to those used internally by us
for evaluating acquisitions with comparisons to esti-
mated market values. Our discounted cash flow models
for 2003 utilize projections of cash flows for ten years,

a perpetuity valuation technique with an assumed long-
term growth rate of approximately 2.5 percent, and
discounted projected cash flows and terminal values
based on our targeted near-term weighted average cost
of capital of 7.2 percent. Assumed average growth rates
approximated 2 percent consolidated volume growth,
approximately 4.5 percent consolidated revenue and
cost of sales per case growth, approximately 4 percent
consolidated administrative expense growth, and approxi-
mately 5 percent to 6 percent operating income growth,
which we consider conservative for long-term projections,
with differing rates in our North American and European
groups. Projected cash flows of license intangibles are
reduced by an approximate 2 percent economic charge
for workforce, customer relationship, working capital, and
property, plant, and equipment assets of the reporting units.
Changes in these assumptions could materially impact the
fair value estimates.

Our impairment tests for goodwill and license intangible
assets compare the carrying amounts of these assets with
estimated fair values. The fair values of goodwill and
license intangible assets exceed their carrying amounts
and, therefore, the assets are not impaired. Had the carry-
ing amounts of goodwill exceeded fair values, a second
step in the impairment test would be required to measure
the amount of a goodwill impairment loss. This step would
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compare the implied fair values of the reporting unit’s
goodwill with the carrying amount of goodwill. If the
carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the
implied fair value of goodwill, an impairment loss would
be recognized in an amount equal to that excess.

We provide deferred income taxes on license intangible
assets not deductible for tax purposes under FAS 109. Prior
to FAS 142, license intangible assets were amortized over
40 years. As this amortization cost was recognized, the
related deferred tax liability was recognized as a decrease
in income tax expense. Under FAS 142, previously rec-
ognized unamortized balances of license intangible assets
and associated deferred income tax liabilities remain

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

unchanged except upon the recognized impairment in
the value of these assets or any ultimate sale of territories.
At December 31, 2003 and 2002, we had approximately
$5.0 billion and $4.6 billion of deferred tax liabilities,
respectively, on license intangible assets. These deferred
tax liabilities, while impacted by tax rate changes and
currency translations, will decrease only for the reasons
above but will increase for the effect of any tax deductions
realized on tax deductible license intangible assets.

Goodwill and license intangible assets at December 31,
2003 associated with acquisitions completed in 2003 may
continue to be adjusted as the values of assets and liabilities
acquired are finalized.

Note 19
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments: The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations
and commercial commitments as of December 31, 2003 (in millions):

Payments due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter
Long-term debt $11,646 $1,094 $ 273 $2,052 $ 921 § 877 $6,429
Long-term purchase agreements 9,779 2,260 2,353 1,810 1,459 1,056 841
Operating leases (future minimum) 402 76 58 40 31 32 165
Customer contractual arrangements 435 99 89 78 105 55 9
Total contractual cash obligations $22,622  $3,529 $2,773  $3,980 $2,516 $2,020 $7,444
Amount of Commitment Expiration per Period
Other Commercial Commitments Total 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter
Standby letters of credit $ 365 $ 356 % 9 $ - $ - % - -
Affiliate guarantees 196 5 = 35 8 10 138
Total commercial commitments $ 561 $ 361 % 9 $ 35 §$ 8 $ 10 $ 138

Purchase Agreements: The long-term purchase agreements we
have with various suppliers are subject to each supplier’s
quality and performance.

Operating Leases: We lease office and warehouse space, com-
puter hardware, and machinery and equipment under
noncancelable operating lease agreements expiring at
various dates through 2039. Rent expense under non-
cancelable operating lease agreements totaled approximately
$144 million, $99 million, and $85 million during 2003,
2002, and 2001, respectively.

Customer Contracts: We participate in customer contractual
arrangements for pouring or vending rights in specific
athletic venues, specific school districts, or other venues.

Letters of Credit: We have issued letters of credit as collateral
for claims incurred under self-insurance programs for
workers’ compensation and large deductible casualty insur-
ance programs aggregating $361 million and letters of credit
provided for operating activities aggregating $4 million. In
December 2003, we executed a committed letter of credit
facility under self-insurance programs in the amount of
$390 million. Approximately $241 million of the total out-
standing at December 31, 2003 is covered by this facility
and the majority of the remaining outstanding letters of
credit are to be transferred to the facility in 2004.

Affiliate Guarantees: We guarantee debt and other obligations
of certain third parties. In North America, we guarantee
repayment of indebtedness owed by a PET (plastic) bottle
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manufacturing cooperative. We also guarantee repayment
of indebtedness owed by a vending partnership in which
we have a limited partnership interest.

As of December 31, 2003, we have guaranteed payment
of up to $262 million owed by certain affiliates, primarily
those noted above, to third parties. At December 31, 2003,
these affiliates had approximately $196 million of indebt-
edness guaranteed by us, of which $195 million is owed
by a manufacturing cooperative and a vending partner-
ship. We hold no assets as collateral against these guar-
antees and no contractual recourse provisions exist
under the guarantees that would enable us to recover
amounts we guarantee in the event of an occurrence of a
triggering event under these guarantees. These guaran-
tees, which expire at varying dates through 2015, arose as
a result of our ongoing business relationships. No
amounts are recorded for our obligations under these
guarantees as we consider the risk of default associated
with these guarantees to be remote.

Other Contingencies: Our business practices are being reviewed
by the European Commission in various jurisdictions for
alleged abuses of an alleged dominant position under
Article 82 of the EU Treaty. We do not believe we have

a dominant position in the relevant markets, or that our
current or past commercial practices violate EU law.
Nonetheless, the Commission has considerable discretion
in reaching conclusions and levying fines, which are sub-
ject to judicial review. The Commission has not notified
us when it might reach any conclusions.

In addition, we are also the subject of investigations
by Belgian and French competition law authorities for
our compliance with respect to competition laws. These
proceedings are subject to further review and we intend
to continue to vigorously defend against an unfavorable
outcome. At this time, it is not possible for us to deter-
mine the ultimate outcome of this matter.

Our California subsidiary has been sued by several
current and former employees over alleged violations of
state wage and hour rules. Our California subsidiary is
vigorously defending against the claims but at this time
it is not possible to predict the outcome.

Our California subsidiary was also involved in another
lawsuit by current and former employees over alleged viola-
tions of state wage and hour rules that settled in 2001. In
late 2003 we received proceeds of approximately $21 mil-
lion from our insurance carriers to reimburse us for the
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cost of this settlement.

In 2000, CCE and TCCC were found by a Texas jury
to be jointly liable in a combined amount of $15.2 million
to five plaintiffs, each a distributor of competing beverage
products. These distributors sued alleging that CCE and
TCCC engaged in unfair marketing practices. The trial
court’s verdict was upheld by the Texas Court of Appeals
in July 2003; we and TCCC have applied to the Texas
Supreme Court for leave to appeal to that court. We believe
our accruals are adequate to cover the damages awarded
by the trial court if its verdict is allowed to stand. The claims
of the three remaining plaintiffs in this case remain to be
tried and four additional competitors have filed similar
claims against us. We have not provided for any poten-
tial awards under these additional claims. We intend to
vigorously defend against these claims.

In June 2003, Riverwood International Corporation
filed a patent infringement suit against Mead Westvaco
Corporation in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Georgia. We currently hold a multi-
year supply contract with MeadWestvaco for the supply
of paperboard cartons, including the cartons known as
the “Fridge Pack.” Riverwood’s suit sought to enjoin
MeadWestvaco from supplying us with Fridge Pack pack-
aging. An agreement related to this suit was reached in
late 2003 requiring us to pay approximately $4 million
to settle any and all claims related to this matter.

Under the Jumpstart programs with TCCC, we received
payments from TCCC for a portion of the cost of devel-
oping the infrastructure (consisting primarily of people
and systems) necessary to support accelerated placements
of cold drink equipment. We recognize the payments
primarily as cold drink equipment is placed, through
2008, and over the period we have the potential require-
ment to move equipment, through 2020. Should we not
satisty the provisions of the programs, the agreement
provides for the parties to meet to work out mutually
agreeable solutions. Should the parties be unable to agree
on alternative solutions, TCCC would be able to seek a
partial refund of amounts previously paid. No refunds
have ever been paid under the programs and we believe
the probability of a partial refund of amounts previously
paid under the programs is remote. We believe we, in all
cases, will be able to resolve any matters that might arise
regarding these programs. In 2003, we did not meet cer-
tain requirements for the allocation of purchases between
venders and coolers and minimum purchase requirements
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in certain countries because of changes in the business
environment. However, in total we did purchase and place
the required minimums in both North America and
Europe and TCCC has agreed to our compliance under
the Jumpstart programs through 2003.

Under the SGI agreement with TCCC, we are eligible
to receive up to $165 million of “Volume Growth Funding”
in 2004 which is to be earned by attaining mutually estab-
lished sales volume growth targets for brands owned by
TCCC. The annual and quarterly target minimums are
established for each program year through mutual agree-
ments with TCCC. Sales volume growth is determined
through a formula with adjustments for brand conver-
sions, brand acquisitions, new brand introductions, and
performance in excess of the previous year’s perform-
ance. If these minimum targets are not met, penalties
of $1 per equivalent case shortfalls to target are offset
against the Volume Growth Funding available under the
program. Under the SGI agreement, quarterly funding
commitments are advanced at the beginning of each quar-
ter less penalties for shortfalls to targets not previously
offset. We do not anticipate we will incur penalties that will
be offset against the $165 million Volume Growth Funding
available to us under the SGI agreement for 2004.

Our tax filings are routinely subjected to audit by tax
authorities in most jurisdictions where we conduct busi-
ness. These audits may result in assessments of additional
taxes that are subsequently resolved with the authorities or
potentially through the courts. Currently, there are assess-
ments or audits which may lead to assessments involving
certain of our subsidiaries, including our subsidiary in
Canada, that may not be resolved in the foreseeable future.
We believe we have substantial defenses to the questions
being raised and intend to pursue all legal remedies
available if we are unable to reach a resolution with the
authorities. We believe we have adequately provided for
any ultimate amounts that would result from these pro-
ceedings, however, it is too early to predict a final outcome
in these matters.

In December 2003, we settled our claims against our
insurance carriers for the losses we incurred in the 1999
Belgian recall. Under the agreement, we received $47.5 mil-
lion upon the execution of a final settlement agreement
in exchange for a release of our claims. We do not antici-
pate any additional recoveries associated with the product
recall in Belgium.
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At January 31, 2004, there were two federal and two
state superfund sites for which CCE and our bottling
subsidiaries’ involvement or liability as a potentially
responsible party (PRP) was unresolved. We believe any
ultimate liability under these PRP designations will not
have a material adverse effect on our financial position,
cash flows, or results of operations. In addition, we or
our bottling subsidiaries have been named PRPs at 35
other federal and 10 other state superfund sites under
circumstances that have led us to conclude that either
(i) we will have no further liability because we had no
responsibility for having deposited hazardous waste,

(i1) our ultimate liability, if any, would be less than $100,000
per site, or (iii) payments made to date will be sufficient
to satisfy all liability.

We are a defendant in various other matters of litigation
generally arising out of the normal course of business.
Although it is difficult to predict the ultimate outcome of
these cases, management believes, based on discussions with
counsel, that any ultimate liability would not materially affect
our financial position, results of operations, or liquidity.

Note 20
NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46
(FIN 46), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,”
revised December 2003. FIN 46 requires variable inter-
est entities to be consolidated by the primary beneficiary
of the entity in certain instances. FIN 46 is effective for
all new variable interest entities created or acquired after
January 31, 2003. For variable interest entities created
or acquired prior to February 1, 2003, the provisions of
FIN 46 are to be applied by us in the first quarter of 2004.
We participate in manufacturing cooperatives and have
ownership in a vending partnership. Amounts owed by
these entities at December 31, 2003 total $240 million.
We are currently evaluating the implications of the adop-
tion of FIN 46 on our financial position, cash flows, and
results of operations. Should we determine under FIN 46
we are required to consolidate the manufacturing coop-
eratives and vending partnership, our debt balances will
increase by the amounts then owed by these entities.
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----------------------------------------------------- Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements -

Note 21
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Unaudited quarterly financial information and summarized fiscal year financial information which is audited follows
(in millions except per share data):

2003 First® Second®  Third® Fourth® Fiscal Year
Net operating revenues $3,667 $4617 $4734 $4,312 $ 17,330
Gross profit $1519 $1927 $1956 $ 1,763 $ 7,165
Net income applicable to common shareowners $ 27 $ 259 $ 259 $ 128 $ 674¢
Basic net income per share applicable to common shareowners $ 006 $ 057 $ 057 $ 0.28 $ 148
Diluted net income per share applicable to common shareowners $ 006 $ 056 $ 056 $ 0.28 $ 146
2002 First Second  Third® Fourth® Fiscal Year®
Net operating revenues $3,466 $4,234 $4,328  $4,029 $16,058
Gross profit $1,403 $1,763 $1,780 $1,653 $ 6,600
Net income applicable to common shareowners $ 9 $ 214 $ 190 $ 77 $ 491
Basic net income per share applicable to common shareowners $ 002 $ 048 §$ 042 $ 0.17 $ 1.09
Diluted net income per share applicable to common shareowners $ 002 $ 047 $ 042 § 0.17 $ 1.07®

For quarterly reporting, we report on the Friday closest to the end of the quarterly calendar period for reporting convenience.

(A) Net income for the first quarter of 2003 includes a $5 million ($0.01 per diluted common share) benefit from the sale of a manufacturing facility to TCCC and a
85 million ($0.01 per diluted common share) reduction in interest expense from a retroactive adjustment on certain interest rate swap agreements as a result of
declining interest rates.

(B) Net income for the second quarter of 2003 includes a $7 million ($0.02 per diluted common share) benefit from the revaluation of income tax obligations.

(C) Net income for the third quarter of 2003 includes a $4 million ($0.01 per diluted common share) net benefit from the revaluation of income tax obligations.

(D) Net income for the fourth quarter of 2003 includes a $44 million ($0.10 per diluted common share) benefit from the receipt of insurance proceeds, a $20 million
($0.04 per diluted common share) net benefit as a result of the revaluation of various income tax obligations and a $9 million ($0.02 per diluted common share)
benefit from the settlement of pre-acquisition contingencies, offset by a $23 million ($0.05 per diluted common share) charge as a result of provincial income tax
rale changes in certain provinces in Canada.

(E) Net income in the third quarter of 2002 includes a benefit from the revaluation of income tax obligations of $4 million ($0.01 per common share).

(F) Net income for the fourth quarter of 2002 includes a $16 million benefit for the settlement of supplier rebates and a $16 million charge for additional marketing
costs with TCCC. In addition, income tax expense in the fourth quarter of 2002 includes the benefit of income tax rate changes totaling approximately $16 million
($0.03 per common share).

(G) Due to rounding, the quarterly amounts do not total the full-year amounts.

(H) Due to rounding and. the method required by FAS No. 128 to calculate per share data, the quarterly per share data does not total the full-year per share data.

60



Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.

Management’s

Financial Review

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The following table presents consolidated income state-
ment data as a percentage of net operating revenues for
the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001:

2003 2002 2001
Net operating revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales 58.7 58.9 60.1
Gross profit 413  41.1 39.9
Selling, delivery, and
administrative expenses 32.2 32.6 35.9
Operating income 9.1 8.5 4.0
Interest expense, net 3.5 4.1 5.0
Other nonoperating income, net 0.0 0.0 0.0

Income (loss) before income taxes

and cumulative effect

of accounting change 5.6 4.4 (1.0)
Income tax expense (benefit) 1.7 1.3 0.9)

Net income (loss) before
cumulative effect

of accounting change 3.9 3.1 (0.1)
Cumulative effect of accounting

change, net of taxes 0.0 0.0 (2.0)
Net income (loss) 3.9 3.1 2.1)
Preferred stock dividends 0.0 0.0 0.0

Net income (loss) applicable

to common shareowners 39% 3.1% (2.1)%

Our results for all periods presented in this Annual
Report reflect our adoption of Emerging Issues Task Force
(EITF) No. 02-16, “Accounting by a Customer (Including
a Reseller) for Cash Consideration Received from a Vendor,”
affecting how we classify payments from vendors. Under
the provisions of EITF 02-16, cash consideration received
by a customer from a vendor is presumed to be a reduction
in cost of sales. Under EITF 02-16, our income statements
classify marketing funding and cold drink equipment place-
ment funding received from The Coca-Cola Company
(T'CCC) and other licensors in cost of sales. These payments
were previously included in net operating revenues as a
reduction of discounts and allowances given to customers
or as a reduction in selling, delivery, and administrative
expenses, respectively. We have elected to apply EITF 02-16
to all existing programs, and accordingly, all reported

periods reflect this classification requirement. Upon adop-
tion of EITF 02-16 in 2003, we classified as reductions
in cost of sales in the 2002 and 2001 income statements
approximately $882 million and $651 million of direct
marketing support from TCCC and other licensors pre-
viously included in net operating revenues for the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. For the
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, we classified in
cost of sales approximately $77 million and $74 million,
respectively, of cold drink equipment placement funding
previously included in selling, delivery, and administra-
tive expenses. We also classified in net operating revenues
$51 million and $45 million of net payments for dispensing
equipment repair services received from TCCC, previ-
ously included in selling, delivery, and administrative
expenses for the years ended December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively.

EITF No. 01-09, “Accounting for Consideration Given
by a Vendor to a Customer or Reseller of the Vendor’s
Products,” was effective beginning January 1, 2002 and
required certain selling expenses we incur to be classified
as deductions from revenue. Comparable amounts for
prior years were required to be classified in accordance
with this EITF consensus. We classified approximately
$95 million of selling expenses as deductions in net
operating revenues in 2001.

Operating Income

2003 - In 2003, reported operating income increased
16 percent to $1,577 million from $1,364 million for 2002.
Comparable operating income of $1,487 million in 2003
increased 9 percent from 2002. There were no items in 2002
affecting comparability of operating income. A reconcili-
ation of reported 2003 operating income to comparable
operating income is presented below (in millions):

2003 Reported Operating Income: $1,577
Net insurance proceeds (68)
Settlement of pre-acquisition contingencies (14)
Gain on sale of hot-fill facility (8)

2003 Comparable Operating Income $1,487
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Below are the significant components of the 9 percent
increase in comparable operating income in 2003:

Changes to Operating Income:

2003 increase in gross margin percentage 6%%
Incremental operating income

from increased volume 1%
Impact of currency exchange rate changes 4%
Increase in selling, delivery, and

administrative expenses (5)
Other operating income changes 1%

Total Percentage Increase in Operating Income 9 %

2002 - In 2002, reported operating income increased
127 percent to $1,364 million from $601 million for 2001.
Reported operating income increased 23 percent from
2001 comparable operating income of $1,109 million.
There were no items in 2002 affecting comparability

of operating income. A reconciliation of reported 2001
operating income to comparable operating income is
presented below (in millions):

2001 Reported Operating Income: $ 601
License intangible amortization 391
Restructuring charge 78
Additional six months of 2001 operating

income for the Herb acquisition 39

2001 Comparable Operating Income $1,109

Below are the significant components of the 23 percent
increase in operating income in 2002:

Changes to Operating Income:

2002 increase in gross margin percentage 11 %
Operating income improvements

(primarily a result of 2001 restructuring) 9
Incremental operating income

from increased volume 4%
Impact of currency exchange rate changes 1%
Incremental Project Pinnacle expenses

incurred in 2002 3)

Total Percentage Increase in Operating Income 23 %

Net Operating Revenues

2003 - Net operating revenues increased 8 percent to
$17.3 billion from $16.1 billion in 2002. Significant items
that impacted our 2003 net operating revenue growth
included unseasonably warm weather in Europe and our
efforts to increase pricing in North America. The rev-
enue split between our North American and European
operations was 73 percent and 27 percent, respectively.
Great Britain contributed approximately 48 percent of

62

M(magement’s Financial Review

European revenues in 2003. The following table outlines
the significant components of the increase in net operating
revenues in 2003:

North
Consolidated America Europe
Changes to Net Operating
Revenues:
Net price per case growth
in 2003 2%% 2 % 2%%
Incremental net operating
revenues from increased
volume 1% - 7%
Impact of currency
exchange rate changes 4 % 15
Total Percentage Increase
in Net Operating Revenues 8 % 2%% 25 %

We earn revenues from products when the product is
delivered or when we collect cash from vending machines.
We earn service revenues for equipment maintenance and
production when services are performed.

“Bottle and Can Net Pricing Per Case” and “Currency-
Neutral Bottle and Can Net Pricing Per Case” are provided
to assist in evaluation of bottle and can pricing trends in
the marketplace and to distinguish the impact of foreign
currency exchange rate changes to our operations. Bottle
and can net pricing per case is based on the invoice price
charged to customers reduced by promotional allowances
and excludes the impact of fountain gallon volume and
other items that are not directly associated with bottle and
can pricing in the retail environment. Our bottle and can
sales accounted for 91 percent of our net revenues for
2003. The following table presents the reconciliation of
these measures to the change in net revenues per case
for full-year 2003. All per case percentage changes are
rounded to the nearest % percent and are based on
wholesale physical case volume.

North
Consolidated America Europe
Change in Net Revenues
Per Case 6.0% 2.5% 16.5%
Impact of Excluding Post Mix
Revenues, Agency Revenues,
and Other Revenues 0.5 0.0 0.5
Bottle and Can Net
Pricing Per Case 6.5 2.5 17.0
Impact of Currency
Exchange Rate Changes (4.0) (0.5)  (14.5)
Currency-Neutral Bottle and
Can Net Pricing Per Case 2.5% 2.0% 2.5%
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Net pricing per case is impacted by the price charged
per package, the volume generated in each package, and
the channels in which those packages are sold. To the
extent we are able to increase volume in higher margin
packages that are sold through higher margin channels,
our bottle and can net pricing per case will increase without
an actual increase in wholesale pricing. For example, we
typically charge a lower net price per case and realize a
lower gross profit per case on a physical case of 12-ounce
cans sold in a supermarket than a case of 20-ounce bottles
sold in convenience stores. The increases in 2003 reflect
our continued commitment to pricing initiatives in both
North America and Europe.

We participate in various programs and arrangements
with customers designed to increase the sales of our
products by these customers. Among the programs with
customers are arrangements in which allowances can be
earned by the customer for attaining agreed-upon sales
levels and/or for participating in specific marketing pro-
grams. Coupon programs and under-the-cap promotions
are also developed on a territory-specific basis with the
intent of increasing sales for all customers. The cost of all
of these various programs, included as deductions in net
operating revenues, totaled approximately $1,729 million
and $1,484 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. The
increase in the cost of these programs is primarily due
to volume increases, the impact of foreign currency
translation, and our increased focus on improved rev-
enue management in 2003. Increases in the frequency
and costs of these programs were necessary to improve
net pricing in 2003. Accordingly, the cost of these pro-
grams as a percentage of gross revenues was 6.2 percent
in 2003 as compared to 5.9 percent for 2002.

We also participate in contractual arrangements for
pouring or vending rights in specific athletic venues, specific
school districts, or other locations. The net unamortized
balance of these arrangements at December 31, 2003
totaled approximately $536 million (consisting of gross
amounts of approximately $922 million net of $386 million
in accumulated amortization) included in other noncur-
rent assets. Amortization expense on these assets, included
as deductions in net operating revenues, totaled approx-
imately $143 million, $128 million, and $89 million in
2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. Estimated amortization
expense for assets existing at December 31, 2003 for the
next five fiscal years is as follows (in millions): 2004 — $127;
2005 — $115; 2006 — $104; 2007 — $92; and 2008 — $79.

At December 31, 2003, the liability associated with
these arrangements totaled approximately $435 million,
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$99 million of which is included in accounts payable and
accrued expenses and $336 million of which is included
in other long-term obligations. Cash payments on these
obligations totaled approximately $82 million, $79 million
and $59 million in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
Over the next five years and thereafter, future payments
required under these contractual arrangements are as
follows (in millions): 2004 — $99; 2005 — $89; 2006 — $78;
2007 — $105; 2008 — $55; and thereafter — $9. For pres-
entation purposes, amortization expense included in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows is reduced by the
amount of cash payments made under these arrangements.

2002 - Net operating revenues increased 7 percent to
$16.1 billion from $15.0 billion in 2001. The revenue
split between our North American and European oper-
ations was 76 percent and 24 percent, respectively.
Great Britain contributed approximately 51 percent

of European revenues in 2002.

The following table presents the reconciliation of
“Bottle and Can Net Pricing Per Case” and “Currency-
Neutral Bottle and Can Net Pricing Per Case” to the change
in net revenues per case for full-year 2002. The changes
have been adjusted to include the impact of the Herb
acquisition as if completed on January 1, 2001. All per case
percentage changes are rounded to the nearest /4 percent
and are based on wholesale physical case volume.

North
Consolidated America Europe
Change in Net Revenues
Per Case 0.0% (1.5)%  5.5%
Impact of Excluding Post Mix
Revenues, Agency Revenues,
and Other Revenues 1.0 1.0 1.0
Reported Change 1.0 (0.5) 6.5

Impact of Adjustments

for the Settlement of

Promotional Programs

and Other Items Affecting

Comparability (0.5) (0.5) 0.0
Impact of Constant

Territory Adjustments

for Acquisitions 1.0 1.0 0.0
Bottle and Can Net
Pricing Per Case 1.5 0.0 6.5
Impact of Currency
Exchange Rate Changes (1.0) 0.5 (4.5)
Currency-Neutral Bottle and
Can Net Pricing Per Case 0.5% 0.5% 2.0%
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The cost of various programs and arrangements with
customers designed to increase the sales of our products
by those customers, included as deductions in net oper-
ating revenues, totaled approximately $1,484 million
and $1,314 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively. The
increase in the cost of these programs is due to volume
increases as well as the change in our relationship with
TCCC. Beginning in 2002, all costs associated with cus-
tomer cooperative trade marketing programs (CTM),
except for certain identified customers, shifted to us, and
all costs for local media programs in North America
shifted to TCCC.

Volume

2003 - Comparable volume results, as adjusted for
acquisitions completed in 2002 and 2003, are reconciled
to volume changes for full-year 2003 in the following table.

North
Consolidated America Europe
Change in Volume 2.0% 0.5% 7.5%
Impact of Acquisitions (0.5) (0.5) (2.0)
Comparable Bottle
and Can Volume 1.5% 0.0% 5.5%

Comparable volume results are presented below for
2003 by major brand category:

Change % of Total
North America:
My Coke Portfolio 1) % 61 %
Flavors 1 26
Juices, Isotonics, and Other (1) 8
Water 12% 5
Total 0 % 100 %
Europe:
My Coke Portfolio 6 % 66%%
Flavors 3 22
Juices, Isotonics, and Other 1 8
Water 25 3%
Total 5%% 100 %
Consolidated:
My Coke Portfolio 1 % 62 %
Flavors 1 25
Juices, Isotonics, and Other (1) 8
Water 14% 5
Total 1%% 100 %
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Our total market share in our territories did not
change in 2003 as compared to 2002. In 2003 and 2002,
our sales represented approximately 13 percent of total
nonalcoholic beverage sales in our North American terri-
tories and approximately 8 percent of total nonalcoholic
beverage sales in our European territories. Sales of our
products compared to combined alcoholic and nonalcoholic
beverage products in our territories would be significantly
less in both years.

On a physical case basis, North American operations
comprised 76 percent and 77 percent of our 2003 and
2002 volume, respectively. Our consolidated can volume
for 2003 was approximately the same as 2002. Our 500-ml
PET volume increased 12 percent on a consolidated basis,
8 percent in North America, and 16 percent in Europe.
The new 24-ounce PET bottle generated very positive
consumer response in its first full year of distribution
in North America.

The performance of our My Coke Portfolio brands in
2003 (includes all regular and diet Coca-Cola trademark
products) indicated a consumer preference for more health-
conscious choices. We face an emerging challenge with
the heightened emphasis on health and wellness issues.
Consumers are demanding more beverage choices and we
must have the products and packages available to accom-
modate these changing wants and needs. This is particularly
important in the elementary and middle school segment
of our education channel. Our total education channel,
consisting of elementary, middle, and high schools, along
with colleges and universities, contributed approximately
2% percent of our total volume in 2003. With a portfolio
that includes juices and juice drinks, refreshment brands
like Sprite and Coca-Cola classic, and hydration and energy
brands such as Dasani and Powerade, we believe we are
in an excellent position to meet the health and wellness
sensitivities of the education and other channels.

Diet Coke/Coke light volume increased approximately
4 percent on a consolidated basis for 2003. In North America,
the reintroduction of diet Cherry Coke and the introduction
of diet Vanilla Coke in 2002 partially offset lower volume
of Coca-Cola classic in 2003. In Europe, the success of
Coke light with lemon and the introduction of diet Vanilla
Coke, along with the introduction of Vanilla Coke, con-
tributed to a significant growth in trademark brands in 2003.

On a consolidated basis, the increase in flavors volume
was attributable to a 9 percent increase in Fanta volume
for the year, and the performance of water brands is
mostly due to strong sales of Dasani in North America.
European water growth benefited from the unseason-
ably warm summer weather and the acquisition of the
Chaudfontaine water brand.
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2002 - Comparable volume results, as adjusted for acqui-
sitions completed in 2001 and 2002, are reconciled to
volume changes for full-year 2002 in the following table.
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North
Consolidated America Europe
Change in Volume 7.0% 8.0% 4.5%
Impact of Constant
Territory Adjustments
For Acquisitions (8.0) (4.5) 0.0
Comparable Bottle
and Can Volume 4.0% 3.5% 4.5%

Comparable volume results for 2002 are presented
below by major brand category:

Change % of Total
North America:
My Coke Portfolio 4 % 62 %
Flavors (4) 2b%
Juices, Isotonics, and Other 18% 8
Water 29 4%
Total 3%% 100 %
Europe:
My Coke Portfolio 2 % 67 %
Flavors 7% 23
Juices, Isotonics, and Other 13 8
Water 27 2
Total 4%% 100 %
Consolidated:
My Coke Portfolio 3%% 63 %
Flavors 2) 25
Juices, Isotonics, and Other 17% 8
Water 29 4
Total 4 % 100 %

On a physical case basis, North American operations
comprised 77 percent and 76 percent of our 2002 and 2001
volume, respectively. For our consolidated operations, our
20-ounce volume increased more than 8 percent in 2002,
our 500-ml volume increased more than 6% percent, and
can volume increased approximately 3 percent.

In 2002, we introduced several new brands and pack-
ages in both North America and Europe. In North America,
Vanilla Coke and diet Vanilla Coke were introduced. We
also added two juice drink extensions in 2002, Minute
Maid Pink Lemonade and Lemonade light. The Fridge
Pack was also introduced in 2002 in two test markets
and we expanded introduction of this package further in
our North American territories during 2003. In Europe,
we introduced diet Coke with lemon and several brand

extensions for Fanta. New, locally oriented, Fanta flavors
such as Fruit Twist in Great Britain, Latina in France, and
Sapaya in Belgium along with a new, proprietary contoured
bottle for Fanta, generated positive consumer response.

Cost of Sales

2003 - Cost of sales increased 7 percent to $10,165 million
for 2003 from $9,458 million for 2002. “Bottle and Can
Cost of Sales Per Case” and “Currency-Neutral Bottle and
Can Cost of Sales Per Case” are provided to assist in eval-
uating cost trends for bottle and can products and to
distinguish the impact of foreign currency exchange rate
changes to our operations. These measures exclude the
impact of fountain ingredient costs, as well as marketing
credits and Jumpstart funding, to isolate the change in
bottle and can ingredient and packaging costs. The follow-
ing table presents the reconciliation of these measures to
the change in cost of sales per case for full-year 2003. All
per case percentage changes are rounded to the nearest
% percent and are based on wholesale physical case volume.

North
Consolidated America Europe
Change in Cost of Sales
Per Case 5.5% 2.0% 15.0%
Impact of Excluding Bottle
and Can Marketing Credits
and Jumpstart Funding (0.5) (1.0) 0.0
Impact of Excluding Costs
of Post Mix Revenues,
Agency Revenues,
and Other Revenues 0.5 0.5 0.0
Bottle and Can Cost of Sales
Per Case 5.5 1.5 15.0
Impact of Currency
Exchange Rate Changes (4.5) (1.0) (14.0)
Currency-Neutral Bottle and
Can Cost of Sales Per Case 1.0% 0.5% 1.0%

Our cost of sales per case results for 2003 reflect con-
tinued favorable can pricing that was offset by moderate
PET and concentrate cost increases, including carbonated
beverage concentrate cost increases for full-year 2003 of
approximately 1 percent in North America and 2 percent
in Europe.

In 2003, we sold a hot-fill plant in Truesdale,
Missouri to TCCC for approximately $58 million realiz-
ing cost recoveries for operating, depreciation, and car-
rying costs of $8 million as a reduction of cost of sales.
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2002 - Cost of sales increased 5 percent to $9,458 million
for 2002 from $9,015 million for 2001. The following
table presents the reconciliation of “Bottle and Can Cost
of Sales Per Case” and “Currency-Neutral Bottle and
Can Cost of Sales Per Case” to the change in cost of sales
per case for full-year 2002. The changes have been adjusted
to include the impact of the Herb acquisition as if com-
pleted on January 1, 2001. All per case percentage changes
are rounded to the nearest % percent and are based on
wholesale physical case volume.

North
Consolidated America Europe
Change in Cost of Sales
Per Case (2.0)% (4.00%  5.0%

Impact of Excluding Bottle

and Can Marketing Credits

and Jumpstart Funding 2.0 3.5 (2.5)
Impact of Excluding Costs

of Post Mix Revenues,

Agency Revenues, and

Other Revenues 0.5 0.0 1.5
Impact of Constant Territory
Adjustments for Acquisitions 0.5 0.0 0.0
Bottle and Can Cost
of Sales Per Case 1.0 (0.5) 4.0
Impact of Currency
Exchange Rate Changes (1.0) 0.5 (4.5)

Currency-Neutral Bottle and

Can Cost of Sales Per Case 0.0% 0.0% (0.5)%

Our cost of sales per case results for 2002 reflect lower
packaging material costs and favorable overhead costs
which offset our increase in concentrate costs, including
carbonated beverage concentrate cost increases for full-
year 2002 of approximately 1/ percent in North America
and 2% percent in Europe.

Selling, Delivery, and Administrative Expenses

2003 - Selling, delivery, and administrative (SD&A)
expenses increased 7 percent to $5,588 million in 2003
from $5,236 million in 2002. The following table presents
the impact of favorable items and currency exchange
rate changes on the change in selling, delivery, and
administrative expenses for 2003 from 2002.

Reported Selling, Delivery, and

Administrative Expenses 7%
Impact of Insurance Proceeds and Settlement

of Pre-acquisition Contingencies 1
Impact of Currency Exchange Rate Changes (3)

Currency-Neutral Change in Selling, Delivery, and
Administrative Expenses 5%
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On a currency-neutral basis, this increase reflects our
commitment to closely manage our costs and control
operating expense growth. On a currency-neutral basis,
our reported SD&A expenses increased 3 percent in
North America and 6 percent in Europe. For North
America, this change in SD&A expenses excludes the
benefit of $21 million related to the receipt of insurance
proceeds and $14 million related to the settlement of
pre-acquisition contingencies. For Europe, this change
in SD&A excludes the benefit of the receipt of $47 mil-
lion in insurance proceeds.

The following table presents selling, delivery, and admin-
istrative expenses as a percentage of net operating revenues.
(in millions):

2003 2002

Selling, Delivery, and
Administrative Expenses

$ 5588 § 5,236

Net Operating Revenues 17,330 16,058
Selling, Delivery, and Administrative

Expenses as a percentage

of Net Operating Revenues 32.2% 32.6%

The decrease in 2003 from 2002 results from our
favorable increases in volume and net pricing per case
partially offset by moderate SD&A cost growth.

Depreciation expense increased $57 million to
$1,022 million for 2003 from $965 million for 2002.
Approximately $55 million of this increase was included
in selling, delivery, and administrative expenses with
the balance included in cost of sales. The increase in
depreciation expense is a result of increased capital
expenditures in recent years.

In 2003, our restructuring accrual decreased by
$14 million due to payments for severance benefits of
approximately $13 million and estimate adjustments
of approximately $1 million, including payment of all
remaining amounts related to Great Britain’s 2002
restructuring. The remaining balance of $3 million at
December 31, 2003 represents remaining severance
benefits to be paid.
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2002 - SD&A expenses declined approximately 3 percent
to $5,236 million in 2002 as compared to reported SD&A
of $5,383 million in 2001. SD&A expenses increased

5 percent from 2001 comparable SD&A expenses of
$5,004 million. There were no items in 2002 affecting
comparability of SD&A expenses. A reconciliation of
reported 2001 SD&A to comparable SD&A is presented
below (in millions):
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2001 Reported Selling, Delivery,

and Administrative Expenses $5,383
License intangible amortization (391)
2001 restructuring charge (78)
Media expenses due to the
change in our media programs (46)
SD&A expense for the first 6 months
of 2001 for Herb 136
2001 Comparable Selling, Delivery,
and Administrative Expenses $5,004

The 5 percent increase in comparable SD&A expenses
in 2002 is primarily attributable to incremental expenses
associated with additional volume, the impact of curren-
cy exchange rate changes, and incremental operating
expenses associated with Project Pinnacle.

The restructuring charges in 2001 related to a series
of steps designed to improve our cost structure, includ-
ing the elimination of unnecessary support functions
following the consolidation of North America into one
operating unit and streamlining management of the
North American operations.

Beginning in 2002, all costs associated with local media
programs in North America shifted to TCCC. Selling, deliv-
ery, and administrative expenses, which included local
media expense in 2001, would have been approximately
$46 million lower had this arrangement been in place in
2001. As a result, the shift of local media costs impacts
income statement comparisons between 2002 and 2001.

Depreciation expense increased approximately
$64 million for 2002 as compared to 2001. Approximately
$50 million of this increase was included in selling, deliv-
ery, and administrative expenses with the balance included
in cost of sales. Approximately $23 million of the total
increase is due to depreciation of assets acquired in the
Herb acquisition for a full year in 2002 as compared to
six months for 2001 with the remaining increase result-
ing from increased capital expenditures in recent years.

In 2002, our restructuring accrual decreased by approxi-
mately $24 million for severance benefits payments of
$25 million and estimate reduction adjustments of $4 mil-

lion offset by $5 million in costs for a 2002 restructuring
program in Great Britain. The restructuring in Great
Britain was from the conversion of refillable bottles to
non-refillable bottles in production and the resulting
elimination of approximately 100 positions.

Interest Expense

2003 - For 2003, interest expense decreased to $607 mil-
lion from $662 million, or approximately 8 percent on
a reported basis and 10 percent on a currency-neutral
basis. The change was primarily due to interest market
conditions, a decline in our weighted average cost of debt,
and a decrease in our debt balances during 2003. Our
weighted average cost of debt was 5.1 percent for 2003
and 5.5 percent for 2002. Our average debt balance for
2003 was $12.0 billion as compared to $12.3 billion for
2002. For 2003, our cash repayments on debt exceeded
new debt borrowings by approximately $761 million.
However, our debt balance increased $426 million in
2003 from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
At December 31, 2003, 27 percent of our debt portfolio
was comprised of floating-rate debt with the remainder
of our portfolio bearing fixed rates.

2002 - For 2002, interest expense decreased to $662 mil-
lion from $753 million, or approximately 12 percent on
a reported basis and on a currency-neutral basis. The
decrease was primarily due to interest market conditions
and a decline in our weighted average cost of debt. Our
weighted average cost of debt was 5.5 percent for 2002
and 6.3 percent for 2001. Our average debt balance for
2002 increased slightly to $12.3 billion as compared to
approximately $11.8 billion for 2001. However, this
increase in the average balance was primarily associated
with the effects of noncash FAS 133 fair value adjustments
and translation adjustments. For 2002, our cash repay-
ments of debt exceeded new debt borrowings by approx-
imately $520 million. At the end of 2002, 35 percent of
our debt portfolio was comprised of floating-rate debt
with the remainder of our portfolio bearing fixed rates.

Income Tax Expense

2003 - Our effective tax rate was 30 percent for 2003 and
2002 including the net impact of $8 million in reductions
recognized for 2003 and $20 million in reductions recog-
nized for 2002. Our effective tax rate would have been
approximately 31 percent for 2003 and 33 percent for
2002 excluding these reductions. The reductions in 2003
were due to the benefit of favorable tax items resulting
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from the revaluation of income tax obligations of approxi-
mately $25 million and other tax adjustments of $6 million,
offset by the unfavorable impact of provincial rate changes
in Canada totaling approximately $23 million.

2002 - Our effective tax rate for 2002 was 30 percent as
compared to 87 percent for 2001 including the impact
of $20 million in reductions recognized in 2002 and

$56 million in reductions recognized in 2001. Our effec-
tive tax rate would have been approximately 33 percent
for 2002 and 50 percent for 2001 when we exclude these
reductions. We implemented a corporate structuring of
certain subsidiaries in the fourth quarter of 2002 which
reduced our full-year 2002 effective tax rate by approxi-
mately % percent for 2002. The $20 million in reductions
for 2002 were due to approximately $16 million in one-
time rate reductions in Canada and Belgium as well as

a reduction of approximately $4 million resulting from
the revaluation of various income tax obligations.

Per Share Data

2003 - For 2003, our basic net income per common
share and diluted net income per common share were
$1.48 and $1.46, respectively, versus $1.09 and $1.07 in
2002. The improvement in our earnings per share reflects
the favorable impact of foreign currency exchange rate
changes, insurance recoveries, the settlement of pre-
acquisition contingencies, the previously discussed impacts
of improved pricing and volume, a favorable cost envi-
ronment, and lower interest costs.

The following table reconciles reported earnings per share
to comparable earnings per share:

2003 2002
Reported Earnings Per Share $1.46 $1.07
Gain on Sale of Hot-Fill Facility (0.01)

(o.og)

Unfav/(Fav) Tax Rate Changes 0.05
Unfav/(Fav) Revaluation of Tax
Obligations/Other Tax Adjustments (0.06) (0.01)
Net Insurance Proceeds (0.10) -
Settlement of Pre-acquisition
Contingencies (0.02) -
Comparable Earnings Per Share $1.32  $1.03
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Under the April 1996 and October 2000 share repur-
chase programs authorizing the repurchase of up to
60 million shares, we can repurchase shares in the open
market and in privately negotiated transactions. We did
not repurchase any shares in 2003. Of the 30 million
shares authorized under the 1996 program, 26.7 million
shares have been repurchased since inception. The 2000
plan commences upon completion of the 1996 plan. We
have no current plans for additional share repurchases
and expect to use the majority of excess operating cash
flow for debt reduction. In addition, although we have
no current plans, we continually evaluate acquisition
opportunities and may use excess operating cash flow,
additional debt issuances, or common stock for acquisi-
tions as opportunities present themselves.

2002 - For 2002, our basic net income per common share
was $1.09 and our diluted net income per common share
was $1.07 versus a reported basic and diluted loss per
common share of $0.75 for 2001. The cumulative effect
of the change in accounting for our Jumpstart program
that occurred in 2001 increased our loss per share by
$0.70. The remaining improvement in our earnings per
share primarily reflects the elimination of amortization
on our indefinite-lived license intangible assets, for
accounting purposes, as of January 1, 2002 ($0.58 per
common share for 2001) and the previously discussed
impacts of improved volume, a favorable cost environ-
ment, and lower interest costs.

We did not repurchase any shares in 2002 under the
April 1996 share repurchase program.

RELATIONSHIP WITH THE COCA-COLA COMPANY

We are a marketer, producer, and distributor principally
of Coca-Cola products with approximately 93 percent of
our sales volume representing sales of TCCC products.
Our license arrangements with TCCC are governed by
licensing territory agreements with varying terms. TCCC
owned approximately 37 percent of our outstanding shares
as of December 31, 2003 with an additional 18 percent
owned by employee benefit plans and members of our
Board of Directors. From time to time programs with
TCCC are modified upon mutual agreement of both
parties. Our strategic planning project with TCCC may
impact certain of these programs. We are in the process
of reviewing our agreements with TCCC and intend to
take steps to simplify these arrangements and reduce or
change the agreements which may impact our account-
ing for these programs.
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The following table presents transactions with TCCC
that directly affect our income statement for the periods
presented (in millions):

2003 2002 2001
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Amounts affecting net
operating revenues:
Fountain syrup and packaged
product sales
Dispensing equipment
repair services 53 51 45
Other transactions 10 16 10

$ 403 § 461 $ 395

$ 466 $§ 528 § 450

Amounts affecting cost of sales:
Purchases of syrup
and concentrate

$(4,451) $(4,269) $(3,806)

Purchases of sweetener (311) (325) (295)
Purchases of finished

products (633) (498) (441)
Marketing support funding

earned 862 837 606
Operating expense

support payments 72 77 74

Cost recovery from sale of

hot-fill production facility 8 - =

$(4,453) $(4,178) $(3,862)

Amounts affecting selling,
delivery, and administrative
expenses:
Cooperative advertising
programs $ - % - % (62
Marketing program
payments (2) (16) -
Operating expense
cost reimbursements:
To TCCC (18) (18) (17)
From TCCC 43 38 25

$ 23 % 4§ 49

Upon adoption of EITF 02-16, marketing support
previously included in net operating revenues and cold
drink equipment placement funding previously included
in selling, delivery, and administrative expenses have
been classified in cost of sales. In addition, dispensing
equipment repair services previously included in selling,
delivery, and administrative expenses have been classi-
fied in net operating revenues.

Marketing Support and Other Arrangements: CCE and TCCC engage
in a variety of marketing programs, local media advertis-
ing, and other similar arrangements to promote the sale
of products of TCCC in territories in which we operate.
The amounts to be paid under the programs are deter-

mined annually and as the programs progress during the
year. Payments made under the programs, except for
amounts paid under the Jumpstart programs, are received
or made within the year they are due or shortly thereafter.
TCCC is under no obligation to participate in the pro-
grams or continue past levels of funding into the future.
The amounts paid and terms of similar programs may
differ with other licensees. Marketing support programs
funded to us provide financial support principally based
on product sales to offset a portion of the costs to us of
the programs. TCCC also administers certain other mar-
keting programs directly with our customers. In 2003,
2002, and 2001, total direct marketing support paid or
payable to us, or to customers in our territories by TCCC,
totaled approximately $1,076 million, $1,041 million, and
$888 million, respectively. Of these amounts, we recog-
nized $862 million, $837 million, and $606 million as a
reduction of cost of sales in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respec-
tively. The totals also include amounts paid directly to
our customers by TCCC of approximately $212 million,
$201 million, and $279 million for 2003, 2002, and 2001,
respectively, as well as $2 million, $3 million, and $3 mil-
lion paid in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively, for TCCC’s
participation in long-term agreements.

We have a multi-year Sales Growth Initiative (SGI)
agreement with TCCC to promote and support the prof-
itable growth of TCCC brands in our territories. Amounts
recognized under the SGI agreement are included in
the table above in “Marketing support funding earned.”
In each year of the agreement, $30 million of funding is
recognized as sales are realized. The remaining funding
available to us under the agreement (volume growth
funding) is earned by attaining mutually established sales
volume growth rates. Sales volume growth is determined
through a formula with adjustments for brand conver-
sions, brand acquisitions, and new brand introductions.
Growth that exceeds the target in North America offsets
any shortfalls in Europe and vice versa.

Volume growth funding under the SGI agreement is
advanced to us equally over the four quarters of the pro-
gram year within thirty days after the beginning of each
quarter. We recognize quarterly volume growth funding
as a reduction of cost of sales as volume growth is attained.
The agreement provides for refunds of volume growth
funding advances of $1 per equivalent case should we not
attain the specified minimum sales volume growth targets.

For 2002, we recognized the entire $120 million of
volume growth funding that was available to us under
the agreement. For 2003, we recognized $131 million of
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the $170 million that was available to us under the SGI
program after adjustment for penalty charges of $39 mil-
lion because of a shortage of 39 million equivalent cases
below our sales volume growth targets for 2003. Under
the agreement, $165 million of volume growth funding
is available to us for 2004.

We participate in programs with TCCC designed
to promote the placement of cold drink equipment
(Jumpstart programs). Under the Jumpstart programs,
we agree to: (1) purchase and place specified numbers
of venders/coolers or cold drink equipment each year
through 2008; (2) maintain the equipment in service,
with certain exceptions, for a period of at least 12 years
after placement; (3) maintain and stock the equipment
in accordance with specified standards for marketing
TCCC products; and (4) report to TCCC during the
period the equipment is in service whether, on average,
the equipment purchased under the programs has gener-
ated a stated minimum sales volume of TCCC products.

Should we not satisfy these or other provisions of the
programs, the agreement provides for the parties to
meet to work out mutually agreeable solutions. Should
the parties be unable to agree on alternative solutions,
TCCC would be able to seek a partial refund of amounts
previously paid. No refunds have ever been paid under
the programs and we believe the probability of a partial
refund of amounts previously paid under the programs is
remote. We believe we, in all cases, will be able to resolve
any matters that might arise regarding these programs.
In 2003, we did not meet certain requirements for the
allocation of purchases between venders and coolers and
minimum purchase requirements in certain countries
because of changes in the business environment. However,
in total we did purchase and place the required minimums
in both North America and Europe and TCCC has agreed
we are in compliance under the Jumpstart programs
through 2003.

TCCC’s support payments under the Jumpstart pro-
grams were paid in the early years of the agreements. We
received approximately $1.2 billion in payments during
the period 1994 through 2001. No additional amounts
are payable under the Jumpstart programs. We recognize
Jumpstart funding as we place cold drink equipment. We
recognized $72 million, $77 million, and $71 million in
2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. These amounts are
included in “Operating expense support payments” as
a reduction of cost of sales.

We have an agreement with TCCC under which TCCC
provides support payments in “Marketing support fund-
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ing earned” for the marketing of certain brands of TCCC
in the Herb territories acquired in 2001. Under the terms
of this agreement, we received $14 million in 2003 and will
receive $14 million annually through 2008 and $11 million
in 2009. Payments received under this agreement are not
refundable to TCCC.

We participate in cooperative advertising and brand
and trade arrangements with TCCC. Prior to 2002, we
paid TCCC a portion of the costs for participation in
these programs. Beginning in 2002, all costs in our North
American territories under the customer trade market-
ing (CTM) programs, excluding costs for certain specific
customers administered by TCCC, shifted to us and all
costs for local media programs in our North American
territories shifted to TCCC. However, we continue to pay
TCCC and TCCC pays our customers as a representative
for the North American bottling system. Amounts paid
under CTM programs to TCCC, included as reductions
in net operating revenues for payment to customers on
our behalf, totaled $219 million for 2003, $248 million
for 2002, and $200 million for 2001. Amounts paid under
cooperative advertising and brand programs to TCCC,
included in selling, delivery, and administrative expenses,
in 2001 totaled $52 million.

Participation in Marketing Programs with TCCC: On occasion, we
participate in marketing programs outside the scope of
recurring arrangements with TCCC. In 2003 and 2002,
we paid TCCC approximately $2 million and $16 million,
respectively, for participation in marketing programs.

Syrup, Concentrate, Sweetener, and Finished Products: We purchase
syrup and concentrate requirements from TCCC to man-
ufacture, package, distribute, and sell TCCC products
under licensing agreements. These licensing agreements
give TCCC complete discretion to set prices of the syrups
and concentrates. We also purchase finished products
and fountain syrup from TCCC for sale within our terri-
tories and have an agreement with TCCC to purchase
substantially all our requirements for sweetener in the
United States.

Fountain Syrup and Packaged Product Sales: We sell fountain syrup
to TCCC in certain territories and deliver this syrup to
certain major fountain accounts of TCCC. We will, on
behalf of TCCC, invoice and collect amounts receivable
for these fountain sales. We also sell bottle and can prod-
uct to TCCC at prices that are generally similar to the
prices charged by us to our major customers.
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Customer Marketing Group and Media Staff Cost Reimbursements:
We reached an agreement with TCCC in 2000 to transfer
certain responsibilities and the associated staffing for cus-
tomer marketing group (CMG) efforts in North America
to us from TCCC and for local media activities from us to
TCCC. Under the agreement, TCCC reimburses us for
the CMG staffing costs transferred to us and we reimburse
TCCC for the local media staffing costs transferred to TCCC.
Amounts reimbursed to us by TCCC for CMG staffing
expenses were $43 million, $38 million, and $25 million
for 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. These costs and
cost reimbursements, as applicable, are included in selling,
delivery, and administrative expenses. Amounts reim-
bursed to TCCC for local media staffing expenses were
$18 million, $18 million, and $17 million for 2003, 2002,
and 2001, respectively.

Other Transactions: Other transactions with TCCC include
management fees, office space leases, and purchases of
point-of-sale and other advertising items.

In 2003, we sold a hot-fill plant in Truesdale, Missouri,
to TCCC for approximately $58 million realizing cost
recoveries for operating, depreciation, and carrying costs
of $8 million as a reduction of cost of sales.

In 2003, we acquired the production and distribution
facilities of Chaudfontaine, a Belgian water brand. At the
same time, TCCC acquired the Chaudfontaine water
source and brand. The total acquisition cost for both
TCCC and CCE was $31 million in cash and assumed
debt. Our portion of the acquisition cost was $16 million
in cash and assumed debt. We also entered into an
agreement with TCCC to equally share the profits or
losses from the sale of Chaudfontaine products.

PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

In 2003, the FASB issued a revised version of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 132 (FAS 132R),
“Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefits.” The new statement amends FASB
Statements No. 87, 88, and 106 and replaces FAS 132. The
following disclosures are based on requirements included
in the new statement. As provided by FAS 87, we revalue
pension liabilities annually. Pension expense for the current
year is based on the prior year-end valuation of liabilities
and the expected average value of pension assets. The
majority of our pension plans are measured, as provided
in FAS 87, at our selected alternative measurement date
of September 30th. A measurement date of December 31st
is used for all other plans.
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The following tables outline significant assumptions
used in the determination of pension and other post-
retirement benefit obligations and expense:

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine

benefit obligations:
Other
Postretirement

Pension Benefits Benefits

2003 2002 2003 2002
Discount Rate 6.0% 6.8% 6.1% 7.0%
Rate of compensation
increase 4.6 4.6 - -

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net
periodic benefit cost:

Other
Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
2003 2002 2003 2002
Discount Rate 6.8% 6.9% 7.0% 7.0%
Expected return
on plan assets 8.3 9.2 - -
Rate of compensation
increase 4.6 4.7 - -

Pension assets of the North American and Great
Britain plans represent approximately 95 percent of
pension plan assets. Below is a summary of pension
plan asset allocation of those disclosed assets along with
expected long-term rate of return by asset category.

Weighted-
. Average
Welghted-Average Expected
Allocation Long-
ong
Target Actual Rj;izn;f
Asset Category 2003 2003 2002  Return
Equity Securities 65% 68% 61% 8.7%
Fixed Income Securities 20 24 31 5.7
Real Estate 5 3 4 9.6
Other 10 5 4 10.4
Total 100% 100% 100% 8.3

We have established formal investment policies for the
assets under our plans. Policy objectives include maximiz-
ing long-term return at acceptable risk levels, diversifying
among asset classes, if appropriate, and among investment
managers, as well as establishing relevant risk parameters
within each asset class. Specific asset class targets are based
on the results of periodic asset liability studies. The invest-
ment policies permit variances from the targets within
certain parameters. The weighted average expected
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long-term rate of return is based on a fourth quarter 2003
review of such rates with input from our investment con-
sultants and managers. Our Fixed Income Securities
portfolio is invested primarily in commingled funds and
managed for overall return expectations rather than
matching duration against plan liabilities; therefore, debt
maturities are not significant to the plan performance.

In managing pension plan assets, we utilize a combi-
nation of active and passive fund management to maximize
pension returns within established risk parameters. We
periodically revise asset allocations to improve returns.
We complete periodic studies that highlight historical
Expected Return on Assets (EROA), the range of EROA
that we might expect based on the current allocation of
pension assets, indications of potential future funding
requirements and pension expense.

As a result of asset losses and the decline in discount
rates in recent years, pension expense in future periods
will increase when unrecognized losses exceed the defined
corridor of losses under FAS 87. Pension expense for 2004
will increase to approximately $150 million as compared
to $90 million for 2003, an increase of $60 million. This
increase primarily results from actuarial loss increases to
be recognized of $50 million principally resulting from the
decrease in the average discount rate from 6.8 percent
for 2003 to 6.0 percent for 2004. Losses will be amortized
to expense until such time as, for example, increases in
asset values and/or discount rates reduce unrecognized
losses below the defined corridor.

Unrecognized losses net of gains totaling $913 million
are deferred under FAS 87 through 2003. Also under
FAS 87, net recognized pension liabilities have increased
by $515 million through charges to other comprehensive
income of $483 million, before income taxes, and recog-
nition of an intangible asset of $32 million. Charges to
other comprehensive income, net of tax, for 2003 and
2002 were $106 million and $105 million, respectively.

Consolidated pension contributions were $197 mil-
lion and $76 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively, of
which U.S. contributions represented $168 million and
$57 million, respectively. Our policy is to fund the U.S.
pension plans at a level to maintain, within established
guidelines, the IRS-defined 90 Percent Current Liability
Funded status. At January 1, 2003, the date of the most
recent calculation, all U.S. funded defined benefit pen-
sion plans reflected Current Liability Funded status
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equal to or greater than 90 percent. In accordance with
calculation guidelines, the January 1, 2003 Current
Liability Funded status reflects the third quarter 2003
contributions as a receivable. In order to maintain a

90 Percent Current Liability Funded status, which is not
required but has been selected by us, we currently esti-
mate that pension contributions to U.S. plans in 2004
will be approximately $225 million. This estimate, how-
ever, may be significantly affected by pending legislation
that is expected to be finalized by the end of the first
quarter of 2004. The primary Canadian plan does not
require contributions at this time. Contributions to the
primary U.K. plan are based on a percentage of employ-
ees’ pay. Contributions to other postretirement benefit
plans were $20 million in 2003 and are expected to be
approximately $22 million in 2004.

As outlined in Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 87 (FAS 87), “Employers’ Accounting
for Pensions,” we utilize the five-year asset smoothing
technique to recognize market gains and losses for plans
representing 84 percent of North American assets.
Cumulative losses, net of gains, totaling $174 million
have been deferred as of December 31, 2003. Pension
expense in 2004 will increase by $12 million over the 2003
level as a result of recognizing previously deferred losses.

Other assumptions used in the calculation of pension
liability and expense include termination assumptions,
expected payroll increases, and mortality assumptions.
Termination and payroll experience are reviewed on a
recurring three-year cycle.

We sponsor unfunded defined benefit postretirement
plans providing healthcare and life insurance benefits
to substantially all U.S. and Canadian employees who
retire or terminate after qualifying for such benefits. On
December 8, 2003, President Bush signed the Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act
of 2003 (“the Act”) into law. The Act expanded Medicare
to include, for the first time, coverage for prescription
drugs. We expect that this legislation may eventually
reduce our costs for some of these programs.

At this point, our investigation into our response to the
legislation is preliminary, as we await guidance from var-
ious governmental and regulatory agencies concerning
the requirements that must be met to obtain these cost
reductions as well as the manner in which such savings
should be measured. Based on this preliminary analysis,
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it appears that some of our retiree medical plans will need
to be changed to qualify for beneficial treatment under
the Act, while other plans can continue unchanged.

Because of various uncertainties related to our
response to this legislation and the appropriate account-
ing methodology for this event, we have elected to defer
financial recognition of this legislation until the Financial
Accounting Standards Board issues final accounting guid-
ance. When issued, that final guidance could require us
to change previously reported information. However, since
we have already taken steps to limit our postretirement
medical benefits, any reductions in postretirement benefit
costs resulting from the Act are not expected to be mate-
rial. This deferral election is permitted under Financial
Accounting Standards Board Staff Position No. FAS 106-1,
“Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to
the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003.”

CASH FLOW AND LIQUIDITY REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our sources of capital include, but are not limited to,
cash flows from operations, the issuance of public or pri-
vate placement debt, bank borrowings, and the issuance
of equity securities. We believe that available short-term
and long-term capital resources are sufficient to fund
our capital expenditure and working capital require-
ments, scheduled debt payments, interest and income
tax obligations, dividends to our shareowners, acquisi-
tions, and share repurchases.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, we had approximately
$6.8 billion and $3.4 billion, respectively, in available capi-
tal under our public debt facilities which could be used for
long-term financing, refinancing of debt maturities, and
refinancing of commercial paper. Of these amounts, we
had available for issuance at December 31, 2003 and 2002
(1) $3.2 billion and $0.2 billion, respectively, available under
registration statements with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, (ii) $2.1 billion and $2.0 billion, respectively,
in debt securities under a Euro Medium-Term Note
Program (EMTN), and (iii) $1.5 billion and $1.2 billion
($2.0 billion and $1.9 billion Canadian), respectively,
in Canadian dollar debt securities under a Canadian
Medium-Term Note Program (CMTN). Our S-3 shelf
registration statement to increase the amounts of regis-
tered debt securities available for issuance by $3.5 billion
became effective in August 2003.
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In addition, we satisfy seasonal working capital needs
and other financing requirements with short-term bor-
rowings under our commercial paper programs, bank
borrowings, and various lines of credit in the countries
in which we operate. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, we
had approximately $1.0 billion and $1.7 billion, respec-
tively, outstanding in commercial paper. At December 31,
2003 and 2002, we had approximately $3.3 billion and
$3.2 billion, respectively, available as a back-up to com-
mercial paper and undrawn working capital lines of credit.
We intend to refinance borrowings under our commercial
paper programs and our short-term credit facilities with
longer-term fixed and floating rate financings, as well as
repay a portion of these financings with operating cash flow.
At the end of 2003, our debt portfolio contained 73 percent
fixed rate debt and 27 percent floating rate debt.

Some of our bank borrowings contain various provi-
sions that, among other things, require us to maintain a
leverage ratio (defined as consolidated net debt divided
by total capital, including deferred taxes) of less than
75 percent and to limit the incurrence of certain liens or
encumbrances in excess of defined amounts. At Decem-
ber 31, 2003 and 2002, our leverage ratio was approxi-
mately 56 percent and 61 percent, respectively, and
substantially all of our assets were unencumbered. The
various requirements currently are not, and it is not
anticipated they will become, restrictive to our liquidity
or capital resources. Our public debt has no leverage
covenant requirements but does limit the incurrence of
liens and encumbrances.

Our credit ratings are periodically reviewed by rating
agencies. Currently, our long-term ratings from Moody’s,
Standard and Poor’s and Fitch are A2, A, and A, respec-
tively. Changes in our operating results, cash flows, or
financial position could impact the ratings assigned by
the various rating agencies which could ultimately impact
our cost of debt. As previously announced, Moody’s
changed its rating outlook on us to negative in 2001 but
left the existing rating unchanged. Should Moody’s or
any other of these ratings be adjusted downward, we
could incur higher interest costs on new borrowings.

Summary of Cash Activities

2003 - Our principal sources of cash consisted of those
derived from operations of $1,805 million and proceeds
from the issuance of debt aggregating $913 million. Our
primary uses of cash were for long-term debt repayments
of $1,674 million and capital expenditures totaling
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$1,099 million. Classifications in the 2002 and 2001
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows have been con-
formed to classifications used in the current year for
payments and amortization expense associated with con-
tracts for pouring or vending rights in specific athletic
venues, specific school districts, or other locations. In addi-
tion, classifications in the 2002 and 2001 Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows have been conformed to classi-
fications used in the current year for the presentation of
retirement plan contributions in excess of pension expense.

2002 - Our principal sources of cash consisted of those
derived from operations of $1,386 million and proceeds
from the issuance of debt aggregating $1,739 million.
Our primary uses of cash were for long-term debt repay-
ments of $2,259 million and capital expenditures totaling
$1,029 million.

Operating Activities

2003 - Cash flows derived from operating activities were
$1,805 million in 2003, an increase of $419 million from
2002 cash derived from operating activities of $1,386 mil-
lion, primarily as a result of improved operating results
partially offset by increased pension contributions.

2002 - Cash flows derived from operating activities were
$1,386 million in 2002, an increase of $300 million from
2001 cash derived from operating activities of $1,086 mil-
lion, primarily as a result of improved operating results.

Investing Activities

2003 - Our capital investments of $1,099 million were
the principal use of cash for investing activities. We also
acquired a water bottling and distribution company in
Europe for a cash purchase price of approximately

$13 million. Since our inception in 1986, we have acquired
numerous bottling companies in North America and
western Europe for a total cost of approximately $14.6 bil-
lion. Our proceeds from the disposal of capital assets
totaled $95 million in 2003, including proceeds from
the sale of a hot-fill plant to TCCC of approximately
$58 million.

2002 - Our capital investments of $1,029 million were
the principal use of cash for investing activities. We also
acquired bottlers in North America for a total cost of
approximately $30 million.
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Financing Activities

2003 - The following table presents issuances of long-
term debt and payments on long-term debt as noted in
our consolidated statements of cash flows for the year
ended December 31, 2003 (in millions):

Maturity
Issuances Date Rate
$250 million under SEC shelf
registration statement Sep 2006 2.50% $ 250
$250 million under SEC shelf
registration statement Sep 2010  4.25 250
$175 million British
pound sterling note May 2006 4.13 276
French revolving
credit facilities 71
Other issuances 66
Total $ 913
Maturity
Payments Date Rate
French franc notes Jan 2003  5.00% $ (27)

Eurobonds Feb 2003  5.00 (160)
$100 million Canadian

dollar note Mar 2003  5.30 (65)
$175 million British

pound sterling note May 2003  6.50 (276)
$175 million Canadian

dollar note July 2003 6.70 (129)

Capital lease payments (17)

Other payments (183)
(857)

Net payments on
commercial paper (817)
Total $(1,674)

We intend to refinance a portion of our current
maturities of debt at December 31, 2003 with long-term
debt financings from either our shelf registration state-
ment with the SEC, the EMTN, or CMTN and fund the
remainder with cash from operations.

2002 - $500 million in notes matured in February 2002,
approximately $225 million in Euro notes matured in
May 2002, approximately $500 million in Eurobonds
matured in September 2002, and approximately $246 mil-
lion in Euro notes matured in October 2002. Approxi-
mately $111 million in Canadian dollar notes matured
in October 2002 and approximately $64 million in
Canadian dollar notes matured in November 2002.



Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.

In April 2002, we issued $500 million in floating rate
notes due 2004 and $500 million in fixed rate notes due
2007 under our shelf registration statement with the
SEC. The initial interest rate on the floating rate notes
was 2.19 percent and the interest rate on the fixed notes
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is 5.25 percent. In September 2002, we issued $500 mil-
lion in fixed rate notes due 2009 under our shelf regis-
tration statement with the SEC. The interest rate on the
notes is 4.38 percent.

Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments
The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of

December 31, 2003 (in millions):

Payments due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter
Long-term debt $11,646 $1,094 $ 273 $2,052 $ 921 § 877 $6,429
Long-term purchase agreements 9,779 2,260 2,353 1,810 1,459 1,056 841
Operating leases (future minimum) 402 76 58 40 31 32 165
Customer contractual arrangements 435 99 89 78 105 55 9
Total contractual cash obligations $22.622  $3,529 $2.773 $3,980 $2,516 $2,020 $7,444
Amount of Commitment Expiration per Period
Other Commercial Commitments Total 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter
Standby letters of credit $ 365 $ 356 $ 9 $ - $ - $ = $ =
Affiliate guarantees 196 5 - 35 8 10 138
Total commercial commitments $ 561 $ 361 $ 9 $ 35 $ 8 $ 10 $ 138

Purchase Agreements: The long-term purchase agreements we
have with various suppliers are subject to each supplier’s
quality and performance.

Operating Leases: We lease office and warehouse space, com-
puter hardware, and machinery and equipment under
noncancelable operating lease agreements expiring at
various dates through 2039. Rent expense under non-
cancelable operating lease agreements totaled approximately
$144 million, $99 million, and $85 million during 2003,
2002, and 2001, respectively.

Customer Contracts: We participate in customer contractual
arrangements for pouring or vending rights in specific
athletic venues, specific school districts, or other venues.

Letters of Credit: We have letters of credit outstanding aggre-
gating approximately $365 million at December 31, 2003,
principally under self-insurance programs. In December
2003, we executed a committed letter of credit facility under
self-insurance programs in the amount of $390 million.
Of the $365 million outstanding as of December 31, 2003
approximately $241 million is covered by this facility and
the majority of the remaining outstanding letters of credit
are to be transferred to the facility in 2004.

Affiliate Guarantees: We have guaranteed payment of up to
$262 million owed by certain affiliates, primarily packag-
ing cooperatives, to third parties. Amounts outstanding
under these agreements total $196 million at December 31,
2003 of which $195 million is owed by a manufacturing
cooperative and a vending partnership. We hold no assets
as collateral against these guarantees and no recourse
provisions exist under the guarantees that would enable
us to recover amounts we guarantee in the event of an
occurrence of a triggering event under these guarantees.
These guarantees, which expire at varying dates through
2015, arose as a result of investments by bottlers we acquired
and our ongoing business relationship with these affiliates.
No amounts are recognized for our obligation under these
guarantees as we consider the risk of default associated
with these guarantees to be remote.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

Assets

2003 - Prepaid expenses and other current assets
increased approximately 17 percent to $381 million at
December 31, 2003 from $325 million at December 31,
2002. This increase is primarily due to higher levels of
equipment parts and the effects of currency exchange
rate changes. The $401 million increase in property,
plant, and equipment, net of allowances for depreciation,
resulted from 2003 capital expenditures of approximate-
ly $1,099 million and the effects of currency exchange
rate changes, offset by the impact of depreciation. The
increase in license intangible assets resulted primarily
from currency exchange rate changes.

2002 - The increase from December 31, 2001 to
December 31, 2002 of $325 million in our net license
intangible assets was primarily due to approximately
$300 million attributable to the effects of currency
exchange rate changes. The remaining increase in
license intangible assets is primarily due to acquisitions
completed in 2002. The change in our goodwill balance
in 2002 of $9 million was due to adjustments to the
value of goodwill acquired in acquisitions completed in
2001 totaling $6 million and the recognition of $3 mil-
lion in goodwill for acquisitions completed in 2002. The
$187 million increase in property, plant, and equipment,
net of allowances for depreciation, resulted from 2002
capital expenditures of approximately $1,029 million
and the effects of currency exchange rate changes, offset
by depreciation. Our other noncurrent assets increased
$167 million in 2002 primarily due to an increase in the
fair value of interest rate swap agreements recorded as
fair value hedges under FAS 133. An increase in this asset
is offset by a corresponding increase in our debt balance.

Liabilities and Shareowners’ Equity

2003 - The net decrease in long-term debt of $377 mil-
lion in 2003 resulted primarily from the impact of net
repayments of $761 million offset by increases from
changes in currency exchange rates of approximately
$426 million. The decrease in deferred cash payments
from TCCC results primarily from recognition in income
of approximately $72 million of payments in 2003.
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In 2003, changes in currency exchange rates resulted
in a net gain recognized in comprehensive income of
$486 million. This amount consists of the benefit of
approximately $572 million in foreign currency transla-
tion adjustments offset by the impact of net investment
hedges of $86 million. As foreign currency exchange
rates change, translation of the income statements for
our international businesses into U.S. dollars affects the
comparability of revenues and expenses between periods.

2002 - The net decrease in long-term debt of $146 mil-
lion during 2002 resulted primarily from the impact of
net debt repayments of $519 million, increases from
changes in foreign currency exchange rates of approxi-
mately $250 million, and an increase in debt balances
due to fair value adjustments to our interest rate swap
agreements. The decrease in deferred cash payments
from TCCC results primarily from the income recogni-
tion of approximately $77 million of payments in 2002.

In 2002, changes in foreign currency exchange rates
resulted in a net gain recognized in comprehensive
income of $142 million. This amount consists of the ben-
efit of approximately $219 million in foreign currency
translation adjustments offset by the impact of net
investment hedges of $77 million.

Interest Rate and Currency Risk Management
Interest Rates: Interest rate risk is present with both fixed
and floating rate debt. We are also exposed to interest
rate risks in international currencies because of our
intent to finance the purchase and cash flow require-
ments of our international subsidiaries with local bor-
rowings. Interest rates in these markets typically differ
from those in the United States. We use interest rate
swap agreements and other risk management instru-
ments to manage our fixed/floating debt profile.

Interest rate swap agreements generally involve
exchanges of interest payments based on fixed and float-
ing interest rates without exchanges of underlying face
(notional) amounts of the designated hedges. We con-
tinually evaluate the credit quality of counterparties to
interest rate swap agreements and other risk manage-
ment instruments and do not believe there is a significant
risk of nonperformance by any of the counterparties.

A one percent change in the interest costs of floating
rate debt outstanding at December 31, 2003 would
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change interest expense on an annual basis by approxi-
mately $30 million. This amount is determined by calcu-
lating the effect of a hypothetical interest rate change on
our floating rate debt after giving consideration to our
interest rate swap agreements and other risk manage-
ment instruments. This estimate does not include the
effects of other possible occurrences such as actions to
mitigate this risk or changes in our financial structure.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates: Our European operations
represented approximately 24 percent of consolidated
long-lived assets at the end of 2003 and approximately
27 percent of consolidated net operating revenues for 2003.
We are exposed to translation risk because operations in
Canada and Europe in local currency are translated into
U.S. dollars. As currency exchange rates fluctuate, trans-
lation of the income statements of international businesses
into U.S. dollars will affect comparability of revenues
and expenses between years. We hedge a portion of our
net investments in international subsidiaries by creating
foreign denominated debt on the books of the parent
company. Our revenues are denominated in each inter-
national subsidiary’s local currency; thus, we are not
exposed to currency transaction risk on our revenues.
We are exposed to currency transaction risk on certain
purchases of raw materials made and certain obligations
of our international subsidiaries.

We currently use currency forward agreements and
option contracts to hedge a certain portion of the afore-
mentioned raw material purchases. These forward
agreements and option contracts are scheduled to expire
in 2004. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002,
and 2001, the result of a hypothetical 10 percent adverse
movement in foreign exchange rates applied to the hedging
agreements and underlying exposures would not have
had a material effect on our earnings on an annual basis.

CURRENT TRENDS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Contingencies

Our business practices are being reviewed by the European
Commission in various jurisdictions for alleged abuses of
an alleged dominant position under Article 82 of the EU
Treaty. We do not believe we have a dominant position in
the relevant markets, or that our current or past commer-
cial practices violate EU law. Nonetheless, the Commission
has considerable discretion in reaching conclusions and
levying fines, which are subject to judicial review. The
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Commission has not notified us when it might reach
any conclusions.

In addition, we are also the subject of investigations
by Belgian and French competition law authorities for
our compliance with respect to competition laws. These
proceedings are subject to further review and we intend
to continue to vigorously defend against an unfavorable
outcome. At this time, it is not possible for us to deter-
mine the ultimate outcome of this matter.

Our California subsidiary has been sued by several
current and former employees over alleged violations of
state wage and hour rules. Our California subsidiary is
vigorously defending against the claims but at this time it
is not possible to predict the outcome.

Our California subsidiary was also involved in another
lawsuit by current and former employees over alleged
violations of state wage and hour rules that settled in
2001. In late 2003, we received proceeds of approximately
$21 million from our insurance carriers to reimburse us
for the cost of this settlement.

In 2000, CCE and TCCC were found by a Texas jury
to be jointly liable in a combined amount of $15.2 million
to five plaintiffs, each a distributor of competing bever-
age products. These distributors sued alleging that CCE
and TCCC engaged in unfair marketing practices. The
trial court's verdict was upheld by the Texas Court of
Appeals in July 2003; we and TCCC have applied to the
Texas Supreme Court for leave to appeal to that court.
We believe our accruals are adequate to cover the dam-
ages awarded by the trial court if its verdict is allowed to
stand. The claims of the three remaining plaintiffs in this
case remain to be tried and four additional competitors
have filed similar claims against us. We have not provided
for any potential awards under these additional claims.
We intend to vigorously defend against these claims.

In June 2003, Riverwood International Corporation
filed a patent infringement suit against Mead Westvaco
Corporation in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Georgia. We currently hold a multi-
year supply contract with MeadWestvaco for the supply
of paperboard cartons, including the cartons known
as the Fridge Pack. Riverwood’s suit sought to enjoin
MeadWestvaco from supplying us with Fridge Pack pack-
aging. An agreement related to this suit was reached in
late 2003 requiring us to pay approximately $4 million
to settle any and all claims related to this matter.
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Under the Jumpstart programs with TCCC, we received
payments from TCCC for a portion of the cost of devel-
oping the infrastructure (consisting primarily of people
and systems) necessary to support accelerated placements
of cold drink equipment. We recognize the payments
primarily as cold drink equipment is placed, through 2008,
and over the period we have the potential requirement
to move equipment, through 2020. Should we not satisfy
the provisions of the programs, the agreement provides
for the parties to meet to work out mutually agreeable
solutions. Should the parties be unable to agree on alter-
native solutions, TCCC would be able to seek a partial
refund of amounts previously paid. No refunds have
ever been paid under the programs and we believe the
probability of a partial refund of amounts previously paid
under the programs is remote. We believe we, in all cases,
will be able to resolve any matters that might arise regard-
ing these programs. In 2003, we did not meet certain
requirements for the allocation of purchases between
venders and coolers and minimum purchase requirements
in certain countries because of changes in the business
environment. However, in total we did purchase and
place the required minimums in both North America and
Europe and TCCC has agreed to our compliance under
the Jumpstart programs through 2003.

Under the SGI agreement with TCCC, we are eligible
to receive up to $165 million of “Volume Growth Funding”
in 2004 which is to be earned by attaining mutually estab-
lished sales volume growth targets for brands owned by
TCCC. The annual and quarterly target minimums are
established for each program year through mutual agree-
ments with TCCC. Sales volume growth is determined
through a formula with adjustments for brand conver-
sions, brand acquisitions, new brand introductions, and
performance in excess of the previous year’s perform-
ance. If these minimum targets are not met, penalties
of $1 per equivalent case shortfalls to target are offset
against the Volume Growth Funding available under the
program. Under the SGI agreement, quarterly funding
commitments are advanced at the beginning of each
quarter less penalties for shortfalls to targets not previously
offset. We do not anticipate we will incur penalties that will
be offset against the $165 million Volume Growth Funding
available to us under the SGI agreement for 2004.
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Our tax filings are routinely subjected to audit by tax
authorities in most jurisdictions where we conduct business.
These audits may result in assessments of additional taxes
that are subsequently resolved with the authorities or
potentially through the courts. Currently, there are
assessments or audits which may lead to assessments
involving certain of our subsidiaries, including our sub-
sidiary in Canada, that may not be resolved in the fore-
seeable future. We believe we have substantial defenses to
the questions being raised and intend to pursue all legal
remedies available if we are unable to reach a resolution
with the authorities. We believe we have adequately pro-
vided for any ultimate amounts that would result from
these proceedings, however, it is too early to predict a
final outcome in these matters.

In December 2003, we settled our claims against
our insurance carriers for the losses we incurred in the
1999 Belgian recall. Under the agreement, we received
$47.5 million upon the execution of a final settlement
agreement in exchange for a release of our claims. We
do not anticipate any additional recoveries associated
with the product recall in Belgium.

At January 31, 2004, there were two federal and two
state superfund sites for which CCE and our bottling
subsidiaries’ involvement or liability as a potentially
responsible party (PRP) was unresolved. We believe any
ultimate liability under these PRP designations will not
have a material adverse effect on our financial position,
cash flows, or results of operations. In addition, we or
our bottling subsidiaries have been named PRPs at 35
other federal and 10 other state superfund sites under
circumstances that have led us to conclude that either
(1) we will have no further liability because we had no
responsibility for having deposited hazardous waste,

(ii) our ultimate liability, if any, would be less than
$100,000 per site, or (iii) payments made to date will
be sufficient to satisty all liability.

We are a defendant in various other matters of litigation
generally arising out of the normal course of business.
Although it is difficult to predict the ultimate outcome of
these cases, management believes, based on discussions with
counsel, that any ultimate liability would not materially affect
our financial position, results of operations, or liquidity.
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OUR WORKFORCE

Approximately 19,000 of our 63,000 North American
employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements.
No single agreement covers more than 3 percent of our
employees. These collective bargaining agreements expire
at varying dates over the next seven years. Approximately
8,000 of our 11,000 European employees are also sub-
ject to local labor agreements consistent with common
industry practice in our countries of operation. We believe
that expiring labor agreements will be renegotiated on
satisfactory terms in the future and that if any work
stoppages were to occur as contracts are being renegoti-
ated, they will be limited in duration and would not
materially impact our earnings or financial condition.

ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS

FASB Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46),

“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entilies”

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46
(FIN 46), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.”
FIN 46 requires variable interest entities to be consoli-
dated by the primary beneficiary of the entity in certain
instances. FIN 46 is effective for all new variable interest
entities created or acquired after January 31, 2003. For
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variable interest entities created or acquired prior to
February 1, 2003, the provisions of FIN 46 are to be
applied by us in the first quarter of 2004. We participate
in manufacturing cooperatives and have ownership in a
vending partnership. Amounts owed by these entities at
December 31, 2003 total $240 million. We are currently
evaluating the implications of the adoption of FIN 46 on
our financial position, cash flows, and results of operations.
Should we determine under FIN 46 we are required to
consolidate the manufacturing cooperatives and vending
partnership, our debt balances will increase by the
amounts then owed by these entities.

Financial Accounting Standard (FAS) 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets”

As of January 1, 2002, we no longer amortize goodwill
and license intangible assets with an indefinite life under
FAS 142 but instead evaluate these assets for impairment
annually. The 2001 financial statements do not reflect
the adoption of FAS 142. Had we adopted FAS 142 on
January 1, 2001, net income (loss) and basic and diluted
net income (loss) per common share would have been as
follows: (in millions except per share data; per share data
calculated prior to rounding to millions.)

Add: License
Intangible Income Tax Adjusted
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001: As Reported Amortization Impact for FAS 142
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners $ (324) $ 391 $(142) $ (75)
Net income (loss) applicable to common
shareowners per basic and diluted common share $(0.75) $0.91 $(0.33) $(0.17)

We acquire license territories to expand our market.
Prior to the adoption of Financial Accounting Standard
No. 141 (FAS 141), “Business Combinations,” we assigned
all costs of acquisitions in excess of the value of tangible
net assets acquired to license intangible assets with no
amounts assigned to goodwill. FAS 141 specifically defines
goodwill and provides criteria to apply when recognizing

other intangible assets. Under FAS 141, beginning with the
Herb acquisition in July 2001, we assigned specific values
to assets, liabilities, and license and customer relationship
intangibles. The residual value represents goodwill which
primarily results from the synergistic values of the acqui-
sition and the establishment of deferred tax liabilities on
license intangible assets not deductible for income taxes.
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License agreements contain performance requirements
and convey to the licensee the rights to distribute and sell
products of the licensor within specified territories. Our
domestic cola license agreements with TCCC do not expire,
reflecting a long and ongoing relationship. Our agreements
with TCCC covering our United States non-cola and
European and Canadian operations are periodically renew-
able. TCCC does not grant perpetual license intangible
rights outside the United States, however, these agree-
ments can be renewed with minimal cost for additional
terms at our request. We believe and expect these and
other renewable licensor agreements will be renewed at
each expiration date. After evaluation of the renewal
provisions and our mutually beneficial relationship with
The Coca-Cola Company, all license intangible assets
have been assigned an indefinite life for accounting
under FAS 142.

Under FAS 142, we perform our impairment testing
of goodwill at the North American and European Group
levels, our reporting units. Under the provisions of EITF
Issue No. 02-7, “Unit of Accounting for Testing Impairment
of Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets,” we also perform
our impairment testing of license intangible assets at the
North American and European group levels.

The fair values of the reporting units and their respec-
tive license intangibles are determined using discounted
cash flow models similar to those used internally by us
for evaluating acquisitions with comparisons to estimated
market values. Our discounted cash flow models for 2003
utilize projections of cash flows for ten years, a perpetuity
valuation technique with an assumed long-term growth
rate of approximately 2.5 percent, and discounted pro-
jected cash flows and terminal values based on our targeted
near-term weighted average cost of capital of 7.2 percent.
Assumed average growth rates approximated 2 percent
consolidated volume growth, approximately 4.5 percent
consolidated revenue and cost of sales per case growth,
approximately 4 percent consolidated administrative
expense growth, and approximately 5 percent to 6 percent
operating income growth, which we consider conservative
for long-term projections, with differing rates in our North
American and European groups. Projected cash flows of
license intangibles are reduced by an approximate 2 per-
cent economic charge for workforce, customer relationship,
working capital, and property, plant, and equipment assets
of the reporting units. Changes in these assumptions could
materially impact the fair value estimates.
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Our impairment tests for goodwill and license intangi-
ble assets compare the carrying amounts of these assets
with estimated fair values. The fair values of goodwill and
license intangible assets exceed their carrying amounts
and, therefore, the assets are not impaired. Had the carry-
ing amounts of goodwill exceeded fair values, a second
step in the impairment test would be required to measure
the amount of a goodwill impairment loss. This step
would compare the implied fair values of the reporting
unit’s goodwill with the carrying amount of goodwill. If the
carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill exceeds
the implied fair value of goodwill, an impairment loss
would be recognized in an amount equal to that excess.

We provide deferred income taxes on license intangi-
ble assets not deductible for tax purposes under FAS 109.
Prior to FAS 142, license intangible assets were amortized
over 40 years. As this amortization cost was recognized,
the related deferred tax liability was recognized as a
decrease in income tax expense. Under FAS 142, previ-
ously recognized unamortized balances of license intangible
assets and associated deferred income tax liabilities remain
unchanged except upon the recognized impairment in
the value of these assets or any ultimate sale of territories.
At December 31, 2003 and 2002, we had approximately
$5.0 billion and $4.6 billion of deferred tax liabilities,
respectively, on license intangible assets. These deferred
tax liabilities, while impacted by tax rate changes and
currency translations, will decrease only for the reasons
above but will increase for the effect of any tax deductions
realized on tax deductible license intangible assets.

Goodwill and license intangible assets at December 31,
2003 associated with acquisitions completed in 2003 may
continue to be adjusted as the values of assets and liabilities
acquired are finalized.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Management makes judgmental decisions and estimates
with underlying assumptions when applying accounting
principles in the preparation of the Company’s financial
statements. Certain critical accounting policies requiring
significant judgments, estimates, and assumptions are
detailed below. The development and selection of these
critical accounting policies and the related disclosure
have been reviewed with the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors.
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Management believes the current assumptions and
other considerations used to estimate amounts reflected
in our consolidated financial statements are appropriate.
However, should actual experience differ from the
assumptions and other considerations used in estimating
amounts in the Company’s financial statements, the
impact of these differences could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s results of operations, and in
certain situations, a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial condition.

Impairment Testing of License Intangible Assets and Goodwill: Under
FAS 142, we test intangible assets with indefinite lives and
goodwill for impairment annually. The fair values of our
license intangibles and goodwill exceeded the carrying
amounts, and no impairment is indicated. Fair values are
determined using discounted cash flow models involving
several assumptions. These include anticipated growth rates
by geographic region, the long-term anticipated growth
rate, estimates of capital charges for license intangibles,
and the cash flows discount rate. Changes in our assump-
tions could materially impact our fair value estimates.
Assumptions critical to our fair value estimates are:
(1) our projected operating income growth rate used in the
model of approximately 5 percent to 6 percent, which man-
agement views as conservative for long-term projections,
(2) our projected long-term growth rate of 2.5 percent for
determining terminal value, and (3) our discount rate of
7.2 percent, representing our targeted near-term weighted
average cost of capital (WACC). These and other assump-
tions are impacted by economic conditions and expectations
of management and will change in the future based on
period specific facts and circumstances. Our comparable
operating income growth was 9 percent and 23 percent for
2003 and 2002, respectively, and our WACC was 6.8 percent
at December 31, 2003. Factors inherent in determining
our WACC are: (1) the value of our common stock, (2) the
variability in the values of our common stock, (3) our inter-
est costs on debt and debt market conditions, and (4) the
amounts and relationships of debt and equity capital.

Pension Plan Valuations: Critical assumptions made in deter-
mination of pension expense and pension plan liabilities
principally are the expected long-term return on assets
(EROA) and mortality and termination assumptions.
Identification of the appropriate discount rate to be used
in the valuations is primarily based on rates of high-
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quality, long-term corporate bonds.

The EROA is based on long-term expectations, gener-
ally a 30-year horizon, given current investment objectives
and historical results. In managing pension plan assets,
we utilize a combination of active and passive fund man-
agement in order to maximize pension returns within
established risk parameters. We periodically revise asset
allocations, where appropriate, to improve returns. We
complete periodic studies that highlight historical EROA,
the range of EROA that we might expect based on the
current allocation of pension assets, indications of poten-
tial future funding requirements and pension expense.
Consolidated pension expense in 2003 would have
changed by approximately $14 million had the EROA
been 1 percent higher or lower than the average 8.3 per-
cent used by CCE.

As outlined in Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 87 (FAS 87), “Employers’ Accounting for
Pensions,” we utilize the five-year asset smoothing technique
to recognize market gains and losses for plans represent-
ing 84 percent of North American assets. Cumulative losses,
net of gains, associated with the North American assets
that utilize asset smoothing totaling $174 million have been
deferred as of December 31, 2003. Pension expense associ-
ated with these assets in 2004 will increase by $12 million
over the 2003 level as a result of recognizing previously
deferred investment losses.

Other assumptions used in the calculation of pension
liability and expense include termination assumptions,
expected payroll increases, and mortality assumptions.

Tax Accounting: Valuation allowances are recognized on tax
net operating losses when it is believed by management
that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. Deferred tax assets associated with net operat-
ing loss and tax credit carryforwards totaled $594 million
at December 31, 2003. Of this amount, approximately
$548 million are associated with U.S. federal and state
carryforwards and $46 million are associated with Cana-
dian carryforwards. Management believes the majority of
deferred tax assets will be realized because of the rever-
sal of certain significant timing differences and anticipat-
ed future taxable income from operations. However, val-
uation allowances of approximately $125 million have
been provided against a portion of the U.S. federal and
state carryforwards.
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At December 31, 2003 and 2002, our foreign subsid-
iaries had approximately $536 million and $390 million
in distributable earnings, respectively. These earnings
are exclusive of amounts that would result in little or no
tax under current laws if remitted in the future. Our
earnings from foreign subsidiaries are considered to be
indefinitely reinvested and, therefore, no provision for
U.S. federal and state income taxes has been made for
these earnings. Determination of the amount of any
unrecognized deferred income tax liability on these
undistributed earnings is not practicable. Upon distribu-
tion of foreign subsidiary earnings in the form of divi-
dends or otherwise, we would be subject to both U.S.
income taxes, subject to an adjustment for foreign tax
credits, and withholding taxes payable to the various
foreign countries.

Jumpstart Funding Recognition: Beginning in 2001, we recognize
support payments under the Jumpstart programs generally
as units of equipment are placed. The amount recognized
under the programs will vary as units of equipment are
placed. We recognize approximately $500 for each unit
of equipment placed per year. Our principal requirement
under the programs is the placement of equipment. For
example, our inability to place 10,000 units of equipment
projected to be placed in 2004 would reduce our recogni-
tion of deferred cash payments from TCCC by $5 million
and possibly require us to refund cash payments previously
received. At December 31, 2003, we have $435 million of
funding deferred under this program. Other requirements
under the programs are generally operating standards
of CCE performed in the normal course of business.
Additionally, we believe we would in all cases be able

to resolve any matters that might arise regarding these
programs that could potentially result in a refund of
payments previously received.

Significant assumptions and judgments made in
making the computations included: (1) the population of
equipment that could potentially be moved, (2) the costs
of moving equipment, (3) requirements of the programs
that are outside routine operations of CCE and could
potentially be considered material obligations, and (4) the
probability of the assertion of refund rights by TCCC.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

Certain expectations and projections regarding the future
performance of Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc. (“CCE,” “we,”
“our,” “us,” or “the Company”) referenced in this Annual
Report and in other reports and proxy statements we file
with the SEC are forward-looking statements. Officers
may also make verbal statements to analysts, investors, the
media, and others that are “forward-looking.” Forward-
looking statements include, but are not limited to:

* Projections of revenues, income, earnings per share,
capital expenditures, dividends, capital structure or
other financial measures;

* Descriptions of anticipated plans or objectives of our
management for operations, products or services;

* Forecasts of performance; and

* Assumptions regarding any of the foregoing.

Forward-looking statements involve matters which
are not historical facts. Because these statements involve
anticipated events or conditions, forward-looking state-
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“estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,
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can,” “could,” “may,” “should,” “will,” “would” or simi-

project,” “target,”
lar expressions. Do not unduly rely on forward-looking
statements. They represent our expectations about the
future and are not guarantees. Forward-looking state-
ments are only as of the date they are made and they
might not be updated to reflect changes as they occur
after the forward-looking statements are made.

For example, in this report, we have forward-looking
statements regarding our expectations for:

* volume growth;

operating income growth;

cash flows from operations;

net price per case growth;

cost of goods per case growth;

operating expense growth;

concentrate cost increases from
The Coca-Cola Company;

capital expenditures; and
* developments in accounting standards.
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There are several factors — many beyond our control —
that could cause results to differ significantly from our
expectations. Our expectations are based on then cur-
rently available competitive, financial, and economic data
along with our operating plans and are subject to future
events and uncertainties. We caution readers that in
addition to the important factors described elsewhere in
this Annual Report, the following factors, among others,
could cause our business, results of operations and/or
financial condition in 2004 and thereafter to differ sig-
nificantly from those expressed in any forward-looking
statements. There are also other factors not described
in this Annual Report that could cause results to differ
from our expectations.

Marketplace: The Company’s response to continued and
increased customer and competitor consolidations and
marketplace competition may result in lower than expected
net pricing of our products. In addition, competitive pres-
sures may cause channel and product mix to shift from
more profitable cold drink channels and packages and
adversely affect our overall pricing. Efforts to improve pric-
ing in the future consumption channels of our business may
result in lower than expected volume. In addition, weather
conditions, particularly in Europe, may have a significant
impact on our sales volume. Net pricing, volume, and costs
of sales are the primary determinants of net earnings.

Cost Participation Payments from The Coca-Cola Company (TCCC):
Material changes in levels of payments historically provided
under various programs with TCCC, or our inability to
meet the performance requirements for the anticipated
levels of such support payments, could adversely affect
future earnings. TCCC is under no obligation to partici-
pate in future programs or continue past levels of payments
into the future. The current agreement designed to sup-
port profitable growth in brands of TCCC in our territories
may be canceled by either party prior to the end of a fiscal
year with at least six months’ prior written notice.

The amount of infrastructure funding from TCCC
recognized as an offset to cost of sales in a given year is
dependent upon the actual number of units placed in
service. Actual results may differ materially from projec-
tions should placement levels be significantly different
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than program requirements. Should we not satisfy the
provisions of the infrastructure funding programs and
we are unable to agree with TCCC on an alternative
solution, TCCC would be able to seek partial refund of
amounts previously paid.

Raw Materials: Our forecasts assume no unplanned increases
in the costs of raw materials, ingredients, packaging mate-
rials, or supplies. If such increases occur, and we are unable
to achieve an increase in pricing to customers by compa-
rable amounts, earnings could be adversely affected.

Infrastructure Investment: Projected capacity levels of our
infrastructure investments may differ from actual if our
volume growth is not as anticipated. Significant changes
from our expected timing of returns on cold drink
equipment and employee, fleet, and plant infrastructure
investments could adversely impact our net income.

Financing Considerations: Changes from our expectations for
interest and currency exchange rates can have a material
impact on our forecasts. We may not be able to completely
mitigate the effect of significant interest rate or currency
exchange rate changes. Changes in our debt rating can
have a material adverse effect on interest costs and our
financing sources.

Legal Contingencies: Changes from expectations for the
resolution of outstanding legal claims and assessments,
including the investigation by the European Commission,
could have a material impact on our forecasts and
financial condition.

Legislative Risk: Our business model is dependent on the
availability of our products in multiple channels and
locations to better satisfy our customers’ needs. Laws
that restrict our ability to distribute products in schools
and other venues or materially impact our cash flows
could negatively impact our revenue and profit.

Tax Contingencies: An assessment of additional taxes resulting
from audits conducted by the Canadian tax authorities
could have a material impact on our earnings and
financial condition.
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--------------------------------------------------------------- Selected Financial Data

FISCAL YEAR

(IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999©
OPERATIONS SUMMARY
Net operating revenues® ® $17,330 $16,058 $14,999 $14,127 $13,788
Cost of sales® 10,165 9,458 9,015 8,291 8,130
Gross profit 7,165 6,600 5,984 5,836 5,658
Selling, delivery, and administrative expenses® ® 5,588 5,236 5,383 4,710 4,819
Operating income 1,577 1,364 601 1,126 839
Interest expense, net 607 662 753 791 751
Other nonoperating income (expense), net 2 3 2 (2) —
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting 972 705 (150) 333 88
Income tax expense (benefit)” 296 211 (131) 97 29
Net income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting 676 494 (19) 236 59
Cumulative effect of change in accounting - - (302) - -
Net income (loss) 676 494 (321) 236 59
Preferred stock dividends 2 3 3 3 3
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners $ 674 $ 491 $ 824 $ 233 $ 56
OTHER OPERATING DATA
Depreciation expense $ 1,022 $ 965 $ 901 $ 810 $ 899
Amortization expense 75 59 432 451 449
AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING
Basic 454 449 432 419 425
Diluted 461 458 432 429 436
PER SHARE DATA
Basic net income (loss) per common share before cumulative effect

of change in accounting $ 148 $ 1.09 $ (0.05) $ 0.56 $ 0.13
Diluted net income (loss) per common share before cumulative effect

of change in accounting 1.46 1.07 (0.05) 0.54 0.13
Basic net income (loss) per share applicable to common shareowners 1.48 1.09 (0.75) 0.56 0.13
Diluted net income (loss) per share applicable to common shareowners 1.46 1.07 (0.75) 0.54 0.13
Dividends per common share 0.16 0.16 0.16 0.16 0.16
Closing stock price 21.87 21.72 18.94 19.00 20.125
YEAR-END FINANCIAL POSITION
Property, plant, and equipment, net $ 6,794 $ 6,393 $ 6,206 $ 5,783 $ 5,594
License intangible assets, net 14,171 13,450 13,125 12,862 18,771
Total assets 25,700 24,375 23,719 22,162 22,730
Long-term debt 11,646 12,023 12,169 11,121 11,378
Shareowner’s equity 4,365 3,347 2,820 2,834 2,924
Pro Forma Amounts Applying the Accounting Change to Prior Periods®:
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners $ 674 $ 491 $ (220 $ 163 $ (10)
Basic net income (loss) per share applicable to common shareowners 1.48 1.09 (0.05) 0.39 (0.02)
Diluted net income (loss) per share applicable to common shareowners 1.46 1.07 (0.05) 0.38 (0.02)
Pro Forma Amounts Applying the Adoption of FAS 142 to Prior Periods®:
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners $ 674 $ 491 $ (75 $ 484 $ 320
Basic net income (loss) per share applicable to common shareowners 1.48 1.09 (0.17) 1.16 0.75
Diluted net income (loss) per share applicable to common shareowners 1.46 1.07 (0.17) 1.13 0.73
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-------------------------------------------------------------------- Selected Financial Dat@ s

Notes — We made acquisitions in each year presented. Such transactions did not significantly affect our operating results in any one fiscal period.
All acquisitions have been included in our consolidated operating results from their respective transaction dates.

(A) Balances reflect the adoption of Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) No. 02-16, ‘Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Cash
Consideration Received from a Vendor.” Upon adoption of EITF 02-16 in the first quarter of 2003, we classified the following amounts in the
2002, 2001, 2000 and 1999 income statements as reductions in cost of sales: approximately $882 million, $651 million, $573 million, and
$575 million, respectively, of direct marketing support from The Coca-Cola Company (TCCC) and other licensors previously included in net oper-
ating revenues, and approximately $77 million, $74 million, $219 million and $310 million, respectively, of cold drink equipment placement
funding from TCCC previously included as a reduction in selling, delivery, and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001, 2000 and 1999. We also classified in net operating revenues $51 million, $45 million, $41 million, and $40 million, respectively, of net
payments for dispensing equipment repair services received from TCCC, previously included in selling, delivery, and administrative expenses for
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, 2000 and 1999.

(B) Balances reflect the adoption of EITF No. 01-09, effective as of January 1, 2002. The adoption of this pronouncement resulted in the reclassification
to deductions from net operating revenues of approximately $95 million, $91 million, and $83 million in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively,
previously classified as selling expenses.

(C) 1999 results include a one-time charge of $103 million ($0.16 per common share after tax) for costs associated with recalled product in certain
parts of Europe. These costs were allocated $91 million to cost of sales and $12 million to selling, delivery, and administrative expenses.

(D) Income tax expense (benefit) includes expense associated with tax rate changes of approximately $23 million in 2003 and tax rate change benefits of
$16 million in 2002, $56 million in 2001, and $8 million in 2000. Income tax expense (benefit) also includes benefits of approximately $25 million
related to the revaluation of various income tax obligations and $6 million related to other tax adjustments in 2003 and $4 million related to the
revaluation of various income tax obligations in 2002.

(E) Pro forma amounts assume the accounting change for Jumpstart payments received from TCCC, adopted as of January 1, 2001, was applied
retroactively without regard to any changes in the business that could have resulted had the accounting been different in these periods.

(F) Pro forma amounts illustrate the impact of adoption of the non-amortization provisions of FAS 142 for all periods presented.



Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.

Shareowner Information

Stock Information

Stock Symbol: CCE; Wall Street Journal Listing: CocaColaEnt
Shares Outstanding as of December 31, 2003: 455,754,155
Shareowners of Record as of December 31, 2003: 15,363

Coca-Cola Enterprises is a component of the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index

Stock Prices

2 0 0 3 High Low Close 2 O 0 2 High Low Close
Fourth Quarter 22.72 19.28 21.78 Fourth Quarter 24.50 20.05 21.72
Third Quarter 19.61 16.85 19.06 Third Quarter 22.51 16.87 21.24
Second Quarter 20.41 18.10 18.15 Second Quarter 23.98 18.30 22.08
First Quarter 23.30 17.75 18.69 First Quarter 20.67 15.94 18.78

Corporate Offices

Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.
2500 Windy Ridge Parkway
Atlanta, Georgia 30339

770 989-3000
www.cokecce.com

Company and Financial Information
Shareowner Relations

Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.

PO. Box 723040

Atlanta, Georgia 31139-0040

800 233-7210 or 770 989-3796

www.cokecce.com

Institutional Investor Inquiries
Investor Relations

Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.
PO. Box 723040

Atlanta, Georgia 31139-0040
770 989-3246

Transfer Agent, Registrar and Dividend Disbursing Agent
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane, Plaza Level

New York, New York 10038

800 418-4CCE (4223)

(U.S. and Canada only) or

718 921-8283

Internet: www.amstock.com

E-mail: info@amstock.com

Independent Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP

600 Peachtree Street, N.E.
Suite 2800

Atlanta, Georgia 30308-2215
404 874-8300
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Dividend Reinvestment and Cash Investment Plan

Individuals enrolling in the plan must purchase initial
share(s) through a bank or broker and have those share(s)
registered in his or her name. Our plan enables participants
to reinvest dividends and purchase additional shares
without paying fees or commissions. Please contact our
transfer agent for a brochure or to enroll.

Direct Deposit of Dividends

Dividends can be automatically deposited into a
checking or savings account. Please contact the
transfer agent for an authorization agreement form.

2004 Dividend Information

Dividend Declaration* Mid-Feb. Mid-April Mid-July Mid-Oct.
Ex-Dividend Dates March 17 June 16 Sept. 16 Dec. 1
Record Dates March 19 June 18 Sept. 20 Dec. 3
Payment Dates April 1 July 1 Oct. 1 Dec. 15

*Dividend declaration is at the discretion of the board of directors

Dividend rate for 2003: $0.16 annually ($0.04 quarterly)

Annual Meeting of Shareowners

Shareowners are invited to attend the 2004 Annual
Meeting of Shareowners, Friday, April 30, 2004 at
10:30 a.m. local time at:

Hotel du Pont
11th and Market Streets
Wilmington, DE 19801



Lowry F. Kline

Chairman of the Board

John R. Alm

President and Chief Executive Officer

G. David Van Houten, Jr.
Executive Vice President, ChiefOperating Officerand
President, North American Business Unit

Vicki R. Palmer
Executive Vice President, Financial Services
and Administration

Daniel S. Bowling, 111

Senior Vice President, Human Resources

John J. Culhane

Senior Vice President and General Counsel

John H. Downs, Jr.
Senior Vice President, Public Affairs
and Communications

Robert F. Gray
Senior Vice President, Operations and
Capital Planning

Shaun B. Higgins
Senior Vice President and Chief Strategy
and Planning Officer

Patrick J. Mannelly

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.

Officers of the Company

Daniel G. Marr

President, North American Sales

Dominique Reiniche
Senior Vice President and
President, European Group

Scott Anthony

Vice President, Investor Relations

Carol A. Benton
Vice President, Internal Audit

E. Liston Bishop III
Vice President, Secretary, Deputy General
Counsel and Director of Acquisitions

Margaret F. Carton
Vice President, Information Technology

Rick L. Engum
Vice President, Controller
and Principal Accounting Officer

Rick A. Frazier

Vice President, Quality Assurance
Stephen C. Horn

Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer,
North America

Timothy W. Johnson

Vice President, Labor and Employee Relations

Joyce King-Lavinder

Vice President and Treasurer

Bernard P. Kunerth
Vice President, Human Resources Processes

Gray McCalley, Jr.

Vice President and Deputy General Counsel

Terrance M. Marks
Vice President and Chief Revenue Officer,
North America

H. Lynn Oliver

Vice President, Tax

William T. Plybon

Vice President and Deputy General Counsel

Terri L. Purcell

Vice President,

Deputy General Counsel and Assistant Secretary

Edward L. Sutter

Vice President and Chief Procurement Officer

Lori Taylor

Vice President, Risk Management

S. Kim Adamson
Assistant Controller, Financial Reporting
and Accounting

Environmental Policy Statement
Coca-ColaEnterprisesusesenvironmentallyresponsible
packaging which continues to demonstrate our
commitment to the environment and recycling in
several ways. We use 100 percent recyclable packaging
throughoutouroperations,allofouraluminumbever-
age containers have 45 percent recycled

content, and 80 percent of our plastic beverage resin
has10percentrecycledcontent. Furthermore, Coca-Cola
Enterprisessupportsmanylocalenvironmentalgroups
and initiatives to promote curbside, drop-off, and
away-from-home recycling programs throughout the
many local communities in which our employees live
and work.

Portions of this report

printed on recycled paper.@

© 2004 Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.

“Coca-Cola” is a trademark of
The Coca-Cola Company.

Designed and produced by
Corporate Reports Inc./Atlanta.
WWW.COrporatereport.com
Primary photography by

Flip Chalfant and Philip Vullo.
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Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc. (NYSE: CCE) is the world’s largest
marketer;, distributor, and producer of bottle and can liquid nonalcoholic refreshment.
Coca-Cola Enterprises sells approximately 80 percent of The Coca-Cola Company’s
bottle and can volume in North America and is the sole licensed bottler for
products of The Coca-Cola Company in Belgium, France, Great
Britain, Luxembourg, Monaco, and the Netherlands.

2500 Windy Ridge Parkway
Atlanta, GA 30339
770-989-3000

www.cokecce.com
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